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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are an
integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for
international sports brands and have recently diversified into high
fashion retail business. We have two broad lines of businesses,
namely Manufacturing Business and Distribution and Retail
Business, with geographical markets spanning over Europe, North
America, Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 6 September 2006.
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B ZE Financial Highlights

BELFFEHNKER Key Financial Information for the Last Five Years

BE+-A=+—-RALEE/
W+=A=+-H
For the year ended 31 December/
As at 31 December

-g-= —E--f —E-——-% CZEZ-TF ZZTThE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
BB RR Financial Performance
(F#&x) (HK$’000)
W &= Revenue 2,951,279 2,961,474 3,052,485 2,726,121 2,421,122
Fed ==l Operating profit 144,599 172,057 163,388 221,517 214,374
BR T 15 %t A 4 A Profit before income tax 162,572 200,759 174,591 230,130 222,462
FHEREEBRR Profit from continuing
operations 124,393 164,158 147,271 196,357 181,651
ERIEREXBER Loss from discontinued
operations (8,888) (44,131) (6,588)  (123,556)  (74,636)
FEERF Profit for the year 115,505 120,027 140,683 72,801 107,015
REFEAEERR Profit attributable to equity
holders 151,205 150,185 230,196 120,472 121,539
B 2R OR Financial Position
(F#&x) (HK$’000)
*RBEE Non-current assets 1,140,428 989,087 846,255 868,722 920,750
RBEE Current assets 1,909,429 1,846,459 2,041,171 1,950,941 1,740,662
RBAad Current liabilities 782,890 625,013 720,468 686,873 571,674
RBEEFE Net current assets 1,126,539 1,221,446 1,320,703 1,264,068 1,168,988
EERE Total assets 3,049,857 2,835,546 2,887,426 2,819,663 2,661,412
EELEBERRD Total assets less current
afE liabilities 2,266,967 2,210,533 2,166,958 2,132,790 2,089,738
mER Total equity 2,231,745 2,199,594 2,151,088 2,127,568 2,087,643
BReRBELZEEY Cash and cash equivalents
RRBHIR and bank deposits with
BBE=EAZ initial terms of over three
BITER months 876,998 976,665 810,568 782,840 674,065
BEEER Operation Indicators
SEKEER Gross profit margin from
ZEFE (%) continuing operations (%) 25.2 21.7 20.9 23.2 25.4
TEEEER2F Net profit margin from
F 8 = (%) continuing operations (%) 4.2 55 4.8 7.2 75
EBEEELE %) Gearing ratio (%)" 7.3 0.9 0.6 2.5 3.3
ThED L (£3) Current ratio (times) 2.4 3.0 2.8 2.8 3.0
BUEZEHR2BES  Trade receivable sales
() period (days) 42 43 55 66 82
FEZBEBHR) Inventory sales period (days) 86 83 76 67 74
it Note:

A

4

EEEELRANEEARBRUERES -

—E-CFEH  AEEEZRERAR

A

Gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings and total

equity.
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FEHE Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to announce the annual
results of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Results

The year 2013 was marked by slow economic growth and
uncertainties in many parts of the world. Deleveraging, heightened
sovereign risks, austerity measures and high unemployment
rate remain major headwinds to the economic recovery of the
European regions. Elsewhere, the US economic recovery has been
challenged by recurring fiscal and political issues so that the state
of the US economy remains unclear. As for China, the National
Bureau of Statistics recently announced that the growth in 2013
GDP was slightly higher than market expectation, but it was still the
lowest since the last decade and future growth will be very likely
slower than that in previous years.

Amidst all those challenges, the Group has still been able
to maintain a steady revenue and profit attributable to the
shareholders for the year. The Group’s revenue was HK$2,951.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, a slight decrease by
0.3% compared to last year’s revenue of HK$2,961.5 million. Profit
attributable to shareholders reported for the year was HK$151.2
million as compared to HK$150.2 million for 2012, a slight increase
of 0.7%.

Manufacturing business

In the first half of 2013, the Manufacturing Business recorded a
decline in revenue by 21.1% compared to the corresponding period
of 2012. Thanks to the positive impact of 2014 FIFA World Cup,
revenue had caught up substantially in the second half of 2013 and
the overall revenue for the year was HK$2,684.1 million, dropping
only slightly by 5.0% compared to last year.

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 5
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Besides, as some of the production facilities had been relocated
to Vietnam and Cambodia, certain factories in China were closed
during the year. As additional costs, including staff redundancy
costs, provision for fixed assets and other expenses of HK$57.6
million, were incurred for the factory closures, the operating profit
of the Manufacturing Business decreased from HK$175.9 million
in 2012 to HK$150.8 million in 2013. However, the production
relocation will improve the gross profit margin in the long-run as
labour costs in Vietnam and Cambodia are relatively lower than in
China.

Distribution and retail business

The Group had converted the convertible bonds in Shine Gold
Group into shares in November 2013, as a result, the Group can
exercise controlling shareholding after the conversion. Shine Gold
Group is principally engaged in retailing of fashion wears and
accessories in Hong Kong and Mainland China. It is the Group’s
strategy to diversify our business into the retailing of high-end
fashion products. With the rising disposable incomes of Mainland
China citizens which create a strong demand of discretionary
consumer products, we believe the high-end fashion business will
be one of our key drivers of growth in the future.

On the other hand, the Group had strategically ceased the retailing
business of Umbro products and Diadora products in order to
stop further losses suffered from the tough environment of China’s
sportswear market. The Diadora trademarks were sold to Diadora
Sport SRL in the second half of 2013 with a net gain of HK$45.7
million. As a result, the discontinued businesses of Umbro products
and Diadora products recorded a loss of HK$8.9 million for the
year compared to a loss of HK$44.1 million last year.
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FEHE Chairman’s Statement

Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK4.0 cents per ordinary share. Together with the interim
dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share paid during the year,
the dividend for the full financial year of 2013 totaled HK7.0 cents,
representing total payment of HK$88.8 million, or a distribution of
approximately 60% of the current year’s profit to Shareholders. The
Group has strived for generating steady returns to our Shareholders
through a dividend payout of not less than 30% of the reported
earnings. Depending on the capital expenditure needs and cash
position of the Group, the Board may adjust the payout ratio
upwards.

Outlook

Looking ahead, considerable uncertainty continues to hang over
the global economy and time will be required to restore consumer
confidence, thus 2014 will be another tough year. The management
however remains prudently optimistic and will continue to execute
its business strategies. Nevertheless, with many major economies
showing more evidence of stabilization in recent months, and given
the Group’s strong relationships with customers, together with the
introduction of new talents in the top management team, we believe
all are favorable factors to our future business and operations.
As always, we will continue to be on the lookout for lucrative
opportunities to further expand our business, with the ultimate aim
of bringing greater value to our Shareholders in the long-run.

Acknowledgement
| would like to thank the Board and all of our dedicated employees

for their continued loyalty, diligence, professionalism, and
contributions to the Group.

LI Kwok Tung Roy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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Overall Review

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has recorded
a revenue of HK$2,951.3 million (2012: HK$2,961.5 million) from
continuing operations.

Gross profit margin increased to 25.2% in 2013 (2012:
21.7%) mainly resulting from the consolidation of Shine
Gold Group, the Group’s new retail arm, starting from
1 November 2013 when the convertible bonds held by the Group
in it were converted into shares.

Operating profit for the year under review was HK$144.6 million
(2012: HK$172.1 million). The decrease in operating profit in 2013
was mainly attributable to the costs incurred for closure of factories
in Mainland China. Excluding such factory closure costs, operating
profit would have been HK$202.2 million in 2013, representing an
increase of 17.5% compared to 2012.

Besides, loss from discontinued operations decreased from
HK$44.1 million in 2012 to HK$8.9 million in 2013. The sharp
decrease was due to recognition of an one-off gain of HK$45.7
million upon the disposal of “Diadora” trademarks during the year.

As a result, profit attributable to the shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was HK$151.2 million (2012: HK$150.2
million).

The Board has declared and paid the interim dividend of HK3.0
cents per Share during the year. In consideration of the strong net
cash position and the continued cash inflow from operations, the
Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0 cents
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2013. The interim and
final dividends represent a total payment of HK$88.8 million, or
a distribution of approximately 60% of the current year’s profit to
shareholders.
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Business Review

The Group is an integrated manufacturer, distributor and retailer for
renowned sports and fashion brands. The financial performances
of the two business segments, namely the “Manufacturing
Business” and “Distribution and Retail Business” are
summarised as below.

Manufacturing Business

The Group’s Manufacturing Business operates mainly through OEM
arrangements for a number of renowned sports brands. Most of the
Group’s products are exported and sold to Europe, Mainland China
and other countries around the world. The Group has a long history
and a distinctive position in sportswear garment manufacturing,
and has established long term business relationships with its key
customers.

In the first half of 2013, revenue decreased substantially by 21.1%
compared to the first half of 2012. However, sales orders in the
second half of 2013 have rebounded substantially, thanks to the
positive impact of the approaching 2014 FIFA World Cup. As a
result, revenue from the Manufacturing Business decreased by only
5.0% to HK$2,684.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$2,824.4 million), accounting for 90.9% of the Group’s
total revenue from continuing operations (2012: 95.4%).

During the year 2013, two factories located in Yun Fu and Heyuan,
Guangdong province of Mainland China, were closed down. A
redundancy cost of HK$23.9 million, provision for fixed assets of
HK$30.1 million and other expenses of HK$3.6 million were incurred
for the factory closures.

Operating profit from our Manufacturing Business decreased
by 14.3% to HK$150.8 million (2012: HK$175.9 million) due to
the impact of factory closures. Excluding the redundancy costs,
provision for fixed assets and other expenses incurred for the
above factory closures, the operating profit from the Manufacturing
Business would have been HK$208.4 million, representing an
increase of 18.5% as compared to 2012.

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 9



EEEBNWKE S Management Discussion and Analysis

e )T
SEEK @

i BERKBERQR (A2TH-—HH
BE2EMBLR) —RIMNFITRRATE
REBRETERBERE - ZL AR T
BAEERENR HLBRRAAKEN
REB - ZEARGNAEEAEBEETIFR
BOET—R ARURAKREEERRR
AEE-

PHREERK

R-ZE—Z=ZF XEEARLLEUmbro K&
DiadoramBERMN D HREEX£K - 5—F
m AEER=-Z-=F+-F—-A(&#KA
1) # Shine Gold Limited i 7T 12 It & % &
BAERD AREREEHEFESIHAR -
Shine GoldEBEZEEE - FEAME - &
ERITMERESERBETEEK - It
B AN BEANEEEIRERNSRESE
EmMNEEEK -

N E KD IHH KR L MIB50% B
267,200,000 &m(= Z — = £
137,000,000 7t) WA E B LAWK HE N
91% (ZE—ZF 1 46%)  BEZZ—=
F+ZAZ+-HLEE T BHEES
£ %56,200,000B T (=2 ——F  KEH 1B
3,800,000/ 7T) °

RS PEBEHFRRT E— 5 Wi -

10 -z-=¢#%x

KEEBEERERAFT

Business Review (Continued)
Manufacturing Business (Continued)

Besides, the permitted usage of a land parcel held by Bowker
Garment Factory Company Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, was converted from industrial to
residential and commercial. The land was located in Heyuan,
Guangdong province of Mainland China, on which a garment
factory of the Group is currently located. This transaction was
one of the strategic moves in the production relocation plan and
provides an opportunity for the Group to realise the maximum value
of the Group’s assets in the future.

Distribution and Retail Business

In 2013, the Group has discontinued the distribution and retail of
Umbro and Diadora branded products. On the other hand, the
Group has converted the convertible bonds of Shine Gold Limited
into shares on 1 November 2013 (the “Conversion Date”) and
started to consolidate its results upon the conversion. Shine Gold
Group is principally engaged in retailing of fashion wears and
accessories in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore.
Since then, this segment also includes the businesses of retailing
of sportswear products and high-end fashion products.

Revenue of this business segment increased by 95.0% to HK$267.2
million (2012: HK$137.0 million), accounting for 9.1% of the Group’s
total revenue (2012: 4.6%). The operating loss in this segment
was HK$6.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
operating loss of HK$3.8 million).

Further discussion of the performance in each stream of this
segment is set out below.
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Business Review (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)
Retailing of Sportswear Products

Revenue from our sportswear retail business in Hong Kong for
the year ended 31 December 2013 increased to HK$166.5 million
(2012: HK$137.0 million) as a result of the increase in number of
shops from 14 as at 31 December 2012 to 20 as at 31 December
2013. However, due to keen competition and higher discounts, an
operating loss of HK$5.7 million was recorded (2012: operating
profit of HK$0.3 million).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 20 self-managed
sportswear retail shops in Hong Kong, of which two were under
the name of “Futbol Trend’, nine were under the name of “Sports
Corner” or “Little Corner” and nine shops bearing the names of
several international sports brands comprised the rest.

Retailing of High-end Fashion Products

The retailing of high-end fashion products is operated under Shine
Gold Group. It has a self-managed retail network for several
Queen
11,” etc, in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Macau. In

n o«

self-owned brands “D-mop,” “Blues Heroes,” “Loveis,

addition, it has exclusive distribution rights, including “¥-3” in Hong
Kong, Mainland China (excluding Beijing) and Taiwan and certain
Japanese brands in Hong Kong.

Revenue and operating loss from Shine Gold Group from the
Conversion Date to 31 December 2013 was HK$99.4 million and
HK$0.5 million respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 75 self-managed high-
end fashion retail shops, of which 27 were in Hong Kong, 37 were
in Mainland China, 10 were in Taiwan and one was in Singapore.

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 11
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Business Review (Continued)
Discontinued Operations

In the past few years, China’s sportswear industry has been facing
challenges stemming from excessive inventory and over-expansion.
In this tough business environment, our Distribution and Retail
Business of Diadora and Umbro branded products performed
unsatisfactorily. Despite the mitigating actions taken by the Group,
there was still little improvement. Therefore, to cut further losses,
the Group had discontinued the Distribution and Retail Business of
both Diadora and Umbro branded products in 2013.

Distribution of Diadora Products

In July 2013, the Group entered into a master deed with Diadora
Sport SRL and Wincina S.R.L., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Diadora Sport SRL. Pursuant to the master deed, the Group
agreed to assign, among others, the “Diadora” trademarks in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau to Diadora Sport SRL at
a consideration of US$9.2 million (equivalent to HK$71.8 million).
The carrying amount of the trademarks upon disposal was HK$26.1
million. The net gain arising from the transactions of HK$45.7
million was recognised as profit from discontinued operations in
the consolidated income statement.

Distribution of Umbro Products

The Group acted as a key retailer of the Umbro brand by operating
a certain number of shops in Mainland China pursuant to the
key account agreement entered into by the Group with Umbro
International Limited (“UIL’) on 21 April 2011. The Group received
approximately US$2.3 million (equivalent to HK$18.2 million) from
UIL as retail support income for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$26.5 million). Upon the expiry of this agreement on 30
June 2013, the Group ceased to be the retailer of the Umbro brand.
As at 31 December 2013, all Umbro shops were closed and all
remaining inventory of Umbro products was sold off.
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Prospects

The year 2013 has been challenging as compared with the past
few years. The sovereign debt risks and austerity measures in
major global economies were still affecting the global business
environment. The rising labor costs in manufacturing and the high
retail rentals have made the situation worse. However, as there
are signs that the economic downturn is stabilising together with
the FIFA World Cup being held in 2014, the Group is cautiously
optimistic about the its business prospects this year.

Manufacturing Business

As at the end of 2013, approximately 30% of production capacity
of the Group was in Vietnam and Cambodia while approximately
70% of production capacity of the Group remained in Mainland
China. The shifting of the Group’s production capacity to overseas
is proceeding according to schedule and it is expected that half of
the production capacity will be located outside Mainland China by
the end of 2014.

The labour supply in Vietnam and Cambodia is relatively stable
and the labour costs are relatively lower. The higher proportion
of production in these regions will offer us a more cost-effective
position.

Looking into 2014, the worldwide economic situation will continue
to be challenging. However, the potential negative impact of an
uncertain economy will be mitigated by the positive effect of the
2014 FIFA World Cup which will provide a favourable condition for
new orders from customers.

Distribution and Retail Business

The retail market in Hong Kong will remain tough as the rental and
staff costs continue to rise. Our strategy for the retail business
in Hong Kong will be conservative with the focus on improving
efficiency of our currently existing shops.

In the Mainland China’s retail market, there is increasing number
of foreign and local brands expanding their operation, which has
increased competition and prolonged the extensive discounting.
Although we expect the demand of high-end fashion in Mainland
China will continue as a result of the ongoing increase in disposable
income of Mainland China consumers, we will maintain a cautious
approach to expansion with focus on products with higher margin.
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Prospects (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)

Besides, the Group’s merchandising team will continue to source
fashion products of international renowned brands in response to
the market trends. The Group will strive to cater the Asian market’s
demand for quality branded products through a diversity of licensed
bands and the Group’s own brands through our retail network.

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cashflow and bank facilities and has maintained a
healthy financial position during the year under review. As at
31 December 2013, it had cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits with initial terms of over three months amounting to
HK$877.0 million (31 December 2012: HK$976.7 million). The net
decrease of cash balance was mainly attributed to cash outflow to
capital expenditures and the payment of dividends.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had bank borrowings
amounting to HK$154.7 million (31 December 2012: HK$12.4
million). The Group did not enter into any interest rate swap
to hedge against risks associated with interest rates. As at 31
December 2013, the Group still had unutilised banking facilities
amounting to HK$250.6 million (31 December 2012: HK$261.5
million). The gearing ratio, being total borrowings divided by total
equity, as at 31 December 2013, was 7.3% (31 December 2012:
0.9%).

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 14,500
employees (31 December 2012: approximately 14,200 employees).
The Group remunerates employees based on their performance,
Other
employee benefits include retirement benefits, insurance, medical

working experience and prevailing market conditions.

coverage and a share option scheme.
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Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2013, bank deposit of HK$4.3 million (31
December 2012: HK$1.2 million) was pledged to secure banking
facilities for the Group.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s sales and purchases were mostly denominated in US
Dollars and RMB. During the year, approximately 79.1%, 11.8%
and 8.8% of sales were denominated in US Dollars, RMB and Hong
Kong Dollars, respectively, whereas approximately 75.7%, 5.4%
and 18.8% of purchases were denominated in US Dollars, RMB
and Hong Kong Dollars, respectively. Further, as at 31 December
2013, approximately 38.2%, 52.5% and 7.7% of cash and cash
equivalents and bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months were denominated in US Dollars, RMB and Hong Kong
Dollars, respectively.

The Group considered that the foreign currency exchange exposure
arising from the above transactions and cash balances was minimal
during the year on the ground that Hong Kong dollars were pegged
against US dollars and the recent pressure from appreciation of
RMB was manageable during the year. Accordingly, the Group
considered the use of any derivative instruments to hedge against
foreign currency exposure arising from the above transactions and
cash balances was not necessary during the year under review.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no significant contingent liabilities, litigation or
arbitration of material importance as at 31 December 2013.
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Executive Directors

LI Kwok Tung Roy, aged 63, is our executive Director, our co-
founder and Chairman. He was appointed as an executive Director
in December 2005. Mr. LI is the elder brother of Mr. LEE Kwok
Leung. Mr. LI is responsible for strategic planning and overall
management of our Group. Mr. LI has over 30 years of experience
in the apparel industry and handling client relationship. Mr. LI is a
committee member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in He Yuan city, Guangdong province of Mainland
China.

Mr. LI is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also the director of Quinta Asia Limited, which
has an interest in such number of shares of the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company” in this annual report.

LAl Ching Ping, aged 63, is our executive Director, our co-
founder and Deputy Chairman. He was appointed as an executive
Director in December 2005. Mr. LAl assists the Chairman in
board management and provides advice on the Group’s direction
and critical decision. Mr. LAl has over 30 years of experience
in the apparel industry. Mr. LAl is a committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Yun Fu city,
Guangdong province of Mainland China.

Mr. LAl is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also the director of Quinta Asia Limited, which
has an interest in such number of shares of the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company” in this annual report.
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LEE Kwok Leung, aged 51, is our executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer. He was appointed as an executive Director in
February 2006 and is currently the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. LEE is the younger brother of Mr. LI Kwok
Tung Roy. Mr. LEE is responsible for overall management, strategy
planning, execution and technology implementation of our Group.
Mr. LEE has been with us for over 25 years after his graduation
from the York University in 1987 with a Bachelor of Arts degree.

CHOW Chi Wai, aged 55, is our executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer. Dr. CHOW joined us in 1985 who was appointed
as an executive Director in February 2006. He then resigned in
January 2009 upon his retirement and re-joined the Company in
January 2012 as a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Dr.
CHOW was re-appointed as an executive Director in January 2014
and is currently a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Dr.
CHOW reports to the CEO in overall execution of our Manufacturing
Business and has over 25 years of experience in apparel
production management.

Dr. CHOW received his education in Hong Kong and obtained
a Higher Certificate in Textile Technology and an Endorsement
Certificate in Textile Management, both from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic, in 1983 and 1985, respectively. Dr. CHOW was
conferred a Certified Six Sigma Black Belt by International
Academy for Quality Certification in April 2005 and became an
honourable citizenship of He Yuan city, Guangdong province
of Mainland China, in 2008. Dr. CHOW obtained his Doctor of
Business Administration from the City University of Hong Kong in
2012.
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CHEUNG Chi, aged 47, is our executive Director. He was appointed
as an executive Director in February 2006 and is currently the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to joining us
in 2005, Mr. CHEUNG had been the executive vice president and
chief financial officer of Aspire Holdings Ltd. which is a member
of China Mobile Communications Corporation. Mr. CHEUNG had
also been the chief financial officer of eBIS Co., Ltd., and the
financial controller of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd. and a senior
consultant of Arthur Andersen & Co. in which he was responsible
for several initial public offering projects. He has over 20 years
of experience in financial management. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the City Polytechnic
of Hong Kong and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1992 and
2004 respectively. Mr. CHEUNG is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHAN Kwong Fai, aged 67, is our independent non-executive
Director. Dr. CHAN joined us in April 2006. Dr. CHAN has been in
the academic field for over 30 years and is currently an Associate
Professor at the Department of Management and Marketing of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. CHAN is also an author
of several publications in the business management area. Dr.
CHAN graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor degree in Social Science in 1971 and obtained his
Master of Business Management from the University of Adelaide
and Doctor of Philosophy from the University of South Australia in
1981 and 2004 respectively.
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KWAN Kai Cheong, aged 64, is our independent non-executive
Director. He joined us in April 2006. Mr. KWAN is currently the
president of Morrison & Company Limited, a business consultancy
firm, and an independent non-executive director of several listed
companies in Hong Kong including Henderson Sunlight Asset
Management Limited, Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited, United
Photovoltaics Group Limited (formerly known as Goldpoly New
Energy Holdings Limited) and Greenland Hong Kong Holdings
Limited (formerly known as SPG Land (Holdings) Limited). He is
also a non-executive director of China Properties Group Limited,
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange and an
independent non-executive director of Galaxy Resources Limited,
a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

Mr. KWAN previously worked for Merrill Lynch & Co. Inc. and was
the president for its Asia Pacific region. He was an independent
non-executive director of Soundwill Holdings Limited until January
2011 and a non-executive director of JF Household Furnishings
Limited until August 2011.

Mr. KWAN completed the Stanford Executive Program in 1992. He
also holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours) degree from the
University of Singapore. He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

MA Ka Chun, aged 62, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. MA joined us in June 2006. Mr. MA has been in the apparel
industry for over 20 years and is currently a director of Fashionmark
Holdings Limited, principally engaging in the manufacture of
apparels for some international fashion brands with production
bases in Zhuhai and Zhongshan, Mainland China. Mr. MA holds
a Bachelor of Social Science degree from the University of Hong
Kong.
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Senior Management

WONG Chi Keung, aged 47, is our Chief Financial Officer and
has more than 21 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
finance. Between 2006 and 2013, Mr. WONG served as the chief
financial officer for a number of sino-foreign joint venture and Hong
Kong and US listed companies, including China Dongxiang (Group)
Co., Ltd. and Besunyen Holdings Company Limited, both companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Between 2002 and 2006, Mr. WONG
worked at various operating entities of China Netcom Group,
including serving as a senior finance manager of China Netcom
Group Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited, a company previously
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Between 1989
and 1999, Mr. WONG worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers, an
international public accounting firm and lastly as an audit manager.

Mr. WONG obtained a Bachelor degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1989 and a Master
degree in Business Administration from the Australian Graduate
School of Management in 2002. Mr. WONG is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

WONG Yiu Sun, aged 50, is the managing director of the D-mop
Group and has over 20 years of experience in fashion retail
industry. Mr. WONG is the founder of the D-mop Group and joined
the Company after the subscription of Shine Gold’s convertible
bonds in 2011. He is jointly responsible for overall strategic
planning, marketing and management functions of the D-mop
Group. He has successfully introduced various prestigious brands
to Asia. Mr. WONG obtained a professional diploma in Fashion
and Clothing Technology from Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 1989.
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CHAN Yuk Lin, aged 46, is the managing director of the Win
Sports Group and has 20 years of experience in retail industry.
Ms. CHAN joined us in July 2008 as the general manager and was
promoted to be the managing director of the Win Sports Group
in March 2011 overseeing the retail business in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. Prior to joining us, she had been the general
manager of Lafuma Hong Kong Limited, the division manager of
retail merchandising and the department manager of sourcing of
Swire Resources Limited, assistant section manager of China retail
operations of Texwood and Apple Limited. She obtained a Master
degree in Clothing (Marketing and Distribution) from the Manchester
Metropolitan University in UK in 1993.

LAM Choi Ha, aged 35, is our Company Secretary responsible for
handling the company secretarial, compliance and financial affairs
of the Group. Ms. LAM joined us in November 2005 and was
promoted to be the Company Secretary in September 2010. Prior to
joining us, Ms. LAM has worked in the accountancy profession with
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. LAM obtained a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration from the Hong Kong Baptist University in
2001. Ms. LAM is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance into the management structure and the
internal control procedures of the Group so as to ensure that all
business activities of the Group and the decision making process
are properly regulated.

During the year under review, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Having made enquiry to all Directors, they all have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code during the year.

All Directors are also reminded not to deal in the securities of the
Company within 30 days and 60 days before the interim and the
annual results announcements respectively and prohibited to make
use of inside information to deal in the securities of the Company.

Inside Information Policy

The Board has adopted the Inside Information Policy in 2013
which contains the guidelines to the Directors, officers and certain
relevant employees of the Group to ensure that inside information
can be promptly identified, assessed and disseminated to the public
in equal and timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations.

During the year under review, the Company organised a training
session for the Directors and circulated the Inside Information
Policy to the officers and certain relevant employees of the Group
on the disclosure obligations under the new statutory regime of
inside information.
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Board of Directors

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the
Board.

The Board is responsible for governing the Group and
managing assets entrusted by the Shareholders. Its principal
responsibilities include formulating the Group’s business strategies
and management objectives, monitoring and overseeing the
performance of the Group, setting the Group’s values and
standards and ensuring a prudent and effective framework of
internal control is in place to enable risks to be assessed and
managed.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the Chief
Executive Officer and the management of the Group. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical details
and family relationships among the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 16 to 21.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to
the business operation and development of the Group.

All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their
duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing to the successful
performance of the Group.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly segregated.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy and his
principal role is to provide leadership for the Board on corporate
and strategic planning, ensure proper proceedings of the Board and
encourage all Directors to have active contributions to the Board’s
affairs.

The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. LEE Kwok Leung. Supported by
the other executive Directors and the management, his principal
role is to manage and operate the Group’s day-to-day business,
including the implementation of major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board.

Responsibilities, Accountability and Contribution of the
Board and Management

The management of the Company is led by the executive Directors
of the Board and has been delegated powers and authorities
to carry out the day-to-day operations of the Group; formulate
business policies and make decision on key business issues; and
exercise power and authority delegated by the Board from time to
time. The management assumes full accountability to the Board for
the operations of the Group.

The Board had given clear directions to the management, while
certain matters (including the following) must be reserved to the
Board for its approval:

(@) Publication of final and interim results of the Company;

(b) Decisions on whether or not to declare, recommend and pay
dividend;

(c) Changes to major group structure or Board composition;

(d) Notifiable or connected transactions within the meaning of
Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules; and

(e) Matters specifically set out in the Listing Rules which require
approval at a full Board Meeting.
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Relationship Between the Board Members

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”, none of the members of the
Board has any relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) between each other.

Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so
as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations as a director under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities.

During the year under review, the Company has arranged training
sessions to Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching Ping, Mr.
LEE Kwok Leung, Mr. CHEUNG Chi, Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai, Mr.
KWAN Kai Cheong and Mr. MA Ka Chun conducted by external
professional bodies to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills through suitable trainings. The participation in such trainings
is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors serve the function of bringing
independent judgment on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All of them have satisfied the independence criteria and the
Company confirmed that it has received an annual confirmation
from each of them pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors consider them to be independent.
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Certain committees have been set up under the Board to supervise
the management and administrative functions of the Group. They
include:

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 18
April 2006 with written terms of reference which were revised on
29 March 2009 and 9 March 2012 in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
of all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration. The Company’s
emolument policy is to ensure that the remuneration offered to
employees including executive Directors and senior management is
based on skills, knowledge, responsibilities and involvement in the
Company’s affairs. The remuneration packages are also determined
by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. The emolument policy for independent non-executive
Directors, mainly comprising directors’ fees, is subject to an annual
assessment with reference to the market standard. Individual
director and senior management would not be involved in deciding
their own remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has
assessed performance of the executive Directors and reviewed
and determined their remuneration packages. The remuneration
of Directors comprises basic salary, pensions and discretionary
bonus. Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors for the
year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 25(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

AE
Remuneration band: Number of individuals
—E-=F Z—E-_-F
2013 2012
Nil-HK$1,000,000 2
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1 2

Members of the Remuneration Committee comprise Dr. CHAN
Kwong Fai (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy and Mr. KWAN Kai
Cheong, two of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 18 April
2006 with written terms of reference which were revised on 29
March 2009, 9 March 2012 and 10 December 2013 in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the following:

(@) To review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, talents,
skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities
of Directors) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) Having regard to the board diversity policy of the Company,
to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

() To assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
directors;

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 27



¥ ERHME Corporate Governance Report

() EREZEREZTCLHRHNET
WRBEBRTRIABRENRR
5

() BFRIVBEASHRE - ARRE
REEET-ART UEREUE
BREEF LREAMERRLEN
ZPRHES UMtESSHE-

REBEFE ESECRNESEMEST
tHRE BIEBRESERESTLNA
E o EFERESTIBRBAMNT

(a) ESEHARSTEZERESI R
HESHBERERSKFEEERN
BH EFETRZTCHESEL
AHRFEZURENRBERRTE
BRRNERLR,

(b) ESERE ZRLBEEEBERZ
BEREAUNER  BEETRRES
WHR - FlR - XERBEBEES =
RKERE -7Te B AR BREF
HRHEMBER K

() MATEZENREREASHEE
BLHEZRE  TRIAREIXTNER
BEARABBEER BUKENGEE
FH -FEESERNELRELR
BREAITHESSTRNER
BAMA -

REBEFE BREAESEREZTIHE
H REZEETCHREERERINES
MESERHEZERMERZZESEARE
EJO

REZEERERESRRELE(ER) - %

BREERRABEL  EAMERABIE
HTES -

28 -z-=¢#g

KEEBEERERAFT

()

(f)

To monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy
and to review as appropriate, such a policy to ensure its
effectiveness; and

To review its own performance, constitution and terms of
reference at least once a year to ensure it is operating at
maximum effectiveness and recommend any changes it
considers necessary to the Board for approval.

During the year under review, the Board adopted a board diversity

policy which sets out its approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The summary of the board diversity policy is set out as follows:

(@)

(b)

(©)

The Board recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board with a view to enhancing its effectiveness
and achieving a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board also sees diversity as an essential element in
maintaining a competitive advantage and contributing to
the attainment of the strategic objectives and sustainable
development of the Company;

The Board believes that a diversity of perspectives can
be achieved through consideration of a number of factors,
including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, talents,
skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities of

Directors; and

These differences will be considered in determining the
optimum composition of the Board and when possible should
be balanced appropriately having regard to the Company’s
own business model and specific needs. The ultimate
decision of all Board appointments should be based on
meritocracy and the likely contributions that the selected

candidates will bring to the Board.

During the year under review, other than adopting the board

diversify policy, the Nomination Committee has recommended the

re-election of directors by rotation to the Board and approved the

change of composition of the Nomination Committee.

Members of the Nomination Committee comprise Mr. MA Ka Chun
(Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy and Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai, two
of whom are independent non-executive Directors.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 18 April 2006
with written terms of reference which were revised on 29 March
2009 and 9 March 2012 in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To recommend the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor, and to approve their
remuneration and terms of engagement;

(b)  To monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial statements,
annual reports and interim reports;

(c) To review the Group’s financial control, internal control and
risk management system;

(d) To discuss with the management the internal control system
and ensure that the management has performed its duty to
have an effective internal control system; and

(e) To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

In addition, the Audit Committee has been delegated by the
Board to be responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions that are listed as follows:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior

management;

(¢) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to our employees and Directors; and

() To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee in 2013:

. review of and recommendation for the Board’s approval of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 and unaudited interim consolidated financial
information for the six months ended 30 June 2013 with a
focus on compliance with accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and other requirements in relation to financial reporting;

. discussion with the external auditor and the management on
accounting policies and practices;

. review of the external auditor’s significant audit matters;

. review of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions;

. consider the adequacy of resources, qualification and
experience of staff of our Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and training programmes and budget;

. approval of the audit fees and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

. review of independence of the external auditor and
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor; and

. determine the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company and duties delegated by the Board.

Members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong
(Chairman), Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai and Mr. MA Ka Chun, all being
independent non-executive Directors.
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Attendance of Meetings

The Board holds regular Board meetings, Remuneration Committee
meeting, Nomination Committee meeting and Audit Committee
meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses, operations,
development and conduct. All important issues are discussed in
a timely manner. The attendance record of each Director at the
aforesaid meetings is set out below:

HE-Z-=F+-A=+-HLEEHE SERHESENRE
Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend

for the year ended 31 December 2013
FMzEe REZEE BHZEEE

EEZE8E BRRAS® =L =k =L
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board General Committee Committee = Committee
Meeting  Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
4/4 17 17 17 N/A
4/4 17 N/A 11 N/A
4/4 17 N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
4/4 17 N/A N/A N/A
34 17 17 17 1/2
4/4 17 17 N/A 2/2
4/4 17 N/A 11 2/2
12 N/A N/A 17 17
Notes:

Members of Remuneration Committee
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Members of Nomination Committee
Chairman of Nomination Committee
Members of Audit Committee
Chairman of Audit Committee

N o gk wbdhd =

Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee on 17 June 2013. Concurrently, Mr. MA Ka
Chun was appointed as the chairman of Nomination Committee
and in order to comply with Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code,
Mr. LAl Ching Ping also resigned as a member of the Nomination
Committee, so the Nomination Committee comprises a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.
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Responsibilities in respect of the Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have
been adopted. The principal accounting policies, which have been
consistently applied to all the years, adopted for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group are set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The reporting responsibility of the Company’s external auditor on

the financial statements of the Group is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 52 to 53 of this annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as

follows:
FET
R 7% 4 & Nature of services HK$°000
% E R Audit services 3,500
ERH R (M) Non-audit services (Note) 606
4106

B kRERBEEEHTHNBEN BT
BERF BREAEFEARKBEERY -
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Note: Non-audit services include review of interim financial information,
certain agreed-upon procedures, limited assurance engagement and
taxation related services.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control procedures
and for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system which includes financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities.
The Group’s internal control is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment
of business objective.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review
of, and is satisfied with, the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy in March 2012 and shall review it on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders mainly in the following ways:

(@) the holding of annual general meetings and extraordinary
general meetings, if any which may be convened for specific
purposes, which provide opportunities for the Shareholders
to communicate directly to the Board;

(b) the publication of announcements, annual reports, interim
reports and circulars on the websites of the Company and

the Stock Exchange;

(c) publication of press releases of the Company providing
updated information of the Group;

(d) the availability of latest information of the Group on the
Company’s website;

(e) the holding of investor/analyst briefings and media conference
from time to time; and

(f)  meeting with investors and analysts on a regular basis.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (“EGM”)

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2011 Revision) or the articles of association of
the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcomed to send their enquiries and concerns

to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary of the Company

through the following channels:

i) by mail to the Company’s head office at 6th Floor, Phase
6, Hong Kong Spinners Industrial Building, 481-483 Castle
Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong;

i) by email at ir@win-hanverky.com.hk; or

iy by fax at (852) 3544-3316.
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Voting by Poll

The articles of association of the Company set out the procedures,
requirements and circumstances where voting by poll is required.
Pursuant to Rule 13.39 of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands.

The poll results will be published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange as soon as possible after conclusion of
the general meeting, but in any event not later than the time that is
30 minutes before the earlier of the commencement of the morning
trading session or any pre-opening session on the business day
following the general meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these
documents are published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution
and retailing of garment products, including sportswear, golf and
high-end fashion apparel and related accessories. Sales are
primarily under an OEM arrangement to customers in Europe, North
America and Mainland China and distribution and retail modes in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this
report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 56 of
this report.

The Board recommended a payment of final dividend of HK4.0
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2013, subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on Thursday, 5 June 2014, payable to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Thursday, 12 June 2014. The dividend will be paid on or about
Monday, 23 June 2014.

The Board has also declared an interim dividend of HK3.0 cents
per Share for the six months ended 30 June 2013.
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Closures of Register of Members

For determining the entittement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Thursday,
5 June 2014, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 3 June 2014 to Thursday, 5 June 2014 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attendance and
voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all transfers of Shares of the Company accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong
share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor
Services Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
30 May 2014.

For determining the entittement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed on
Thursday, 12 June 2014, during which no transfer of Shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers of Shares of the Company accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong
share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor
Services Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 11 June 2014.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 58 to 59 of this report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distributions to Shareholders amounted to HK$981.6 million (2012:
HK$768.8 million). Details of movements in the reserves of the
Company are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Donation

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other
donations totaling HK$1,242,000.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year under review.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during the
financial year.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy
Mr. LAl Ching Ping
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung
Dr. CHOW Chi Wai
Mr. CHEUNG Chi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

Mr. MA Ka Chun

Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent (resigned on 17 June 2013)

As announced by the Company on 2 January 2014, Dr. CHOW
Chi Wai was appointed as an executive Director and the Chief
Operating Officer of the Company with effect from 2 January 2014,
whereas Mr. CHEUNG Chi has tendered his resignation as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 July 2014.

According to Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association, Dr. CHOW
Chi Wai, as a newly appointed Director, shall hold office until the
annual general meeting and be eligible for re-election.

According to Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. CHEUNG Chi, Mr. LEE Kwok Leung and Dr. CHAN Kwong
Fai shall retire at the annual general meeting by rotation and be
eligible to offer themselves for re-election as a Director. Given
Mr. CHEUNG Chi has tendered his resignation as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 July 2014, he did not
offer himself for re-election. Mr. LEE Kwok Leung and Dr. CHAN
Kwong Fai offered themselves for re-election as a Director at the
annual general meeting.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 16 to 21.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and is subject to termination by
either party giving not less than six months’ written notice. Under
the service contracts, each of the executive Directors is entitled
to an annual discretionary management bonus in respect of each
complete financial year of the Group as the Board may approve.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company with a fixed term of office
for three years which is determinable by either party giving not less
than three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
information on Directors are as follows:

Pursuant to the supplemental service agreements entered into with
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching Ping, Mr. LEE Kwok Leung
and Dr. Chow Chi Wai during 14 March 2012 and 27 March
2014, all their monthly remunerations have been adjusted with
retrospective effect from 1 January 2014 with reference to
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. The updated monthly remunerations of Mr. LI Kwok
Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching Ping, Mr. LEE Kwok Leung and Dr.
Chow Chi Wai are HK$307,100, HK$259,800, HK$167,800 and
HK$145,600 respectively. Further, as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 2 January 2014, Mr. LEE Kwok Leung was
redesignated from Chief Operating Officer to the Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. LAl Ching Ping ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer
and Dr. CHOW Chi Wai was appointed as the Chief Operating
Officer, all with effect from 2 January 2014. Other terms of the
service contracts of these Directors remained unchanged.
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Name of Directors

FEREE
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy

REYRE
Mr. LAI Ching Ping
ZERELE

Mr. LEE Kwok Leung

BAEE#EL
Dr. CHOW Chi Wai

RERLE
Mr. CHEUNG Chi
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Directors’ Disclosure of Interests

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive(s) of the Company (if any) in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which any such director or chief executive has taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(@) Long positions in the Shares of the Company

Lignig ¢! BEAREZE I
Number of Percentage of interest

Capacity Shares in the Company*
REREAEEER 743,769,967 58.64%
Interest in a controlled corporation (B=E1)

(Note 1)
ERERA 4,186,000 0.33%
Beneficial owner
EEEBA 2,000,000 0.16%
Beneficial owner (Mt &E2)

(Note 2)
ERERA 26,118,000 2.06%
Beneficial owner (Hft 5£3)

(Note 3)
ERERA 10,650,000 0.84%
Beneficial owner (BF&E4)

(Note 4)

* The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2013.
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Directors’ Disclosure of Interests (Continued)

(@) Long positions in the Shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy holds 70% of the issued share capital
of Quinta Asia Limited (“Quinta”). Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy has
a controlling interest in Quinta and is therefore deemed to be
interested in Quinta’s interest in the Company for the purposes
of the SFO.

Mr. LEE Kwok Leung is interested as a grantee of options
to subscribe for 2,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Dr. CHOW Chi Wai is interested in 17,118,000 Shares held
and is also interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for
9,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi is interested in 650,000 Shares held and
is also interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for

10,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(b) Long positions in the shares of the Associated

HEEINHIBROLER Corporation of the Company (as defined in the
SFO)
ff 18 Bt 3
EHZEAE
Percentage
iED BROEE of interest in
Expns Associated g Number of associated
Name of Directors corporation Capacity shares corporation
ZEREE Quinta BEREAA 7 70%
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy Beneficial owner

REFELE Quinta EREEA 3 30%

Mr. LAI Ching Ping

BREXFBEEN RZB-=F+
ZA=T-RH EE BESTBRAER
REREMNBEALEEERHFES
BEARARERBER(ERRES
RBERMEXVENRG - HER
DRESNEMEZRLE
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Beneficial owner

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none
of the Directors, chief executive(s) or any of their respective

associates had any interest or short position, whether

beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares, the underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2013, as far as the Directors were aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive(s)
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

RHEFEE Long positions in the Shares
{2 A 7] &
BAED >
Approximate
KR#PEE percentage of
£ 51 Number of interest in the
Name Capacity Shares Company*
Quinta EREEA 743,769,967 58.64%

Beneficial owner

Templeton Asset Management REKE 177,664,732 14.01%

Limited

* EOLTIBREBER-Z-Z5+ZA=1+-HE
#471,268,400,000% iR 13 5T & ©

RENFREEN RZE-ZH5+Z/=
T—-B ARFUEEBREFAL(RARTE
ERBEETHRAERMEN  RTEAX
REAROREERONEZIXETMEARE
BHERPERPEXVEIE2R3D HHI & X
BARAREAREEZSRPEKHF336
HRAZREREARTDEFNELEMA -

Investment manager

* The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded
in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Pre-IPO Share Options

In recognition of the contributions made by employees and a
consultant of the Group towards its growth and success, on 10
May 2006, Pre-IPO Share Options (the exercise of which would
entitle these grantees to an aggregate of 44,400,000 Shares) have
been granted by the Company to, and accepted by, among others,
certain employees.

Movements of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year ended 31
December 2013 are as follows:

BEROMERABRENE

ﬁﬂﬁfﬂ?@ Number of Pre-IPO Share Options
Exercise
price R-ZB—=% RERTE REARXHK R=ZZB-=%
per Share TEHRE —HA—H Exercised Lapsed +=A=+—H
ABRA Br BEAH Exercise As at during during As at
Grantee HK$ Vesting date period 01/01/2013 the year the year 31/12/2013
ZEREE 2.28 06/09/2006 06/09/2006— 404,000 — — 404,000
HITEE 09/05/2016
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 804,000 — - 804,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 792,000 — — 792,000
09/05/2016
2,000,000 — — 2,000,000
AEEG LW 1.14 30/06/2008 30/06/2008— 9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
Dr. CHOW Chi WaiNete) 09/05/2016
9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
REXE 1.596 06/09/2006 06/09/2006— 1,960,000 — — 1,960,000
HITEE 09/05/2016
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 3,960,000 — — 3,960,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 4,080,000 — — 4,080,000
09/05/2016
10,000,000 — — 10,000,000
wat 21,000,000 — — 21,000,000
Total
MiE: BAEEEIE-ZT-NF-F-AEEZ Note: Dr. CHOW Chi Wai was appointed as an executive Director with

EAYTES-
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effect from 2 January 2014.
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EE2HE Report of the Directors

Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)

A summary of the principal conditions attached to the Pre-IPO
Share Options is set out below:

1. Consideration

A cash consideration of HK$1.00 has been paid by each
grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Options.

2. Option Period

Subject to other conditions as set out below, 10 years from
the date of the offer of the respective Pre-IPO Share Options
unless extended in writing by the Board (and approved by
the Independent Non-Executive Directors) in its absolute
discretion. Each of the Pre-IPO Share Options (to the extent
not already exercised) shall lapse automatically at the end of
such option period.

3. Exercised Periods and Exercise Price

As set out on page 44.

4. Other Conditions

The grant and/or exercise of each of the Pre-IPO Share
Options is subject to the following additional conditions:

(@) the Pre-IPO Share Option cannot be exercised within
the first six months after the commencement of dealings
in the Shares;

(b) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option may be
made in part or in full subject to any further restrictions
imposed by the Company, the Stock Exchange and/or
the sponsor to the Company’s listing as any of them
see fit for the purposes of obtaining the Stock Exchange
approval to the listing of and permission to deal in the
Shares;

() any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall be
further subject to any guidelines issued by the Company
from time to time in order to ensure full compliance with
the Listing Rules;
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Pre-IPO Share Options (continued)

4.

Other Conditions (Continued)

(d)

()

(f)

the Pre-IPO Share Option is personal to the relevant

grantee and may not be transferred or assigned;

the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent not already

exercised) shall lapse at the expiry of the option period

as described in paragraph 2 above or otherwise in the

following manner:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the grantee’s personal representatives (if any)
may exercise the Pre-IPO Share Option within
12 months from his death, upon the expiry of
which the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent
not already exercised) shall lapse automatically
unless extended by the Board in its absolute
discretion;

the grantee’s right to exercise the Pre-IPO Share
Option shall not be affected by his/its cessation
of employment, unless such cessation of
employment arises from any serious misconduct,
bankruptcy or conviction of any criminal offence
involving integrity or honesty, in which case the
Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent not already
exercised) shall lapse automatically on the his/its

last date of employment with the Group;

if the grantee breaches any term or condition of
the Pre-IPO Share Option as described herein,
the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent not
already exercised) shall lapse automatically
(unless otherwise directed by the Board in writing

in its absolute discretion); and

the grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall adhere

to any undertakings or restrictions that may be further

imposed on them by the Stock Exchange or the sponsor

to the Company’s listing.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on 8
August 2006, the Company has established a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) whereby the Board may, at their discretion, invite any
Directors, employees, consultants, professionals, customers, suppliers,
agents, partners or advisers of or contractors to the Group (subject
to the eligibility requirements as set out therein). The total number of
Shares available for issue under the Scheme and any other schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Listing Date unless further Shareholders’ approval
has been obtained. In addition, the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised at any time under the Scheme and any other schemes
adopted by the Group shall not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. No options may be granted
under the Scheme or any other schemes adopted by the Group if
the grant of such option will result in the limit being exceeded. The
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
the options granted and to be granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12 months’ period up to the date of grant
to a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-executive director
or their associates would not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue or an
aggregate value of HK$5,000,000 unless further Shareholders’ approval
has been obtained; and to each other eligible person would not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that eligible participants have made or may make to the
Group. It also provides the eligible participants with an opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company with a view to (a)
motivate the eligible participants to optimise the performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (b) attract and retain or
otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship with the eligible
participants whose contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial
to the Group.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 7 August 2016. The exercise price of options shall be
determined by the Board and shall not be less than the highest of
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the options and
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer and the nominal value of a
Share. An option may be exercised at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not be more than ten years
from the date of grant of the option subject to the provisions of
early termination thereof.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The accounting policy adopted for the share options is described
in Note 2.22(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2013, no share options had been granted or
were outstanding under this scheme.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in Mainland
China, Vietnam and Cambodia and certain Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes for the employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of
these retirement plans are set out in Note 25(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major
customers and suppliers respectively for the year ended 31
December 2013 were as follows:

HREEI L

HEERS L % of

% of Sales Purchases

The largest customer/supplier 80.4% 13.6%
Five largest customers/suppliers 87.3% 30.7%

To the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholder owning more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has any interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers as disclosed
above.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions, disclosed in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, required to be disclosed in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirement as
applicable to the following continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected parties
(as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been
entered into and/or ongoing for which relevant announcements, if
necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

(A) Sales to Amerseas Enterprises Limited
(“Amerseas”)

Each of Bowker Garment Accessories Company Limited
(“Bowker Accessories”) and Win Hanverky Textile Limited
(“Win Textile”), the subsidiaries of our Company, has entered
into a master agreement with Amerseas on 16 November
2011 for a term of three years ending 31 December 2014,
pursuant to which (i) Bowker Accessories and its subsidiaries
(“Bowker Accessories Group”) agreed to supply garment
accessories to Amerseas and its subsidiaries (“Amerseas
Group”); and (ii) Win Textile agreed to supply fabrics to
Amerseas.

TSG BVI is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of our
Company, hence it is a Connected Person. Amerseas is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of TSG BVI, therefore it is an
associate of TSG BVI, hence it is also a Connected Person
of our Company.

Our sales by Bowker Accessories Group and Win Textile
to the Amerseas Group amounted to approximately
HK$6,601,000 and Nil respectively for the year ended
31 December 2013, which did not exceed the relevant
annual caps disclosed in the announcement dated

8 August 2013.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions made during
the year ended 31 December 2013 and confirmed that these
transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Company than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

(3) in accordance with each of the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in
previous announcements.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on page 49 of this annual
report in accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the accounting period covered by this
annual report. Principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 22 to 35 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
report.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2014.

By order of the Board

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
LI Kwok Tung Roy

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WIN HANVERKY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Win
Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 201, which comprise
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Bk KB

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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RZZBE—-=F+ZH=+—H As at 31 December 2013

&bt E N
Consolidated Company
R-B-=% R=-E-=F R-B-=% R=-E-=F
t+=A=+-B +=ZA=+-B +=A=+-B +ZA=+-H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
it &E FHx FEx FHx FEx
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
T AR Land use rights 6 114,037 19,226 - —
ME - HERRE Property, plant and equipment 7 674,212 628,914 — —
BRREE Intangible assets 8 219,428 60,538 - —
REARNRE Investments in subsidiaries 9 - — 1,387,356 1,433,093
REEQATNERE Investments in associates 10 40,585 38,032 = —
EEMBHERE Deferred income tax assets 19 10,160 10,827 - —
BRAFEFABRREEN Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 11(a) - 33,354 - —
EXF-HEELT Loans to an associate 14 = 173,493 = —
B B RE R H b BRI Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables 14 82,006 24,703 - —
1,140,428 989,087 1,387,356 1,433,093
RBEE Current assets
& Inventories 12 587,032 450,999 — —
ERESERARER Trade and bills receivable 13 359,015 325,697 - —
AT W BD A P8 B Current income tax recoverables 536 827 - —
B BARERH R BUR S Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables 14 74,175 65,580 979 31,030
EEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 15 4,281 1,244 - —
EEHREB=MANRTEN Bank deposits with initial terms of over
three months 15 5,000 30,100 - —
BeRBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15 871,998 946,565 418,068 378,016
1,902,037 1,821,012 419,047 409,046
CRIBEEBREERIABFHELE  Assets of discontinued operations and
EENEMERDEE other non-current asset classified as
held for sale 32 7,392 25,447 - —
1,909,429 1,846,459 419,047 409,046
RBaE Current liabilities
ENESRERARES Trade and bills payable 16 335,208 271,836 - —
JE 5t IR 7R R HL b FE 3 0k 3% Accruals and other payables 17 236,333 281,250 7,548 7,461
BEMmEHAaRE Current income tax liabilities 41,509 45,961 3,143 6,136
BE Borrowings 18 154,710 12,396 - —
MEBARIFZRBRRNER Loans from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries 37 7,775 7,500 - —
K BARRE Amounts due to subsidiaries 37 - — 149,707 395,224
775,535 618,943 160,398 408,821
BRIEESEEBEE Liabilities of discontinued operations 32 7,355 6,070 - —
782,890 625,013 160,398 408,821

FOIZ20MENME B M BEHER -

7z e
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RZZE—-=F+ZHF=+—H As at 31 December 2013

&t ADHE
Consolidated Company
R-B-=% R=Z-=F R-B-=% R=T-=F
t=A=t-B +t=ZA=+-A +=ZA=t-H +=A=t+-8

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
Lig=3 FTHET FER FERT FER
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
RBEETE Net current assets 1,126,539 1,221,446 258,649 225
BEERTHAR Total assets less current liabilities 2,266,967 2,210,533 1,646,005 1,433,318
kRBEME Non-current liabilities
EEFRESHAR Deferred income tax liabilities 19 35,222 10,939 - —
FEE Net assets 2,231,745 2,199,594 1,646,005 1,433,318
[+ Equity
FRARBEEABGEEERREE Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company
B Share capital 20 126,840 126,840 126,840 126,840
% Reserves 21 1,017,543 987,352 1,204,552 1,204,552
REEF Retained earnings 21
— BIRAREERE — Proposed final dividends 50,736 50,736 50,736 50,736
— Hfty — Others 1,052,775 991,473 263,877 51,190
2,247,894 2,156,401 1,646,005 1,433,318
FERER Non-controlling interests (16,149) 43,193 - —
B Total equity 2,231,745 2,199,594 1,646,005 1,433,318

FIZ201EN M T BA M BERE — I The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 201 are an integral part
Do of these consolidated financial statements.

N

SHHK RET
LI Kwok Tung Roy LAI Ching Ping
EZE EZE
Director Director
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&3 F)H*®X Consolidated Income Statement
BZ-Z-=F+=-A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2013

—E-=F —E-——F

2013 2012
Mt 5 TERT FTAR
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BELEEE Continuing operations
I &2 Revenue 5 2,951,279 2,961,474
HEMK Cost of sales 24 (2,208,093) (2,317,875)
EA Gross profit 743,186 643,599
HER D HHKAK Selling and distribution costs 24 (166,023) (105,188)
—BRITBEAX General and administrative expenses 24 (452,477) (371,748)
Htg A Other income 22 4,414 2,213
Htlh & — FE Other gains — net 23 15,499 3,181
mEwy Operating profit 144599 . 172,057
BMEWA Finance income 26 16,724 26,766
& & AR Finance costs 26 (2,949) (2,313)
BEWA —FE Finance income —mnet 13,775 24453
BiEBERER Share of profits of associates 10 ... 4198 4249
BRETSHAIER Profit before income tax 162,572 200,759
FriE®imx% Income tax expense 27 (38,179) (36,601)
BFELEEBRER Profit from continuing operations 124,393 164,158
ERIEREER Discontinued operations
ERIEREEBEE Loss from discontinued operations 32 (8,888) (44,131)
FRiEFl Profit for the year 115,505 120,027
RN Attributable to:
RARREFEA Equity holders of the Company 151,205 150,185
FERER Non-controlling interests (35,700) (30,158)
115,505 120,027
AAFREZLEAELEEE Earnings per share from continuing
BERKEXBEREBAL operations and discontinued
REXBZEREF operations attributable to the equity
(AR EMLE) holders of the Company during the
year (expressed in HK cents per share)
— B — basic 29 11.9 11.8
—#E — diluted 29 11.9 11.8
KRE Dividends 30 88,788 88,788

FOIZ201EN M A B HMBERER - The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 201 are an integral part
il of these consolidated financial statements.
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£ 2HEWER Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HE-Z-=ZF+=-B=+—HILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2013

—E-=F —E-C-F

2013 2012
Mt 5 TERT FTERT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBER Profit for the year 115,505 120,027
H fth 2 [ W & Other comprehensive income
HREEHN 7 BZEFEEE Items that may be reclassified to
wEE profit or loss
EhEE A ARAEM2EYE Share of other comprehensive income
of associates 21 695 773
EMBEEMH Currency translation differences 16,030 4,948
FREERELE Total comprehensive income
for the year 132,230 125,748
UTATEEZ2EWZEEE . Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
RATRESEA Equity holders of the Company 166,903 155,577
FERES Non-controlling interests (34,673) (29,829)
132,230 125,748
KRR EZEEAELEEE Total comprehensive income
hEBEELER: attributable to equity holders
of the Company from:
FECEER Continuing operations 154,613 172,113
CDRIEEEER Discontinued operations 12,290 (16,536)
166,903 155,577

EO1Z201E WM X B & 6F B B 3R & — 36 The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 201 are an integral part
e of these consolidated financial statements.
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EHEREEHR Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZZ-=F+ZA=+t—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2013

ARRAREFEAERMS
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

B FEER

Share % 5
capital Reserves Non- RS
(MfaE20) (Bt &E21) #5t  controlling Total
(Note 20) (Note 21) Total interests equity

THET TBr FTER FTER TBr
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

R-ZBE—-—F—-F—HH#%E Balance at 1 January 2012 126,840 1,950,088 2,076,928 74160 2,151,088
2HEKHE Comprehensive income
FREHN/(FB) Profit/(loss) for the year — 150,185 150,185 (30,158) 120,027
Hir2mEk & Other comprehensive income
EMBREES Currency translation differences — 4,619 4,619 329 4,948
EEEEATHEM2EWE Share of other comprehensive
income of associates — 773 773 — 773
Hitt2EKFLE Total other comprehensive
income — 5,392 5,392 329 5,721
2HGEETE Total comprehensive income — 155,577 155,577 (29,829) 125,748
HEFBARS Transactions with owners
mMEA R FEREE Dividends paid to non-controlling
XERE interests of subsidiaries — — — (1,138) (1,138)
2R E Dividend paid
— Bk — 2011 final —  (38,052)  (38,052) — (38,052)
— ZE-—fFhH — 2012 interim —  (38,052) (38,052) —  (38,052)
HEEEBARZAE Total transactions with owners — (76,104)  (76,104) (1,138)  (77,242)

R-ZZ-=-f+=-HA=+—H Balance at 31 December 2012
B9 & 8k 126,840 2,029,561 2,156,401 43193 2,199,594

FOIZ201EMK B A O B B R & — 26 The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 201 are an integral part

~

e of these consolidated financial statements.
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EHEZEER Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z—-=5+"A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2013

ARRREFEAEMN
Attributable to equity holders of
the Company

R A FER

Share e B
capital Reserves Non- mER
(Kt =£20) (Bt &¥21) #3+ controlling Total
(Note 20) (Note 21) Total interests equity

TER TER TERT TERT TERT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000

R-ZE-=%—-F—HW4&# Balance at 1 January 2013 126,840 2,029,561 2,156,401 43,193 2,199,594
2EKE Comprehensive income
EREAN/(FE) Profit/(loss) for the year - 151,205 151,205 (35,700) 115,505
Hth 2 @K & Other comprehensive income
EMBREER Currency translation differences - 15,003 15,003 1,027 16,030
EHEEATHEMEEUE Share of other comprehensive

income of associates - 695 695 - 695
Htt2 AW E A Total other comprehensive

income - 15,698 15,698 1,027 16,725
2EKEAE Total comprehensive income - 166,903 166,903 (34,673) 132,230
BEBARS Transactions with owners
e B8 B 8 0 =) (Bf 3£36) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) - - - (8,844) (8,844)

EEHEEZEHBERTHE Changes in ownership interests in
NEEERERNEE subsidiaries without change of

(Mf3£35) control (Note 35) - 13,378 13,378  (13,378) -
M EARFEERER Dividends paid to non-controlling

THRE interests of subsidiaries - - - (2,447) (2,447)
2RRE Dividend paid

— ZE-—FXH — 2012 final —  (50,736)  (50,736) - (50,736)

— ZE-ZEdqH — 2013 interim - (38,052) (38,052) - (38,052)
HBEBARZHAE Total transactions with owners - (75,410) (75,410) (24,669) (100,079)

R=—Z2-=£+=-BF=+—H Balance at 31 December 2013
1 4 &4 126,840 2,121,054 2,247,894 (16,149) 2,231,745

BO1Z201EMN B A ERE - The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 201 are an integral part
Do of these consolidated financial statements.
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EHEEARER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEZZ-=F+ZA=+t—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2013

—E-=F —E-ZF

2013 2012
{1 TER TER
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
RELERASLRE Cash flows from operating activities
REMBRE Cash generated from operations 31(a) 129,078 491,738
BRHE Interest paid (2,949) (2,330)
EREEFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (50,091) (59,554)
BERFPERECERSEH Mainland China enterprise income tax paid (4,174) (3,930)
REGHNFER Overseas income tax refunded - 24
REXBREREEE Net cash generated from operating activities 71,864 425,948
REEZBHHELRE Cash flows from investing activities
WEMB AT MBRAEESE  Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 36 26,728 —
WENBLARESKEERES Settlement of consideration payable for acquisition of
subsidiaries - (30,359)
EXRT-HEBHEDLA Loans to an associate - (53,824)
2 WFE Interest received 14,163 13,223
BEWE KBERZE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (147,991) (123,700)
T AR Payment for land use right (77,000) —
HENE  BERDEMBHE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 31(b) 609 1,217
BEEFEE Purchase of intangible asset 8 (800) —
HEBERENE Proceeds from disposal of trademarks 32(b) 49,140 —
BEBRTEZOEM,BD (Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits 15 (3,002) 587
EEHREB=MANETER  Decreasel(increase) in bank deposits with initial terms of over
"D/ (Em) three months 25,947 (20,149)
CREENTRE Dividends received from associates 2,340 —
RETEHMERAESFE Net cash used in investing activities (109,866) (213,005)
REETHRLRFE Cash flows from financing activities
ERBBEORTEREM Increase in trust receipt import bank loan, net
— FH 1,074 7,737
RITEEMBNE Proceeds from bank borrowings 42,900 —
BERTEN Repayment of bank loans (152) —
ERFERERTEBRD Decrease in amount due to non-controlling interests (1,089) —
BREAAREFEARS Dividends paid to the Company’s equity holders (88,788) (76,104)
ENFEEREERE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (2,447) (1,138)
REFHMERLFE Net cash used in financing activities (48,502) (69,505)
BERBEEEBYWOAD) /EFEHE Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (86,504) 143,438
FORERREZEEN Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 946,565 800,552
HeRBELSENERKE Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 11,937 2,575
ERBESRBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15 871,998 946,565

FIZ201EN M T BB HRER — B The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 201 are an integral part
pall of these consolidated financial statements.
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SR EMERMET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are engaged in the
manufacturing and selling of garment products, including
sportswear, golf and high-end fashion apparel, and related
accessories. Sales are primarily under Original Equipment
Manufacturing (“OEM”) arrangements to customers in
Europe, North America and Mainland China, and under
distribution and retail modes in Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Taiwan and Singapore. Its production bases are primarily
located in Mainland China, Vietnam and Cambodia. Details
of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note
9 to these consolidated financial statements.

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap.22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the Company’s board of
directors on 27 March 2014.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

241

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with  HKFRS
accounting estimates. It also requires management

requires the use of certain critical

to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

(@) The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2013.

— HKAS 1 (Amendment),
Financial Statements’, is effective for annual

‘Presentation of

periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
The amendments require the Group to group
the items presented in ‘other comprehensive
income’ on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments).
The Group has presented its financial

statements in accordance to this standard.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

241

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) The following amendments to standards are

mandatory for the first time for the financial year

beginning 1 January 2013. (Continued)

— HKAS

19 (Amendment), ‘Employee

Benefits’, is effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2013. This

is not currently applicable to the Group,

as the Group does not contribute to any

defined benefit plan.

— HKAS 27 (Revised 2011),

‘Separate

Financial Statements’, is effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013. It does not have significant impact to

the Group.

— HKAS 28 (Revised 2011), ‘Associates and

Joint Ventures’,

is effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013. These amendments do not have

significant financial impact to the Group.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@)

The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2013. (Continued)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment), ‘First-time adoption
of HKFRSs
effective for annual periods beginning on

— Government Loans’, is

or after 1 January 2013. This amendment
does not have significant impact to the
Group.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial
— Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’,

Instruments: Disclosure
is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. The amendments
introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting and they do not have significant
financial impact to the Group.

HKFRS 10,
Statements’, is effective for annual periods

‘Consolidated Financial

beginning on or after 1 January 2013. It
does not have significant impact to the
Group.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

241

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) The following amendments to standards are

mandatory for the first time for the financial year

beginning 1 January 2013. (Continued)

2013 Annual Report

HKFRS 11, ‘Joint Arrangements’, is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013. This is not currently
applicable to the Group, as the Group has
no joint arrangements.

HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities’, is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013. This includes extended disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, structured entities and other
off balance sheet vehicles. This applies to
the investments in subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests of the Group. Details
are included in Note 9(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@)

The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2013. (Continued)

HKFRS 13,
is effective for annual periods beginning

‘Fair Value Measurements’,

on or after 1 January 2013. The standard
provides guidance on how to measure fair
value when it is required or permitted by
other HKFRSs and extended disclosure
requirements. This applies to the fair value
through profit or loss investments held by
the Group, which are measured at fair value.
Details are included in Note 3.3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20, ‘Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine’, is
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. This is not currently
applicable to the Group, as the Group does
not engage in mining activities.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

241

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards,

amendments/

revisions to standards and interpretation have

been issued, but are not effective for the financial

year beginning 1 January 2013 and have not
been early adopted.

2013 Annual Report

HKAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Defined Benefit
Plans’ (effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014)

HKAS 32
Instruments: Presentation

‘Financial
— Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’

(Amendment),

(effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014)

HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of
Assets’ (effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014)

HKAS 39
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

(Amendment), ‘Financial

— Novation of Derivatives and Hedge

Accounting’ (effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014)
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new standards, amendments/
revisions to standards and interpretation have
been issued, but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2013 and have not

been early adopted. (Continued)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments),
‘Mandatory Effective Date and Transition
Disclosures’ (effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2015)

HKFRS 9,
Classification and Measurement’ (effective

‘Financial Instruments:

for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015)

HKFRS 9 (Amendment),
Instruments — General Hedge Accounting’
(effective periods to be determined)

‘Financial

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
7, ‘Exemption from Consolidation for
Investment Entities’ (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014)
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

241

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

©

2013 Annual Report

The following new standards, amendments/
revisions to standards and interpretation have
been issued, but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2013 and have not

been early adopted. (Continued)

—  HKFRS 14, ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’
(effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016)

—  HK(IFRIC)—Int 21, ‘Levies’ (effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014)

— HKFRSs
improvement 2012-2013 Cycle (effective for

(Amendment), Annual
the periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these new standards
and amendments to standards and is not yet
in a position to state whether they will have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

Certain comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gain on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
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Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of

acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for

within equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@)

(b)

2013 Annual Report

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration
interest

transferred, non-controlling

recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is

recognised directly in the income statement.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

()

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at

cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct

attributable costs of investment. The results of

subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 75



S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

76

EESHHEREw@W

2.3

—E-ZFEER

i A= RNCIE )

AEERERBRNENIE
BRABRPER  MREMER
HREFRERBRNZBRE
Httz2ARBEPHRIALHRE
MIEESBERARRAE - EX
SEREMELCTABRENAK
RAEBE AT NEDS (BEE
] E A 48 35 49 2 P8 WRIR KD B
AEBTBRIE-SNES
BRIEFAEEELEREERR
FERABLELTNR

AREREBREANETRER
TREBEBEREIRBELTZ
REAHBERE - HHELER &K
SESHESRFABELT 2
WO HEEAHREE =8
AEURABRIEG BB
ENERAN I BAEHEEE -

AREEEBEQNTZEN L
ETHERZMELEZRNRER
ERRNEMBREEGBHELT
CHEEEASENEHERTR
ReBRIBZREBBEBERMR
BECEELRRE  SRKRE
REBRSTUHE  -BEQT2
S BRMETECEEHE
DR BAKEFRRAZBR
_;Zé&o

BEATRENBERERB
BERANBRER -

KEEBEERERAFT

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain and losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.4

2.5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive
Committee comprising the executive directors who

make strategic decisions.
Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (HK$), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income

statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statement
within ‘other gains — net’.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising

are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly manufacturing
factories and offices. Leasehold land classified as
finance leases and all other property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress represents buildings and
leasehold improvements in which construction work
has not been completed and plant, machinery and
equipment pending for installation. It is carried at
cost which includes construction expenditures and
other direct costs less any impairment losses. On
completion, construction in progress is transferred
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until it is completed and available for use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Freehold land with unlimited useful life is not
depreciated. Leasehold land classified as finance
lease commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Over the lease
as finance lease terms

— Leasehold land classified

— Buildings 10 to 50 years
3 to 10 years or

over the lease

— Leasehold improvements

terms, whichever

is shorter

— Plant and machinery 4 to 10 years
3 to 10 years

5 to 10 years

— Furniture and equipment
— Motor vehicles and yacht

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘other gains — net’ in the income
statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.7 Land use rights

2.8

The up-front prepayments made for land use rights are

accounted for as operating leases. They are expensed

in the income statement on a straight-line basis over

the periods of the lease, or when there is impairment,

the impairment is expensed in the income statement.

Intangible assets

(a)

2013 Annual Report

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group’s interest
in, net fair value of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree
and the fair value of the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at

the operating segment level.

Goodwill
annually or more frequently if events or changes

impairment reviews are undertaken

in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 81



S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

82

EESHHEREw@W

2.8

—E-ZFEER

BEEE @
b) BERZEER

(c)

EBUBNEEREERE
ThAE £ AT IR o 3%
BEHPUBNEERE
ERDEUBERNAY
BRI -BEREEERE
RERABMR LK AR
R BER RS RERR
(MA)FIk - BHHUE
BETE  UREERE
EROEAREETAE
BEHQE205) kD
[

EFHEF

EFRRNEXBSHHE
BNEFERREETFN
RAGHREBRGENAYT
B ZRERKERRE
AVERR - SHNEFH
BHEARRAUEREH
AR R HERR
ATREEBETIR - BET
EREREINEFPHEEZ
R FHAE -

KEEBEERERAFT

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.8

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Trademarks and licence rights

Separately acquired trademarks and licence rights
are shown at historical cost. Trademarks and
licences acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Trademarks and licences have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and licences over their estimated

useful lives of 2 to 20 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships represent the fair value
attributable to the customer base or existing
bids with customers taken over
as a result of business combination, and are

contractual

recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

The contractual customer relations have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected

life of the customer relationship.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
associates and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation, and are tested at least annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
The
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs

exceeds its recoverable amount. recoverable
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an

impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
Financial assets
Classification

The Group classified its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

@

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or expected to be
settled more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprised loan receivables, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank deposits
with initial terms of over three months, and cash

and cash equivalents in the balance sheet.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘other gains — net’ in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1

212

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.13 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-

for-sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and
a sale is considered highly probable. The non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
(or disposal groups), are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates) and investment properties, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographic area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented in the income statement,
which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.



SR EMERMET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

EESHHEMEw@m

2.14

2.15

2.16

"

FEENBARAEZRFEME
FHBREESIIR o RAEMETF
SRR E o R RERRNK
AEEEME EEATL Hftr
EERAREBEERX(RE
EREEEBREN  HTEH
BERAR - JRRFENRER
EBNMETEE  REAENT
ERHEEMXE-

FEW & 50k R K% H b Bl

R X

BUEZERABEAEXRBBE
L6 R P 4R AR A R R
BEFZHE - HEREZIRAR
Htt BRIRRRA TR —FHz
N (HHEEER  AIER
BEREERAH)  M2EAR
BDEE - RER-—FH 2K
o RUFERBEERS -

FE U B 5 iR K K H £t FE U TR %
IBRLOFEAR  HRBEABR
FEERBHEAALNRRE
BEAR -

ReRATEEY

RefRERERT  RERR
TEENERFEREREEY
RAE=MBEAIUATHRITENE
RRAEtEHERDESRE -

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

217

2.18

2.19

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-

current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, and the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility
to which it relates.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

219

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

2.20 Borrowing costs

2.21

General and specific borrowing costs directly

attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is

settled.
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SR EMERMET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

2013 Annual Report

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only where there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference not

recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balance on a net
basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations
Group companies operate several defined
contribution retirement schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the

future payments is available.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

2013 Annual Report

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

. excluding the impact of any service and

non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

. including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

Bonus plans

The Group
expense for bonuses. It recognises a provision

recognises a liability and an
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for

annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(e) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earliest of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.23 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Wholesales sales of goods are recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time of the payment
in cash or by credit cards for retail sale or the
time of delivery for wholesale.

Retail sales of goods are recognised when the
Group sells a product to the customer. Retail sales
are usually in cash or by credit card.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

2013 Annual Report

Subcontracting income

Subcontracting income is recognised when

subcontracting services are provided.
Concessionaire sales service income
income is

Concessionaire sales service
recognised when the sales services are provided.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.25 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.27 Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’s equity holders
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors where appropriate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.28 Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and
other bodies on behalf of subsidiaries or associates to
secure loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.
The Group does not recognise liabilities for financial
guarantees at inception, but performs a liability
adequacy test at each reporting date by comparing its
net liability regarding the financial guarantee with the
amount that would be required if the financial guarantee
were to result in a present legal or constructive
obligation. If the liability is less than the amount of
the present legal or constructive obligation, the entire
in the income statement

difference is recognised

immediately.

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and, where
considered necessary, seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group has not used derivative financial instruments
to hedge its risk exposures to changes in foreign

currency exchange rates and interest rates.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the Chinese Renminbi and United
States Dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities, and net investments in foreign
operations.

As at 31 December 2013, if Chinese Renminbi
had strengthened by 5% (2012: 5%) against
the Hong Kong Dollars with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year and equity
holders’ equity would have been approximately
HK$16,828,000 (2012: HK$16,984,000) higher
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains on
translation of Chinese Renminbi denominated
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other

receivables, and trade and other payables.

The foreign currency exchange exposure on
assets and liabilities denominated in United States
Dollars is considered to be minimal as Hong
Kong Dollars is currently pegged to United States
Dollars.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

2013 Annual Report

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures
to customers, including outstanding receivables
and committed transactions.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the
unfavourable economic conditions and the lower
liquidity situation which could in turn impact their
ability to repay the amounts owed to the Group.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors
may also have an impact on management’s cash
flow forecasts and assessment of the impairment
of receivables. To the extent that information is
available, management has properly reflected
updated estimates of expected future cash flows
in their impairment assessments.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. It performs periodic credit

evaluations/reviews of its customers.

Majority of trade receivables are with customers
having an appropriate credit history. The Group
grants its customers credit terms ranging from
30 to 90 days. Most of the Group’s sales are
on open account, while sales made to a small
number of customers are covered by letters of
credit issued by banks or settled by documents
against payment issued by banks.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade
receivables due from one group of customers
(2012: one group of customers) represent
approximately 75% (2012: 74%) of its total trade
receivables from third parties (Note 13). The
Group has no other significant concentrations of
credit risk.

The Group has policies to place deposits and
cash and cash equivalents only with major
financial institutions. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions as they have no default

history in the past.

Liquidity risk

Prudent includes

maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of

liquidity risk management

funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve comprising undrawn
borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. Surplus cash
held by Group entities over and above balances
required for working capital management is
invested in interest-bearing bank accounts and
term deposits with appropriate maturities or
sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient head-room

as determined by the above-mentioned forecasts.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. As at 31 December
2013 and 2012, all financial

Company are due within one year. Balances due

liabilities of the

within 12 months equal their carrying balances as

the impact of discounting is not significant.

Hi Y A5 e B EOOR E A5 8RR
=,
PR—F
Less than
1 year
TERT
HK$’000
= Consolidated
R-Z2-=f+-A=t-8H At 31 December 2013
BERAERE Borrowings and interest payment 156,404
REMBLARFER Loans from non-controlling
IR R B E R shareholders of subsidiaries 7,775
REEZRRAKREE Trade and bills payable 335,208
FE 50 7% R H fh BE {3 1R 3K Accruals and other payables 233,796
733,183
R-ZEB-Z-F+ZA=t—H At 31 December 2012
BERFERE Borrowings and interest payment 12,655
REMBLAEFER Loan from non-controlling
BRERPER shareholder of a subsidiary 7,500
BRNESRRKREE Trade and bills payable 271,836
FE 5T 1R RO R H fth & 5 0R X Accruals and other payables 228,204
520,195
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) HEEZEEH (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
DPR—F
Less than
1 year
TET
HK$’000
¥ YN Company

R=2B-=%+=A=+-H At 31 December 2013
FE 51 0R 5 R H h 8 13 0R X Accruals and other payables 7,548
BB ARRE Amounts due to subsidiaries 149,707
157,255

R-ZE-—-—F+=ZA=1+-—H At 31 December 2012
FE 5 0R 31 I H 7 0R X Accruals and other payables 7,461
BB AR RE Amounts due to subsidiaries 395,224
402,685

(d) HERERAFEFE
m B

R-ZE-Z=Z5+ZA=+
—B AEBEEFEHEE
EBESF DA E1.5%
(ZZF - ZF:33%)
1.6% (ZZF—=%F:3.2%)
R15%(Z & — = &£
1.4%) K9 o0 & 3 39 F &=
SFENBEFRITER
4,281,000 T (=& —=
F:1,244,0005%8 ) &
EHRBB=EANE
171755,000,00038 7t (=
£ — = £:30,100,000
BLTEREBHRETER
809,537,000/ (= &
— = £:873,744,00058
TT) o HEHEHBABIEZ
BEtE e
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(d)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group holds
interest bearing asset including the pledged bank
deposits of HK$4,281,000 (2012: HK$1,244,000),
bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months of HK$5,000,000 (2012: HK$30,100,000)
and short-term bank deposits of HK$809,537,000
(2012: HK$873,744,000) which carried weighted
average interest rates of 1.5% per annum (2012:
3.3% per annum), 1.6% per annum (2012: 3.2%
per annum) and 1.5% per annum (2012: 1.4% per
annum), respectively. Majority of these balances
are at floating rates.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk
(Continued)

Except for the short-term borrowings of
HK$154,710,000 as at 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$12,396,000), the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing liabilities.

At the respective balance sheet dates, if interest
rates had been increased by one percentage-point
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s net profit would increase by approximately
HK$9,735,000 for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: HK$8,901,000). The fluctuation is
attributable to interest income from pledged bank
deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of over
three months and short-term bank deposits, and
interest expense on bank borrowings.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the Company’s
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group was in a net cash
position (total borrowings were less than cash and cash
equivalents).
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3 cREREE®@ 3  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 EXEAREE @) 3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
HETEMAR -3 AEER Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
BEEEELRERER - &l monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
EREERERNAERTE - ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total

equity.
R-Z-—=FR-Z--F+=A The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012
St-HZEREELENT: were as follows:
—E-=F —E-ZF
2013 2012
TER FBx
HK$’000 HK$’000
B E 25 (M =£18) Total borrowings (Note 18) 154,710 12,396
REMBLARIFER Loans from non-controlling
BENER shareholders of subsidiaries
(B £ 37(e)) (Note 37(e)) 7,775 7,500
162,485 19,896
B Total equity 2,231,745 2,199,594
BEEELE Gearing ratio 7.3% 0.9%
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3.3

The increase in the gearing ratio above resulted
primarily from additional bank borrowings.

Fair value estimation

The method by which the fair values of financial
instruments are established are categorised as follows:

(i) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(i)  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(for example, as prices) or indirectly (for example,
derived from prices).

(iii) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at 31 December

FTEAENEMEE: 2013 and 2012:
FE=4K
Level 3
TET
HK$’000
R-ZB-=%f+=A=t—-8H As at 31 December 2013
BEAFEFAGHREEN Financial assets at fair value through
ERMEE profit or loss —
R-ZB-Z-f+-A=+-H As at 31 December 2012
BEAFEFAGZNIEEN Financial assets at fair value through
EREE profit or loss 33,354

HIEN-—EHZEERBAE
HEIFRBEITBEETSREE
EBMAE=ZR -

ERMITAMEMAARMGERN
BE:

. TERERBLTANR
ZREHE -

c ARBHNATERET
BEZEMRRMATRE
RERENBENE -

. ERIESHNRFE
ERARGEENEHESR
BT MEEEMRER
{EO

. HBRSMTENATHEE
REMRNEE  WmER
REREBOWN -

The instrument is included in level 3 if one or more of
the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.
. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated

as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves.

. The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting
value discounted back to present value.

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow

analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group’s investment in convertible bonds issued
by an unlisted company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands, which was classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (Note 11(a)), was
measured at fair value according to Level 3 under the
hierarchy. On 1 November 2013, the Group converted
the convertible bonds in full into 70% of the issued
share capital of Shine Gold Limited (“Shine Gold”). At
conversion date, the convertible bonds were fair-valued
by Jones Lang LaSalle, an independent firm of valuers
not connected to the Group. As the carrying amounts of
the convertible bonds approximate their fair values as
at 1 November 2013, no gain/loss is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The fair values are
determined by using valuation technique. This valuation
technique involves the use of observable market data
where it is available and entity specific estimates. This
valuation technique used for determining the fair values
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
consistent with the previous year.
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3 cREREE®@ 3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 DV EMF @ 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
TREVNEHZE-Z-=F+=A8 The following table presents the changes in the carrying
ST-HLFEE=RIANE amounts of Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
B December 2013:

BRAFEFART
REENERMEE
Financial

assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

TET
HK$'000
=30 Beginning of the year 33,354
wnE Additions 38,800
MBRRES R Interest income accrued from convertible
B R 2 WA (H 5E26) bonds (Note 26) 2,644
## A Shine Gold ) & Conversion to equity of Shine Gold (70,000)
REHFARBEHENTRBESFEW Interest receivables from convertible bonds
B eliminated upon consolidation (4,798)
FH End of the year —
e [0 {0 7Bl B W B 5 I L ft PR U The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
MR SR R B A3 B 5 I EL At FE 9 1R and other receivables and payables are a reasonable
HHAERBEAELOFENGE approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
MY ARBFEHHEE - URE financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
ARENRAESHIAETEDS by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
MEERFERRGNRER the current market interest rate that is available to the
EMETEMERENLFHE- Group for similar financial instruments.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
are determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset value may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates,
could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the income
statement.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values (if applicable) and
consequently related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature
and functions, or based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations according to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of intangible assets. Management
will increase the depreciation/amortisation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, and it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives; and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result
in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore depreciation/amortisation expense in future

periods.

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 113



S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4

114

RS ETRHIE®

(c)

—E-ZFEER

(CHEEE 308

AEBZERMNE2.8/F S5 H
KEFHEERGHEREET
AR - BEELENZTREE
BEEEAEESIQFERL
ERAENEEE - RHER
B RAE B (HES)

BEIBREWEBEAEEME
ENERAARREABELE
% SALEST  URKE
Shine GoldfiE%£ M= RKEE
TEERREEEEN FTAD
HREEI B -BE-ZT—=F
+tZA=+-RLtEESERZ
BEBRITMHE -

RELEWREERERENEEM
5 OEEREBEMELEMA
REEMNXARBABRES
BEREEER-Z—=F1=A
=t —RzEE TRI%® L
1% AEBETTEHRBHERD
BE °

MELBWEShine GoldE
B2mE PEAFEREERE
SFERFEMAREEANESRK
BAMAEEEREEBR_-Z
—ZE+ZB=+t—-Hz&HT
#%0.5% 5, £ 70.5% » REER
TERMERIANE -

KEEBEERERAFT

4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts
of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-
use or fair value less costs to sell calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (Note 8).

The goodwill is allocated to the golf and high-end
fashion apparel manufacturing business CGU resulted
from the acquisition of Charmtech Group, which was
included in the manufacturing segment; and the high-
end fashion retailing business CGU resulted from
the acquisition of Shine Gold, which was included in
distribution and retail segment. No impairment was
recognised against these goodwill during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

For the goodwill resulted from the acquisition of
Charmtech Group, if the budgeted gross margin
or the pre-tax discount rate used in the value-in-
use calculation has been 1% lower and 1% higher
than management’s estimates respectively as at 31
December 2013, still no impairment against goodwill

would be recognised by the Group.

For the goodwill resulted from the acquisition of Shine
Gold, if the budgeted gross margin or the pre-tax
discount rate used in the fair value less costs to sell
calculation has been 0.5% lower and 0.5% higher
than management’s estimates respectively as at 31
December 2013, still no impairment against goodwill
would be recognised by the Group.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Estimated impairment of trademarks and
licence rights

The Group tests whether the trademarks and licence
rights have suffered any impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable
amount of the trademarks and licence rights has been
determined as the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, i.e., the amount for which the
asset could be sold between knowledgeable and willing
parties, net of estimated costs of disposal.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on current market conditions
and the historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in
reassesses these

market conditions. Management

estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Trade, bills and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision
for impairment of trade, bills and other receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of customers and other debtors and current
market conditions, and requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Management reassesses the provision
at the end of each reporting period.

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 115



S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4

116

RS ETRHIE®

(9)

(h)

—E-ZFEER

PR & %

ARBEEANZER LB
GHR -BIFSHBEREE
FHEXRHE - EARXEKBRE
FEABARERERABEN
RERFEL - ARERYUESR
AYMBEHNBAGTMERE
AHREEREENAE - %
TEENRAHBEEREBER
BICENHE  BEEZEKS
SEETABARESBNDS
IR REEMSHERS -

WERBESFAERRERR S
MNaUHREREZERREE
B SERIBEHZERS
BERABENELERSHEE
EEHERZHEHRELER
H o

TRRESNAFE

WTENERTSEENESATIA
WRAFEDEBERGERM
BE AREERENEERES
BEREZREIERBEREHRE
BHTRERRR - AEEIL
BHEERTSEENRLTER
ABNAEENEREERMA
BRBEREDMN -

KEEBEERERAFT

4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

income tax assets

Deferred relating to temporary

differences and tax losses are recognised when
management expects it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available to utilise the temporary
differences or tax losses. Management reassesses its

expectation at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value of convertible bonds

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market condition existing at
the end of each reporting period. The Group has used
discounted cash flow analysis for financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss that are not traded in active
markets.
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SR EMERMET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Committee comprising the executive directors of
the Company’s Board of Directors. The Executive Committee
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources and report segment
performance based on internal reporting.

The Executive Committee reviews the performance of the
Group mainly from a business operation perspective. The
Group is organised into two main business segments,
namely (i) Manufacturing, and (ii) Distribution and Retail. The
Manufacturing segment mainly represents manufacturing of
sportswear and golf and high-end fashion apparel, primarily
under OEM arrangements to customers mainly in Europe,
North America and Mainland China. The Distribution and
Retail segment represents the distribution and retail of
sportswear, footwear, accessories, sports equipment and
high-end fashion wears and accessories in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore. The discontinued
operations represent the Umbro retail business and Diadora
distribution and retail business terminated during the year
(Note 32(b)).

The Executive Committee assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on a measure of operating
results of each segment, which excludes the effects of non-
recurring earnings and expenditures and finance income and
finance costs in the result for each operating segment. Other
information provided to the Executive Committee is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Segment information (continued)

BE-Z-—=H+-A=+t-HLEE The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2013
ZOWEEWNT: are as follows:
BELE BRIELE
EL 3L ES 8]
PHREE Total Total
4 & Distribution continuing discontinued # gt
Manufacturing and retail operations operations Total
FTER TER FTER FTER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Fff Z32(b))
(Note 32(b))
B 48 3 Total segment revenue 2,689,764 267,187 2,956,951 81,137 3,038,088
7 A& Inter-segment revenue (5,672) - (5,672) - (5,672)
& Revenue 2,684,092 267,187 2,951,279 81,137 3,032,416
BERF(FR)/ Operating profit (loss)/

DEEE segment results 150,808 (6,209) 144,599 (7,470) 137,129
mE WA Finance income 16,807
&R Finance costs (2,949)
FEhEE ARDER Share of profits of associates 4,198 - 4,198 - 4,198
BRFT BB ARF Profit before income tax 155,185
FrisBmx Income tax expense (39,680)
FERHR Profit for the year 115,505

BE-Z2-=5+-A=t-HLEE
AAGHRBRNEM HEBEMT !

Other segment items included in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as

follows:
< 3 55 P A i 8 Amortisation of land use
rights 572 — 572 — 572
M- KBERRERE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 88,056 6,208 94,264 3,845 98,109
B EEHH Amortisation of intangible
assets 116 7,329 7,445 704 8,149
REE License fee - - - 1,560 1,560
M BERRERE Impairment of property,
plant and equipment 32,342 11,978 44,320 - 44,320
FERE — F8 Write-back of inventories, net (10,162) (3,541) (13,703) - (13,703)
EWE 5 IRFRE Impairment of trade
— 78 receivables, net 484 - 484 4,868 5,352
HEWME  BBERRE Loss/(gain) on disposal
[ E-PAC € of property, plant and
— FE equipment, net (121) 72 (49) = (49)
HEL it {F ARG Gain on disposal of land
use right (12,368) - (12,368) - (12,368)
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5 2HER@ 5 Segment information (Continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2012
are as follows:

BEKE BRIELE
EBBE ES 3L
DHEREE Total Total
4£%E  Distribution  continuing discontinued Ry
Manufacturing and retail operations operations Total
TER FER FER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(Bt 2E32(b))
(Note 32(b))
oA E Total segment revenue 2,829,014 137,031 2,966,045 126,440 3,092,485
el Inter-segment revenue (4,571) — (4,571) — (4,571)
&3 Revenue 2,824,443 137,031 2,961,474 126,440 3,087,914
TERAN(FE) Operating profit (loss)/

5 % segment results 175,888 (3,831) 172,057 (38,807) 133,250
BMERA Finance income 27,211
BMERAK Finance costs (2,330)
G E A REF Share of profits of associates 4,249 — 4,249 — 4,249
BRETEBAER Profit before income tax 162,380
FEHEX Income tax expense (42,353)
FREF Profit for the year 120,027

Other segment items included in the consolidated income

BE-_E-——F+-A=T—HLEE
FAGHABR2EMIHEENT :

statement for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as

follows:

T ERAERE Amortisation of land use

rights 565 — 565 — 565
W%  MERBREINE  Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 79,719 2,380 82,099 9,992 92,091
B EEHH Amortisation of intangible

assets — — — 1,408 1,408
ME - BERZERE Impairment of property, plant

and equipment — — — 3,171 3,171
FERE — F8 Impairment of inventories, net 31,243 475 31,718 15,589 47,307

ERESRARE Impairment/(write-back) of
(@) — FH® trade receivables, net 93 (75) 18 (3,718) (3,700)
BeREMEWRIIRTZEE Impairment of deposits and
other receivables 1,034 — 1,034 — 1,034
HEME BBERRE Loss/(gain) on disposal
B/ (k) of property, plant and
— B equipment, net 706 — 706 (107) 599
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Segment information (continued)

Inter-segment transactions are conducted at terms mutually
agreed among Group companies.

Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold land and land
use rights, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
investments in associates, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans to an associate, deposits and
prepayments, inventories, trade, bills and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and bank
deposits with initial terms of over three months. Unallocated
assets mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents held for
corporate uses, tax recoverables and deferred income tax
assets.

Segment liabilities comprise mainly operating liabilities.
Unallocated liabilities mainly comprise deferred income tax
liabilities and current income tax liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to land use rights,
property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets,
including additions resulting from acquisitions through
business combinations.
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5 2HER@ 5 Segment information (Continued)
R-EB-—=B+-A=+-—-HH2 L The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2013,
EREE BEZALFEELRAX capital expenditure and non-current assets acquired from
FRBEECHUENERBEEN business combinations for the year ended are as follows:
T:

RERE BRILELE

EX % E33 L)

PEREE Total Total
4£E Distribution continuing discontinued EE | et
Manufacturing and retail operations operations Unallocated Total
FTHET FExT TR FTExT FTHERT FTHERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Hf &£32(b))

(Note (32(b))

aE Assets 2,036,460 529,936 2,566,396 7,392 435,484 8,009,272
BENTE Associates 40,585 - 40,585 - - 40,585
REE Total assets 2,077,045 529,936 2,606,981 7,392 435,484 3,049,857
aamE Total liabilities 547,297 186,729 734,026 7,355 76,731 818,112
BARMEX Capital expenditure 228,446 14,143 242,589 328 - 242,917
REEEAHKBEN Non-current assets
(RBEE acquired from business

combinations = 159,742 159,742 = — 159,742
RZE-—-F+-A=+—-HNHHE The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2012 and
ERBERBZEZALFEERHEX capital expenditure for the year ended are as follows:
mT:
BE Assets 1,948,013 427,766 2,375,779 698 421,037 2,797,514
BE AT Associates 38,032 — 38,032 — — 38,032
mEE Total assets 1,986,045 427,766 2,413,811 698 421,037 2,835,546
R=Y Total liabilities 516,905 56,077 572,982 4,445 58,525 635,952
BEEXEX Capital expenditure 132,803 8,423 141,226 — — 141,226
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5 2HER@ 5 Segment information (Continued)
BRBEE S AKEREIREFH The Group’s revenue from external customers by
WEMT: geographical location is as follows:

—E-=F —E-C—F

2013 2012
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Uy & Revenue
b Hong Kong 308,832 238,931
B K BE Mainland China 371,504 438,396
H 55 N E =X Other Asian countries 310,531 484,354
ES Europe 1,257,272 1,210,634
xH United States of America 308,628 244,950
mEx Canada 67,301 50,125
Hith Others 327,211 294,084
2,951,279 2,961,474
AEBRMBEEAINREDRIEER The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined
EANEENHEE - by the final destination of delivery of the products.
—E-=% —E-CF
2013 2012
TET FTART
HK$’000 HK$’000
PERE D Analysis of revenue by category
HEER Sales of goods 2,936,473 2,951,197
=D ER%E Provision of subcontracting services 13,188 8,010
EMBETEEEERBT WA Provision of concessionaire sales
service income 1,618 2,267

2,951,279 2,961,474
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5 2HER@ 5 Segment information (Continued)
BEuEEASNIERBEE(ERMIAR The total of non-current assets other than financial
EEFMEBREERIMNBENT: instruments and deferred income tax assets by geographical

location is as follows:

—E-=F —E—C—F

2013 2012

THERT TERT

HK$’000 HK$’000

s Hong Kong 275,913 44,693
K pE Mainland China 590,852 570,082
HtER Other countries 263,503 156,638
1,130,268 771,413

BE-E-—=F1+-A=1+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenues of
W % #2,371,533,0008 T (=& —= approximately HK$2,371,533,000 (2012: HK$2,478,343,000),
% :2,478,343,0008T) - {EREEE representing 80.4% (2012: 83.7%) of the Group’s total
W EH804% (ZE——F:83.7%) ' 5 revenue, were derived from a single group of external
REE—HBIIREFE - EWFETY customers. These revenues are attributable to the

REEEEK - Manufacturing Business.
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6 THERAE - 56 6 Land use rights — Consolidated
AEERBEEN I FERAEERNE The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
FREESRERAFEINNT: operating lease payments and their net book amounts are

analysed as follows:

—E—= —E-C—F
2013 2012
TET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHREAERETHEEFESE:  In Mainland China held on:
T fE AEN F10250F Land use rights of between 10
and 50 years 114,037 19,226
—EB—=fF —E-——-F
2013 2012
TET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
F 1) Beginning of the year 19,226 19,733
EHEH Exchange differences 202 58
=T Additions 95,181 —
X Amortisation (572) (565)
F# End of the year 114,037 19,226
BN EEEE BT A— B R .Amortlsatllon of prepaid oper.at.lng I('ease payments has been
KA o included in general and administrative expenses.
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7 WME -BBERRE - 4 7 Property, plant and equipment —
Consolidated
XAERE
T# tiREF HENEEE BERESE HKARRE HEREE ERIRE gt
Furniture Motor
Freehold Land and Leasehold Plant and and vehicles Construction
lands buildings improvements machinery equipment and yacht in progress Total
TEL TER TEL TEL TEL TEL FET FET
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-%--%-5-H At 1 January 2012

2% Cost 2,700 157,257 287,317 480,022 115,063 38,008 12,521 1,092,888
Bt HERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment —  (25,597) (142,797)  (244,238) (81,530) (18,389) — (512,551)
REFHE Net book amount 2,700 131,660 144,520 235,784 33,533 19,619 12,521 580,337
BE-Z-—F Year ended
TZRA=t-HLEFE 31 December 2012
FOREFE Opening net book amount 2,700 131,660 144,520 235,784 33,533 19,619 12,521 580,337
ERES Exchange differences 333 344 1,602 1,194 90 45 480 4,088
RE Additions 42,615 3,150 17,335 12,016 12,675 5193 48,242 141,226
28] Transfers — — 715 — — — (715) —
HE Disposals - - (1,083) (143) (99) (491) — (1,816)
AE Impairment — — (623) — (2,214) — — (2,837)
& Depreciation - (5,020) (27,248) (39,442) (15,770) (4,604) — (92,084)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 45,648 130,134 135,218 209,409 28,215 19,762 60,528 628,914
R-B--F At 31 December 2012
+=BA=t-H
A Cost 45,648 160,860 304,289 493,778 127,877 40,309 60,528 1,233,289
ESHERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment —  (30,726) (169,071)  (284,369) (99,662) (20,547) — (604,375)
REFE Net book amount 45,648 130,134 135,218 209,409 28,215 19,762 60,528 628,914
BE-Z2-=% Year ended
+-B=t-ALEE 31 December 2013
FOREFE Opening net book amount 45,648 130,134 135,218 209,409 28,215 19,762 60,528 628,914
ERER Exchange differences (742) 1,610 2,503 3,938 295 146 352 8,102
B M B2 7 (K 3E36)  Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 36) - - 28,791 2,324 1,334 - - 32,449
HE Additions - 1,899 20,042 54,419 12,884 8,788 49,704 147,736
2324 Transfers - 42,520 1,005 2,211 - - (45,736) -
HE Disposals - - (30) (208) (281) (41) - (560)
HE Impairment - (7,679) (33,542) (2,046) (865) (188) - (44,320)
& Depreciation - (8,407) (30,426) (42,170) (11,412) (5,694) - (98,109)
FREARE Closing net book amount 44,906 160,077 123,561 227,877 30,170 22,773 64,848 674,212
R=-B-=% At 31 December 2013
+=ZA=t+-8
B Cost 44,906 196,167 299,653 540,308 114,407 46,468 64,848 1,306,757
EItHERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment —  (36,090) (176,092)  (312,431) (84,237) (23,695) - (632,545)
REFE Net book amount 44,906 160,077 123,561 227,877 30,170 22,773 64,848 674,212
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Property, plant and equipment —
Consolidated (continued)

Freehold lands are located in the Hashemite Kingdom of
Jordan and Cambodia.

Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated income

E statement is analysed as follows:
—E-=F —E--F
2013 2012
THERT FTART
HK$’000 HK$’000
$HE B A Cost of sales 61,291 54,898
—-BRTEHEX General and administrative expenses 36,818 37,186
98,109 92,084

H B & 1$817,282,000% (= & —
ZERERHAEERE MAEE
/& 827,038,000 T (=2 — = F:
2,837,0007& ) B &t A— R R 1T BB
X REERZEEERENEMATHE
AEBRENNE BERRERE -

126 -—z=-===%

KEEBEERERAFT

Impairment loss of HK$17,282,000 has been included in cost
of sales (2012: Nil) and impairment loss of HK$27,038,000
has been included in general and administrative expense
(2012: HK$2,837,000) as a result of provision for property,
plant and equipment in respect of loss making retail shops
in Hong Kong and closure of factories in Mainland China.
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8 BEEE — &4 8 Intangible assets — Consolidated
HEE BEFB#%

B BE Licence Customer #Et

Trademarks Goodwill rights relationships Total

FER TER TER TER TER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

R-ZZ--%-HF—8 At 1 January 2012

B AR Cost 221,387 72,808 — 2,219 296,414
R EHERAE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (193,191) (39,058) — (2,219) (234,468)
IR 5 88 Net book amount 28,196 33,750 — — 61,946
BE-z2--% Year ended
+ZA=+—-HLEE 31 December 2012
FOREFE Opening net book amount 28,196 33,750 — — 61,946
HeH Amortisation (1,408) — — — (1,408)
FRIEEFEHE Closing net book amount 26,788 33,750 — — 60,538
R=ZT—-=F% At 31 December 2012
+=A=t+-A8
2 Cost 221,387 72,808 — 2,219 296,414
R EERHE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (194,599) (39,058) — (2,219) (235,876)
R R &8 Net book amount 26,788 33,750 — — 60,538
BE-z-=% Year ended
+-ZA=+-HLEE 31 December 2013
FREFE Opening net book amount 26,788 33,750 - - 60,538
s B B /5 0 =) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Fft 5£36) (Note 36) 13,966 90,635 87,722 - 192,323
hE Addition - - 800 — 800
& (K EE32(b)) Disposal (Note 32(b)) (26,084) - - - (26,084)
e Amortisation (820) - (7,329) - (8,149)
FRIEEFE Closing net book amount 13,850 124,385 81,193 - 219,428
R-ZB—=% At 31 December 2013
+=A=+-8
B AR Cost 13,966 163,443 88,522 - 265,931
R EHERAE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (116) (39,058) (7,329) - (46,503)
R R & Net book amount 13,850 124,385 81,193 - 219,428

# $5820,000% T(Z & — = F: Amortisation of HK$820,000 (2012: HK$1,408,000) and
1,408,000 Jt) }&7,329,000/8 T (= HK$7,329,000 (2012: Nil) were included in general and
E-ZF BESAFA-BRITHE administrative expenses and selling and distribution costs
BXUREERDHKERA respectively.

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 127



S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

128

BREE — 66w
BEREIR

BREXBIBREBVEIRELRE
BRI REELEUNBENT

Intangible assets — Consolidated (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment and geographical location and

is as follows:
BREARR
= AR B i
aREE B 8 4
Z€& Golf and high-
High-end end fashion
fashion apparel st
retailing manufacturing Total
FTERT FTET FTERT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
R F 8 Net book amount
R-ZE--f-F—-HK At 1 January 2012 and
“Z——f+ZA=+—H 31 December 2012 — 33,750 33,750
W BB BT B 2 =) (B 5£36) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 36) 90,635 — 90,635
RZE—-=%+Z-ZB=+—H At 31 December 2013 90,635 33,750 124,385

REELEUNTERESEDIRER
REESAFERLERFTELSE
BE ZEEEEARBEEREHR
BEAREREREERGEEREL
REREETEXBMENTFHY
BREMAENHRARSRERR -
BHEMREREREEHRBH 2RSSR
BUTXH2INTERRESR - 2
RETHBREELBENUMKEERK
WREBFIGERER -

—E-ZFEER

KEEBEERERAFT

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on value-in-use or fair value less costs to sell calculations.
These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period for the golf and high-end fashion apparel
manufacturing business and high-end fashion retailing
business. Cash flows beyond the period covered in approved
budgets are extrapolated using the key assumptions stated
below. The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the businesses in which the cash-generating
units operate.
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8

B EE — &

B RE R A (E)

BEERE
FEREERHBES
ReRBHEEER

BA B =

(&) 8

Intangible assets — Consolidated (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

—E—=F
2013

BRERRK

5 AR B i

B & 4 &

SREXEE  Golf and high-

High-end end fashion

fashion apparel

retailing manufacturing

Budgeted gross margin 51-55% 26%

Growth rate used to

extrapolate cashflows

beyond the budget period 3% 2%

Pre-tax discount rate 19% 11%

—E-—_F
2012

ELES I

5 AR B 7
REfEE

Golf and high-
end fashion
apparel
manufacturing

22%

2%
1%

EEERBEBEXRARAHTERE
WRAMEEREENR - BE-F—
ZHE+ZA=T-HLEFE  TEHRS
AARRSRABEHRHLEEEBRS
REERZEXBREELEURAN
o

REBARANRE-FAT

() REBATNKRE

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development. No impairment was recognised in respect of
the golf and high-end fashion apparel manufacturing business
and high-end fashion retailing business CGUs during the year

ended 31 December 2013.

9 Investments in subsidiaries — Company

(i) Investments in subsidiaries

—E-=F —E-——F

2013 2012
TERT TAER
HK$’000 HK$’000
RELTRONIRE - Investment in unlisted shares,

3% WN at cost 538,341 538,341
WERE Provision for impairment (62,857) —
475,484 538,341

FE U Bt B A R SRR IE Amounts due from subsidiaries
(Mt &£ (a)) (Note (a)) 911,872 894,752
1,387,356 1,433,093

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 129



S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 RHMEBLATINKRE-ADT@m 9

U]

130

—E-ZFEER

RHEBARNERE @

(Continued)

(i)

THAEANR-ZE—=FE+=ZHA=+
—BMEEHELR KL

B

&R

Name

BEIMNERAR
Bowker Asia Limited

BEREREMOTR)ARAT
Bowker Garment Accessories
(Heyuan) Company Limited

ERARENERAA
Bowker Garment Accessories
Company Limited

EZRRBERLA
Bowker Garment Factory
Company Limited

Bowker Garment Factory

(Cambodia) Company Limited

Bowker Garment Investment

(Cambodia) Company Limited

BEOERCTR) BERAE

Bowker Printing Factory (Heyuan)

Company Limited

LA L i B R
EERRER

Place of incorporation
and type of legal entity

ABELEE
(#BEZHE]
ERERLT

British Virgin Islands (“BVI"),

limited liability company

HEKE NBBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

£ BREALR
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

EE BREALR
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

REE BARECLF
Cambodia,
limited liability company

REE AREELH
Cambodia,
limited liability company

FEKE MEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

KEEBEERERAFT

ERTRAFE
Particulars of issued
share capital

100% 7
Us$100

4,200,000% 7t
US$4,200,000

10,0007 7T
HK$10,000

10,0003 T & B K
200,000 TR E
EIE R A7 (B (b))

HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$200,000
non-voting deferred
(Note (b))

RFHE 14,000,000
KHR 4,000,000

RFBE 14,000,000
KHR 4,000,000

55,508,4607% 1T
HK$55,508,460

BERALEE
ZREBDH
Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group

—E-=F
2013

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

—E-CF

2012

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investments in subsidiaries — Company

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following are details of principal subsidiaries, all of
which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2013:

TEXBREERLY
Principal activities and
place of operation

BEARER/BE
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

EERRER/REKE
Manufacturing of garment
accessories/
Mainland China

REZRREERKER
B

Investment holding and
trading of garment
accessories/Hong Kong

EERKER /B
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

EERKER/RAE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Cambodia

NERE/REE
Property holding/Cambodia

EEORRAGER FEAE

Manufacturing of printing
and embroidery products/
Mainland China
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RMBARNERE @

(Continued)

(i)

THAER=ZBE—-=Ff+=A=+
—HOEEMBAR AKX LEH)

B

&R

Name

BEAXARK(ERARAT

Bowker Venture Garment (Yunfu)

Company Limited

Bowker (Vietnam) Garment
Factory Company Limited

EEUE(ERARAT

Bowker Vietnam Holding Limited

EEREGEMAEKERLT
Bowker Yao Wao (Huizhou)
Garment Company Limited

BEREERECTR)ERAR

Bowker Yee Sing Garment Factory

(Heyuan) Company Limited

EHEXERLA
Charmtech Industrial Limited

Corus Investments Limited

D-mop Limited

ENTHRARKERAA
Guangzhou Yuming
Garment Limited
ENEEREARERLA
Guangzhou Win Sports Ltd.

AR AL i B R
EEBERER

Place of incorporation
and type of legal entity

HEKE ABBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

e AREALT
Vietnam,

limited liability company
£ BAREALR
Hong Kong,

limited liability company

FEAE NEBELR
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

HEKE NBBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise
B BREALT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

BB BREALR
Hong Kong,
limited liability company
BB BREELH
Hong Kong,
limited liability company
HEKE NABBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise
FERE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

Investments in subsidiaries — Company

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following are details of principal subsidiaries, all of

which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2013:

ERTRAFE
Particulars of issued
share capital

80,000,000 7t
HK$80,000,000

15,600,0007 7T
HK$15,600,000

1,000,000 7T
HK$1,000,000

16,000,000 7T
HK$16,000,000

120,000,000% 7t
HK$120,000,000

50,0007 7T
HK$50,000

10,0007 1T
HK$10,000

1,000,000 T
HK$1,000,000

3,800,000 1T
HK$3,800,000

20,000,000 T
HK$20,000,000

2013 Annual Report

BERALEE
ZREBDH
Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group

—E-=F

2013

100%

100%

100%

100%

1%

75%

#100%

**70%

70%

75%

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

s —x

2012

100%

100%

100%

100%

1%

75%

#100%

70%

75%

TEXBREERLY
Principal activities and
place of operation

EERKER/PEKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

EERKER/HEE

Manufacturing of garment
products/Vietnam

REERREERKER/
B

Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

EERKER/PEKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

EERKER/PEKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

REERREERAKER/
i

Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

NEBE/BR
Property holding/Hong Kong

ZEREER/BE
Retailing of fashion products/
Hong Kong

EERKER/PEKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

EERTERKER/
HE K
Trading and retailing of

garment products/
Mainland China
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REBARNKRE-ADT @ 9

U]

(Continued)

RHEBARNERE @

THAEANR-ZE—=FE+=ZHA=+
—BMEEHELR KL

Investments in subsidiaries — Company

(i) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following are details of principal subsidiaries, all of

which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2013:

—E-ZFEER

B

L]

Name

HIXEHEERLA
Kaiping Win Hanverky Textile
Company Limited

ERESHMAERDLT

Kepac Trading (Hangzhou) Limited

Portico Il Limited

BEEERRERAT

Qing Yuan BowCharm Garment

Manufacturing Limited

#A (BB ERLA
Rich Form (HK) Limited

LERMBEERRAR

Shanghai Yinpac Trading Limited

Shine Gold Limited

EFTEREKBEERALA

Sport City Garment Factory
Company Limited

BHUARDA

Sports Corner Limited

REREARRINERLT

Team & Sports (Shenzhen) Ltd.

XAAERAF
Win Form Apparel Limited

K& (RE)BRAF
Win Hanverky (China)
Company Limited

MBI YR
EEEBRER

Place of incorporation
and type of legal entity

HEKE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

HEKE ABBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise
neEX EREALH
Canada,
limited liability company
REARE HEBALE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise
% BREFLA
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

REKE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

XERZHE AREMLLH
BVI,
limited liability company

FERKE NEREDE
Mainland China, foreign
equity joint venture

BB AREALR
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

TEAE NEBELE

Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

B BREALR
Hong Kong,
limited liability company
BB BREALR
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

KEEBEERERAFT

BRTRAFE
Particulars of issued
share capital

5,522,813% 1t
US$5,522,813

700,000% 7t
US$700,000

10040 7T
CA$100

17,500,000 7T
HK$17,500,000

10,0007 1T
HK$10,000

750,000% 1T
US$750,000

340% T
US$340

550,000% T
US$550,000

500,000 T
HK$500,000

AR 5,000,000
RMB5,000,000

10,0007 7T
HK$10,000

10,0007 1T
HK$10,000

BEREAEE
ZhRERAL
Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group

—B—=f

2013

100%

**70%

100%

75%

70%

**70%

**70%

72.7%

75%

100%

100%

100%

—E-ZF
2012

100%

100%

75%

70%

72.7%

75%

100%

100%

100%

TEEBREELY
Principal activities and
place of operation

EEREESHAR/PEAE
Manufacturing and trading of
fabrics/Mainland China

TENKER/TEKAE
Retailing of fashion products/
Mainland China

RERBRE,/MEX
Provision of agency service/
Canada

YERKER/TEAE

Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

EERKER /B

Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

ZEREER/PEAE

Retailing of fashion products/
Mainland China

REER/KBRZES
Investment holding/BVI

EERKER/PEKHE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China
ZERKER/BE
Retailing of garment
products/Hong Kong

EERKER/HEAE

Trading of garment products/
Mainland China

EERKER/BE

Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

EERKER /B

Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong
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RMBARNERE @

(Continued)

(i)

THAER=ZBE—-=Ff+=A=+
—HOEEMBAR AKX LEH)

B

L]

Name

XEEE(EB)ERAT
Win Hanverky Limited

XEHBERLE
Win Hanverky Textile Limited

EERBEARERAA
Win Sports Limited

EEREARES(LB)BRAR
Win Sports Trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

XERE(RINERQA(IBEE
SHBERR(RINBRLE)
Winor Apparel (Shenzhen) Limited
(Formerly known as Diadora
Sportswear (Shenzhen)

Limited)

XEEBRERDA
Winor International Company
Limited

BNTEERRERAR
Wuzhou Bowker Garment
Company Limited

MBI YR
EEEBRER

Place of incorporation
and type of legal entity

B BREALF
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

£ BREALR
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

BB BREELH
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

FERE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

TEKE ABBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

B BREALF
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

HERE NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

Investments in subsidiaries — Company

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following are details of principal subsidiaries, all of

which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2013:

BERAEE
ZREBRSL
Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group

BRTRAFE
Particulars of issued
share capital

—E--fF -“Z--F
2013 2012

10,0007 T & & K
1,000,000% 7t
FREEERG

(Fff &£ (b))

HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$1,000,000
non-voting deferred
(Note (b))

100% 100%

2,000,000 7T 100% 100%

HK$2,000,000

80,000,000 7t
HK$80,000,000

75% 75%

5,000,000 1T
HK$5,000,000

75% 75%

AR #110,000,0007 *100% 60%

RMB110,000,000

260,000,003% 7T
HK$260,000,003

*100% 60%

86,292,165% 1T
HK$86,292,165

100% 100%

2013 Annual Report

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

TEERREELY
Principal activities and
place of operation

BERKER/BE
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

YEREERR/
EBRTEAR

Manufacturing and trading of
fabrics/Hong Kong and
Mainland China

EERTERKER/EB

Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Hong Kong

BERTERKER/
hE AR

Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Mainland China

EERTERKRER/
B AR

Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Mainland China

REZR/BH
Investment holding/
Hong Kong

EERKER/PEKHE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China
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REEBATMNKRE - KDQT @)

U]

RHEBARNERE @

# ZARMNROBEAATEE
B8 EBaAQTHES
5

* FEERBE-Z-Z=F+
ZRAEt-BLEFEWREZS
DEM40%HEE - FHEER
BH M BMRMESS

o KEBREE-E-ZF1
ZAEtT-BLEFEREZS
NAMNT0%ER - FIEER
& OF BF B SRR B EE36 -

Htat:

(a) EBUMBRARAZERAAF
BB EARRBNRA
BE  DEAXIRMELT
MREMSTHRTE -

(b) EREBEZRGALFMA
SEfER ZERONALE
REE BRIBHELIINF
i 8 #& 1£100,000,000,000
BT BRAEEESR
B -MEKBRFAELAD
HEBREBAED K
100,000,000,000& Tt » &
BIRBERTEEWRD
K

(c) REE-Z-=fFtZA=+
—ALEEEEMER - KB
AALEENEHTEEE
F(ZE-ZF 8-

HRETHELARLEEARKX

W HAKBEEEECRES
NP XERENBERRL -

“E-ZHEFR XEEEERAERAT

9

Investments in subsidiaries — Company

(Continued)

(i)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

* %k

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

The shares of this company are held directly by the
Company; others are held indirectly by the Company.

The 40% interests of these companies have been
acquired by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013. Details are included in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The 70% interests of these companies have been
acquired by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013. Details are included in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding
by the Company to the respective subsidiaries and
are measured in accordance with the Company’s
accounting policy for investments in subsidiaries.

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the
Group. These shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the relevant
company exceeds HK$100,000,000,000 and are not
entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless a
sum of HK$100,000,000,000 has been distributed by
the relevant company to the holders of its ordinary
shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: None).

The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the

best effort by the management of the Group to translate

their Chinese names as they do not have official English

names.
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REBATNRE —ARDT @)

(i)

EXFERES

R-ZE-=5+=ZA=+—-8"
(EREZBAEAZNER
16,149,000 7t » E 2t B
126,425,000 T FE R = E
BERARERLABITREED M
2 3/E5188,568,0008 T IR B
#Shine Gold - B (FE)AE
RAE - BEEEBREREER
DA CEREREERR)ER
DR EHBEERAARBA
(BB)BRARMFERERIL
FTEK-

TXBAEEHAEEABERX
9 JF 122 IR HE 23 Y 45 Y /S 3 B) A B
BEH -

9

Investments in subsidiaries — Company
(Continued)

(i) Material non-controlling interests
As at 31 December 2013, the total non-controlling
interest amounted to an accumulated loss of
HK$16,149,000, of which accumulated loss of

HK$26,425,000 is attributed to Win Sports Limited
(“Win Sports”) and accumulated loss of HK$8,568,000
is attributed to Shine Gold. The non-controlling interests
in respect of Bowker (China) Company Limited, Bowker
International Company Limited, Bowker Faith Garment
Factory Limited, Charmtech Industrial Limited and Rich
Form (HK) Limited are not material.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests
that are material to the Group.

BEEBEEHME Summarised balance sheet
BE
Win Sports Shine Gold
=B—=F —E-fF =2—=fF
2013 2012 2013
FTHER FTAR TER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T Current
BRBEE Total current assets 74,183 134,782 188,203
wRaas Total current liabilities (289,330) (296,534) (203,622)
BREBEE,(BE)FHE Total current net assets/(liabilities) (215,147) (161,752) (15,419)
kRE Non-current
aE Assets 6,015 4,616 144,650
=0 Liabilities - — (157,791)
BERBEE (Bf) Total non-current net assets/(liabilities)
FE 6,015 4,616 (13,141)
FEE Net liabilities (209,132) (157,136) (28,560)

2013 Annual Report
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(Continued)
(i) EXFERERE (i) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)
FENTEEZHE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
RE
Win Sports Shine Gold
—E—=F
+—-A—HZ%
—E—=F
+t=RA=+—-8
m1E A
2-month
period from
1 November
2013 to
= —Z£—-% 31 December
2013 2012 2013
TER TET TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
g Revenue 217,041 202,733 99,362
RETBHAIER Loss before income tax (48,337) (38,837) (1,708)
FrERIK R Income tax credit = 1,405 1,234
SEEEEBRBRIBAE  Post-tax loss from continuing
K18 operations (5,744) (5,604) (474)
ERIEKREELRTIE Post-tax loss from
B discontinuing operations (42,593) (31,828) -
Hib2m (E1E) WE Other comprehensive (loss)/
income (3,659) (1,166) 1,394
ZHE(FE),WEBZE Total comprehensive (loss)/
income (51,996) (38,598) 920
FEREZELEE  Total comprehensive (loss)/
(B51#8),/ =B income allocated to non-
controlling interests (12,999) (9,650) 276

136 -—=-=44% KE£EERERAT
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Investments in subsidiaries — Company
(Continued)

(i) EXFERERE (i) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)
BehEHE Summarised cash flows
EE
Win Sports Shine Gold
—B-=%
+-B—-HE
—B-=%
+=A=+-H
M8 A
2-month period
from
1 November 2013
—E-Z=F —E-CF to
2013 2012 31 December 2013
TER FER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REEERELRE Cash flows from operating
activities
e (i) /FERS Cash (used in)/generated from
operations (18,281) (18,145) 31,033
2RFE Interest paid - (1,651) (296)
ENREHR Income tax paid = ) -
MEER (%) / Net cash (used in)/generated
FEReFE from operating activities (18,281) (19,798) 30,737
REZBFERLFE Net cash used in investing
activities (4,623) (4,079) (8,730)
BMETH(FiE)/ Net cash (used in)/generated
FEReFE from financing activities (1,332) 40,503 (4,154)
ReRBLEEY Net (decrease)/increase
(RD)/ BmEE in cash and cash
equivalents (24,236) 16,626 17,853
F/HOREREAS Cash and cash equivalents at
ZEY beginning of year/period 30,578 13,860 26,726
HEeRBELSENER Exchange gains on cash and
I & cash equivalents 723 92 29
E/MRRERAS Cash and cash equivalents at
ZEM end of year/period 7,065 30,578 44,608

THRERBETEEARTBY
AT EHE -

The information above is the amount before inter-
company eliminations.
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REBEXTNRE- &6

10 Investments in associates — Consolidated

—E-=F —E-C—F

2013 2012

TER TERT

HK$’000 HK$'000

=3 Beginning of the year 38,032 33,010
L FERRESS Share of reserve movements for the year 695 773
ERFKRE Dividend paid (2,340) —
JE 4t 5 123 35 7 Share of profits for the year 4,198 4,249
F# End of the year 40,585 38,032

TXHEIAEER-FT-—=5+=R=
T-BENEERERT - THHELQT
WRARBEER AFAKBERE
B -BEEMRLIEMERTANHE
TEEEWH -

R=B-=FR=F-ZFF+=A=1
—ARBEARNRENEE:

EEZRBEEECTR)ERAT

(TEREED

Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing Factory
(Heyuan) Company Limited
(“Fu Hsun Bowker”)

EEREERARN(EIERED
Fu Hsun Investment Company Limited
(“Fu Hsun Investment”)

Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited
(“Fu Jin Bowker”)

Set out below are the major associates of the Group as at
31 December 2013. The associates as listed below have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are
held directly by the Group; the country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place of business.

Nature of investments in associates as at 31 December 2013

and 2012:
BEERESD

a8 AR L 3t B BOLk BEEE
EEERER % of  Nature FrEAE
Place of incorporation ownership of the Measurement
and type of legal entity interest relationship method
FERRE MEBEDRE 30%  HizE(a) &
Mainland China, wholly Note (a) Equity

foreign owned

enterprise
EERZEES  AREMELH 30%  FitzE(b) &
BVI, limited liability Note (b) Equity

company
HEBELZHS  EREELH 30%  FiEE(c) &
BVI, limited liability Note (c) Equity

company

“E-ZHEFR XEEEERAERAT
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1

REENTNRE-S6@ 10 Investments in associates — Consolidated

(Continued)

Wit Notes:

() EEBZRETEAAREHNZEREES (@)  Fu Hsun Bowker engaged in fabrics dyeing services and sell
BLHERK - to the Group in Mainland China.

() EEREAEEZEENREZERA (b)  Fu Hsun Investment is the investment holding company of Fu
qe Hsun Bowker.

() Fu Jin BowkerBAXAEEEREZR ()  Fu Jin Bowker is engaged in the manufacturing of dyed fabrics
EORHA LRPEAERARE for the Group in Taiwan. It sells dyed fabric to the Group in
HENREME o Mainland China.

EEEE  EIERERFu Jin Bowker Fu Hsun Bowker, Fu Hsun Investment and Fu Jin Bowker are

RIADE EROUBEHISZRE o private companies and there is no quoted market price for

their shares.

FEBRBELARNEEHREIRS There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
REE - interests in the associates.

EEZRH BELNHEAEELTE The directors are of the opinion that the associates are not
R HEBZ2NHBEERRE - material to the Group. Accordingly, summarised financial

information is not presented.

EWMIA 11 Financial instruments

G Consolidated
—E-=Zf+=ZH=t+-H 31 December 2013

REEBERITHNEE Assets as per balance sheet

EREZERREE Trade and bills receivable

e R HAib EWIRER Deposits and other receivables

EHEMBITER Pledged bank deposits
EEHRBB=MAMNMKTER Bank deposits with initial terms of over three months
BeRBREeEEY Cash and cash equivalents

EXK

JE U iR
Loans and
receivables
TET
HK$’000

359,015
95,555
4,281
5,000
871,998
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11 €I @ 11 Financial instruments (Continued)
CRAC ) Consolidated (Continued)
Ht @ m A
IRz eBMERE
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TERT
HK$°000
REEEBRITNER Liabilities as per balance sheet
EREZERRERE Trade and bills payable (335,208)
BE Borrowings (154,710)
REMEBARFER Loans from non-controlling shareholders of
BREHER subsidiaries (7,775)
BAFETA
HBAHE R
MNemERE
EFH K Financial assets
& LT 1 3K at fair value
Loans and through profit or #at
receivables loss Total
TERT TERT TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE—-=-%+=HB=+—H 31 December 2012
REEBEBXRVRNWEE Assets as per balance
sheet
EXF-BHELNT Loans to an associate 173,493 — 173,493
RELTREZRE Investment in unlisted
securities — 33,354 33,354
FEHEZRRRRE Trade and bills receivable 325,697 — 325,697
7&K H iR Deposits and other
receivables 73,003 — 73,003
EEBRITER Pledged bank deposits 1,244 — 1,244
EEHRER=1EA Bank deposits with initial
WIRITER terms of over three months 30,100 — 30,100
RERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 946,565 — 946,565

140 -z=-=%5% XE£EEERARLT



SR EMERMET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 €IAm 11 Financial instruments (Continued)
a8t Consolidated (Continued)
Hfth iz 8 85 R K
ik emasE
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TET
HK$'000
REEEBRITHNER Liabilities as per balance sheet
ENHEZERAREE Trade and bills payable (271,836)
BE Borrowings (12,396)
REMBLATFERREMNER Loan from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary (7,500)
ENNS Company
EX K EWIRX

Loans and receivables
—¥-=Ff =F-=F

2013 2012
TERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEBEBRIRNEE Assets as per balance sheet
7&K HAbEWIR R Deposits and other receivables 979 30,829
BeRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 418,068 378,016
H R @ m A
JiRzeMEE
Other financial liabilities
at amortised cost
—E-=F ZE-CF
2013 2012
FTER FTERT
HK$°000 HK$'000
REEABRITWAR Liabilities as per balance sheet
FE 1 Bt 1B 2 B R IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 149,707 395,224
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LT HEu@

(a)

—E-ZFEER

BRATVEFAENIEEH

EWMEE — A6
RELETEZZ2HRE

1

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — Consolidated

—E-=F —E-——F

2013 2012

TERT FET

HK$’000 HK$°000

Investment in unlisted securities - 33,354

RZZE——% XEBEHEShine
GoldR HEZEBATLIHZE
Bl AEEREIABELSH
% £70,000,00038 7T K Shine
Golda#RES  BEHESS
AMHEBIT TRREFHER
TEHHRRALESFES%HF
BB WA REFABEREZH
# 1 5 Shine GoldE BTRA
f60%ZE70% @ RTEEFHREM
EeoABRRESARGETRETS

o

il
Ju

\r

RZE——8NB+xB X&
B A< % 531,200,0008
THERTERES  HER
26.7%MEBERERE - REH T
& AEBRERRMAE
Eg WHEMY Shine Gold &
MERBEHREREBEARY
h HMR=ZZF-—F+=A=
+—H ' Shine Gold REE B
MRERESEANAREENEE D
o

R-ZZE-——-%+-RA=+—-8"
HASEHEEENEIEE
THEBRTHITRRESNAF
BETHE HATRRESRN
—E-—F+ZRB=+—-HMIR
AEEEAFEEE  HLER
EHFIERPHERNE BB -

KEEBEERERAFT

In 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with
Shine Gold and its beneficial owners, pursuant to which
the Group agreed to subscribe for convertible bonds
of Shine Gold in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$70,000,000 which would be issued in two tranches.
The convertible bonds bear interest from its date of
issue at a rate of 5% per annum on the principal
amount, and may be converted in full into 60%—-70% of
the issued share capital of Shine Gold any time over five
years, depending on certain conditions. The convertible
bonds were not traded on an active market.

On 16 August 2011, the Group acquired the first
tranche of convertible bonds with principal amount
of HK$31,200,000, which represents 26.7% potential
voting rights. Upon the first tranche completion, the
Group nominated representatives on the board of
directors and has consequently significant influence on
the financial and operating policy decisions of Shine
Gold, which is thus an associate of the Group in
accordance with HKFRS at 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the convertible bonds were
fair-valued by Jones Lang LaSalle, an independent firm
of valuers not connected to the Group. As the carrying
values of the convertible bonds approximate their fair
values as at 31 December 2012, no gain/loss was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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11

LT HEuw
(a) BAFEFTARANIEERD

EREE — a4

RZE—=(6"F=-+—-H K
£ @ A K45 538,800,000
BINE-HRITERES -

R-ZZE-=5+-A—-0 XK
BERUBRRESFZHERS
Shine Gold#I70%E #4TIRAK »
REBREE HASEHREEE
MBYEEMITHEHTHTER
BREFHAFEETEE D
FEMFTIRIBE19% B AR
ZFoHATRRESNIREEE
HER-ZE-=F+-A—HH
DNFEEE RUEERE Y
BRETEAKE BE -

N %  Shine GoldiRESE
BRI REER R AR EBH
BAT -

1

Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — Consolidated

The Group acquired the second tranche of convertible
bonds with principal amount of HK$38,800,000 on 21
February 2013.

On 1 November 2013,
convertible bonds in full

the Group converted the
into 70%
share capital of Shine Gold. At conversion date, the
convertible bonds were fair-valued by Jones Lang

of the issued

LaSalle, an independent firm of valuers not connected
to the Group. The fair value estimates are based on a
pre-tax discount rate of 19%. As the carrying amounts
of the convertible bonds approximated their fair values
as at 1 November 2013, no gain/loss was recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to the conversion, Shine Gold has become
a subsidiary of the Group in accordance with HKFRS.
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12 BE — &4 12 Inventories — Consolidated

—E-=F —E-C—F

2013 2012
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B AR Raw materials 238,386 188,503
E®m Work in progress 117,114 94,394
HHm Finished goods 231,532 168,102
587,032 450,999
7 & M A #41,449,184,000/8 T (=& The costs of inventories recognised as expense and included
— Z % :1,565,365,000/8 ) # R 5 in cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$1,449,184,000
X UEBFTAHERK o (2012: HK$1,565,365,000).
FEEEHNR13,703,0008 T (ZF— Write-back of inventories amounting to approximately
Z % # {847,307,0005 T) » BFFA HK$13,703,000 (2012: Impairment of HK$47,307,000) was
HEMAK o included in cost of sales.
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13

BRESZERIRRE — &6

13 Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated

—EB—=F —E-C—F

2013 2012
FHET FHT
HK$°000 HK$’000

EWRESIER Trade receivables
— REE=H — from third parties 343,624 316,455
— REBEER (KEE37(d) — from related parties (Note 37(d)) 1,703 1,923
Wk EE Bills receivable 14,172 13,145
359,499 331,523
R EEE Less: provision for impairment (484) (5,826)
359,015 325,697

RUEZEIRZBRESHEEAAD
FEMRE -

RUESZRNEIEZEREEERFFE
RENEF AREDHEFEHN
FEHNFI0EI0X - FEENEE
AR RARET MEALEE
FHSEEERRTREEINERARIM
FHBTRHOTRXFER - 2%
FAMHENRUEZRIARZEIR
BT

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable
approximate their fair values.

Majority of trade receivables are with customers having an
appropriate credit history. The Group grants its customers
credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days. Most of the Group’s
sales are on open account, while sales made to a small
number of customers are covered by letters of credit issued
by banks or settled by documents against payment issued
by banks. The ageing of trade and bills receivable based on
invoice date is as follows:

—E-—=F —E-—C—F

2013 2012

THER FTERT

HK$’000 HK$°000

0E30K 0-30 days 294,904 259,952
31£60X 31-60 days 50,234 52,812
61£90XK 61-90 days 12,707 8,761
91£120K 91-120 days 388 2,163
1212180k 121-180 days 199 1,618
1812365% 181-365 days 422 3,481
365K M £ Over 365 days 645 2,736
359,499 331,523
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13 EREZRRAREE — &6

(%)

ERESRZXBBLRIOR—BFR
ERE RZTE-ZF+=RA=+-—
B BHBBEOREFRRIEREZE
8 ZR 7% 5789,0008 T (ZF—=
F:1,424,0008 T)  JIEE TP
BERCHENEFEHE ZERWKE

S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated

(Continued)

Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are
generally not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2013,
trade receivables of HK$789,000 (2012: HK$1,424,000)
were more than 90 days past due but considered not to be
impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The past due ageing of

SZIRTNBERENT these trade receivables is as follows:
—E-—=F —E-——F
2013 2012
FET FTERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
912120k 91-120 days 202 154
1212180k 121-180 days 401 228
1812365k 181-365 days 24 619
365K £ Over 365 days 162 423
789 1,424

R-ZE-=ZF+-A=+-H BRE
T HHEE 2 BN E SRR A484,000
B (ZE— =% :5,826,000% t)
ZEEWRNEETEF(BEEER
RS ERECER)ER - 25

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$484,000
(2012: HK$5,826,000) were impaired and had been fully
provided for. These receivables relate to a number of
customers, including customers in unexpected difficult
economic situations. The past due ageing of these

WA B SRIRRNT: receivables is as follows:
—E—=F —E-——F
2013 2012
THER FERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
0£30K 0-30 days - —
31260k 31-60 days - —
61Z290K 61-90 days - 124
912120k 91-120 days - 572
121£180K 121-180 days - 123
1812365k 181-365 days - 2,694
365K M £ Over 365 days 484 2,313
484 5,826
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13 EWREZEFREE — &4 13 Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated

(1) (Continued)
BURESKRRREENREREZS Movements of provision for impairment of trade and bills
mE: receivable are as follows:
—E—=F —E-——F
2013 2012
TET TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
F4 Beginning of the year 5,826 7,817
EHEH Exchange differences 103 56
FEWE ZIRFRE (BE)FHE Impairment/(write-back) of trade
receivables, net 5,352 (1,356)
FERMBEETEREMNEKRIKT Receivables written off during the year
as uncollectible (2,812) (691)
EREOARILQEER Transferred to discontinued operations (7,985) —
FR End of the year 484 5,826
EHERKRIRRBENESZRERD The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
FA-—MRITEMAXZ - sTABEIRE have been included in general and administrative expenses.
MEEN SRR EE MRS Amounts charged to the allowance account are written off
88 © when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
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13 EWESHERREE — 46f 13 Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated

() (Continued)
AEBNEREZERAREBUTS The Group’s trade and bills receivable were denominated in
EMITE: the following currencies:
—E—=F —E-——F
2013 2012
THERT FTART
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ey United States Dollars 260,022 201,237
FEIARY Chinese Renminbi 82,887 115,063
BT Hong Kong Dollars 11,980 15,085
Hith Others 4,610 138
359,499 331,523
RBEEEHRANEERKA LRE The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
BIRRNAFE AEBAREEL the fair value of the receivables mentioned above. The Group
AIKH @ - does not hold any collateral.
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14

BE BANRERHEMER

14

Deposits, prepayments and other

R 7K receivables
&6 AAT
Consolidated Company
—E-= —E-CZF —E-—=F —E-C—fF
2013 2012 2013 2012
TET FTART THERT THER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 Current
He kBBEAR Rental, utility and other
Hihiz & deposits 15,746 6,062 = —
EEMIMBEMNRE Prepayments for operating
expenses 17,100 2,207 3 201
FENEMNRE Prepayments for
inventories 9,522 6,245 - —
Ak E AR Value-added tax
recoverable 7,408 8,828 - —
BREFINZRE Claims receivable from
customers 3,451 2,174 - —
H i FE Uk IR X Other receivables 20,948 40,064 976 30,829
74175 65,580 979 31,030
FENHE Non-current
¥RERS Non-current deposits 44,880 24,703 - —
FARBELEEHES AN Non-current prepayments
g for operating lease
rentals 26,596 — - —
H 1 3 B 27 & U IR 7R Other non-current
receivables 10,530 — - —
EXRT-—HEEELA Loans to an associate
(K 5E (a)) (Note (a)) - 173,493 - —
82,006 198,196 - —
156,181 263,776 979 31,030

REeRESBEQNFEMLES - RES
HREANEERBRALEBRANAF
BE-AEETEFHEMERR

The carrying amounts of deposits approximate their fair
values. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of the items mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral.
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14 HB& FAANREREMERK

R X ()

AEE K HE AR EAT S E R 5

14 Deposits, prepayments and other

receivables (Continued)

The Group’s other receivables were denominated in the

&: following currencies:
—E—=F —E-——F
2013 2012
THER TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ET United States Dollars 19,387 45,366
HE AR Chinese Renminbi 39,863 14,468
BT Hong Kong Dollars 35,265 10,619
Ht Others 1,040 2,550
95,555 73,003

Bat: Note:

(a)

150

—E-ZFEER

ERT-HBELT

RZZE——FNA » KEEBHEShine
GoldfT X ERME » Bl £&H
B Shine Gold#it H—ZEH@ME -
R-—ZE-—-5+-A=+—-H'@
Shine Gold#t Y & R & WA &
#5F 173,493,000 T - 25 &
REBER-—SREE LEFF
REHE - RZE-=HE+-A—
A AT # IR & % ¥ &% 5 Shine Gold
M70% MR #E (K 336) % » Shine
GoldRIEBE BB RELAK AKX
SENHBAR

KEEBEERERAFT

(a)

Loans to an associate

In September 2011, the Group entered into a loan agreement
with Shine Gold, under which the Group granted a loan
facility to Shine Gold. As at 31 December 2012, total
loans and interest receivable from Shine Gold amounted
to HK$173,493,000. The loans will not be repayable within
one year and carried an interest at 8% per annum. Upon
the conversion of convertible bonds to 70% equity interests
of Shine Gold (Note 36) on 1 November 2013, Shine Gold
has become the subsidiary of the Group in accordance with
HKFRS.
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15 BEARTER REHR 15 Pledged bank deposits/Bank deposits with

BB=EANBRTER R initial terms of over three months/Cash and
RBSEEY cash equivalents
a5 NG|
Consolidated Company
—g—=FfF —E-CF —E-=F —E-—F
2013 2012 2013 2012
THET FTHT THT FTHT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRERTER Pledged bank deposits 4,281 1,244 = —

EEHRER=MA Bank deposits with initial

MIRITER terms of over three
months 5,000 30,100 - —
RITRFERE Cash at bank and on hand 62,461 72,821 718 202
THIR TR Short-term bank deposits 809,537 873,744 417,350 377,814
871,998 946,565 418,068 378,016
881,279 977,909 418,068 378,016
RZE-=%5+ZA=+—-8B  #R17 As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits of HK$4,281,000
77 74,281,000 T(Z & — Z & (2012: HK$1,244,000) were placed in a bank as collaterals
1,244,0008 T)EFERET A against certain trade finance facilities granted by a bank. The
ROIETETESGREFGENERR - weighted average interest rate on these deposits was 1.54%
RZE-=5+ZA=+—-80 Z%%7F per annum at 31 December 2013 (2012: 3.3% per annum).
RHMEFGERER1.54% (ZF—
ZH I FFEI3%) o
BEHERTERMETIGFRNER1.54% The weighted average interest rate of short-term bank
(ZEB—ZF  FRE1.4%) - HERIT deposits was 1.54% per annum (2012: 1.4% per annum). The
FRRATLENEFREAR=ZEARMU short-term bank deposits have maturities of 3 months or less
Te at inception.
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152

CEBRBRTER EEHR
BE=EANETER Bt
REEEED @

CEARTER REHREB =18
ANBTERURRERRESEEY
AT S EREHE:

15 Pledged bank deposits/Bank deposits with

initial terms of over three months/Cash and
cash equivalents (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of
over three months and cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

il P N

Consolidated Company
—E-= —E-—F —E-—= —E-—F
2013 2012 2013 2012
FTEx TERT FET FTART
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EP United States Dollars 336,330 464,476 179,336 269,905
FEARY Chinese Renminbi 462,928 451,117 238,531 107,909
BT Hong Kong Dollars 68,078 61,251 201 202
BT Euro 8,137 — = —
Hitb Others 5,806 1,065 - —
881,279 977,909 418,068 378,016

AEEUPEARBITENSHEFR
TEX REHREB=EANRKT
BRUARRERRESENEFRR S
BAEREBENRT BREPEAR
HERRIBURBESEHTERK
BEIR B ARG EMG NI EE
HRBRBEBFRE

RESAHNEAEERRECER
ROEX BREHRBEB=EANRK
TRERUARRER RS EEBNNIRE
EHEE -

—E-ZFEER

KEEBEERERAFT

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank deposits with initial
terms of over three months and cash and cash equivalents
denominated in Chinese Renminbi were deposited with
banks in Mainland China and Hong Kong. The conversion of
Chinese Renminbi into foreign currencies and the remittance
of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland China Government.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
approximates the carrying values of the pledged bank
deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of over three months
and the cash and cash equivalents.
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16 EREZHRAREE — 44 16 Trade and bills payable — Consolidated

—EB—=F —E-C—F

2013 2012
TERT THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB ZIRR Trade payables
— FE=H — to third parties 238,068 196,810
— TEAEF (£37(d)) — to related parties (Note 37(d)) 90,544 64,029
ENEE Bills payable 6,596 10,997
335,208 271,836
REZAHNTENENESRRRE The ageing of the trade and bills payable based on invoice
BIRE WM T : date is as follows:
—E—-= —E-ZF
2013 2012
TERT TAER
HK$’000 HK$’000
0£30Kk 0-30 days 130,694 111,494
31£60X 31-60 days 99,820 87,504
61£90K 61-90 days 69,854 46,836
91£120K 91-120 days 30,298 21,369
1212180k 121-180 days 1,332 1,890
1812365% 181-365 days 2,859 1,387
365K £ Over 365 days 351 1,356
335,208 271,836
AEENEREZRARZEUTS The Group’s trade and bills payable were denominated in the
E¥GHE: following currencies:
—E—=F —E-—C—F
2013 2012
THERT FTAER
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ep United States Dollars 238,491 183,704
BT Hong Kong Dollars 82,627 52,546
REARE Chinese Renminbi 12,703 35,583
Hit Others 1,387 3
335,208 271,836
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17 EtRRRHAESIRR 17 Accruals and other payables
&bt b NG|
Consolidated Company
—E2—= —E-CF —E—= —E-—F
2013 2012 2013 2012
FTER TER TERT FTER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

EERAKAEIRFK  Accrual for employee

benefit costs 123,693 126,364 7,169 7,260
A EER Value added tax payable 8,061 9,030 - —
EWEFESE Deposits received from
customers 2,537 16,115 - —
Hi2ERM S EsIRA  Accrual for other operating
expenses 55,137 44,540 374 198
Bstmis#EE BESR  Accrued marketing,
EERX advertising and
promotion expenses 1,258 766 - —
BEYE BER Payable for purchases
5 0 FE 13 IR 3K of property, plant and
equipment 29,738 37,202 - —
EWEFEFELERE Deposit received for
THMERE leasehold land held for
sale - 36,931 - —
H 1l & 7 0R 5K Other payables 15,909 10,302 5 3
236,333 281,250 7,548 7,461
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18 fBE — &6 18 Borrowings — Consolidated

—E-=F —E-CF
2013 2012
TER FHx
HK$’000 HK$'000

B 5 Current
ERBBEORTER Trust receipts import bank loans 68,486 12,396
THRITIEE Short-term bank borrowings 86,224 —
154,710 12,396

AEEMERECR-FAEE - A
REFRNZEITERN HEHEE
WIEEEHERAQFERS -

RZZE-=F+-A=1+—-8 " 55tk
BEORITE 68,486,000 (=F
— =% :12,396,00058 7T) A AL A 12
HECEERR—BFERRRNE
TROGFRERER - R=ZFT-—=F+=
A=+-8B > EHRTEEHFAATR
HECEERR—BFERRRNE
FTROTFRERR o

AEBEENRESEUATIEE T
&

All of the Group’s borrowings were repayable within one
year. The carrying amounts of the short-term borrowings
approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

As at 31 December 2013, trust receipts import bank loans
of HK$68,486,000 (2012: HK$12,396,000) were secured by
a corporate guarantee given by the Company and certain
bank deposits from a non-controlling shareholder. As at 31
December 2013, short-term bank borrowings were secured
by a corporate guarantee given by the Company and certain
bank deposits from a non-controlling shareholder.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in the following currencies:

—E—=F ZE-ZF

2013 2012
THER FTET

HK$’000 HK$'000

E United States Dollars 11,438 12,396
BT Hong Kong Dollars 142,648 —
Hity Others 624 —
154,710 12,396
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18 fBE — 6w 18 Borrowings — Consolidated (continued)
R-ZEBE-=H+=ZA=+—-H0 A5H As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s borrowings of
& & 5154,710,0008 T (=& —= HK$154,710,000 (2012: HK$12,396,000) were on floating
¥ 112,396,000/ T) 1R FEF & rates. The weighted average interest rates (per annum) at the
R REERNMETS (F)RMEN balance sheet date were as follows:

T:
—E—=F —E--F
2013 2012
EXWBEEORTER Trust receipts import bank loan 1.9% 1.9%
EHIRITEE Short-term bank borrowings 1.7% —
R=Z-=F+-A=1t-0 XKHE As at 31 December 2013, the Group has the following
MABRARITEENT: undrawn banking facilities:
—E—=fF —E-—F
2013 2012
TERT FEx
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEA R Floating rates
— R—FREH — expiring within one year 250,620 261,493
R—EFERIBHNEERAFERE & The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
R-ZE-=FZ@EAHHK - subject to review at various dates during 2013.

156 -—z-=#&2% KEEEEBRERAT



SR EMERMET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 EZEFMEH — &6 19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated
ELEFMBHEEREBBRERSEER Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
EREENAREEEHNARES there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
BEREEMEHBERE —HREAERE against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
EREHEESE REFEOT: taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction. The net amounts

are as follows:

—EB—=F —E-C—F

2013 2012
FTER FTERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REFEEE: Deferred tax assets:
— 2B AZKREK — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
REFBEE after more than 12 months 8,158 8,058
— R2EARKEEH — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
EEBREEE within 12 months 2,002 2,769
10,160 10,827
ELEHBER: Deferred tax liabilities:
— RBREZEEN — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
EEFBEEE after more than 12 months (22,922) (6,211)
— 12EAREEW — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
EEREER within 12 months (12,300) (4,728)
(35,222) (10,939)
EEREERE — F8 Deferred tax liabilites — net (25,062) (112)
REFSHIRESBH FEOT: The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:
—E—=fF —E-——F
2013 2012
THER TExT
HK$’000 HK$'000
F9) Beginning of the year (112) (3,676)
s 8% BT 88 A =] (BfF &£ 36) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) (19,636) —
RFEERBER (M F27) Recognised in the income statement
(Note 27) (5,314) 3,564
FR End of the year (25,062) (112)
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19 EERSH — 66w 19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated
(Continued)
ELEHEAERERED(RARE The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities without
— BB AR ER TR E N 1 taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the
T same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
EERBEEE: Deferred tax liabilities:
AP
BRANENHR
BBHE LFEUE KEBEEFE  Withholding tax
Tax Fair value Unrealised on undistributed @t
depreciation gains loss earnings Total
THERT THER THER THER THERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZ-ZF At 1 January 2012
-BA-H (2,563) — (11,125) (2,589) (16,277)
RABRER Recognised in the income
statement 330 — 5,370 (788) 4,912
R-ZE-ZF At 31 December 2012
+ZA=1+-H (2,233) — (5,755) (3,377) (11,365)
RABRER Recognised in the income
statement (238) 1,434 (5,844) (468) (5,116)
I} & Shine Gold Acquisition of Shine Gold
(B 5E36) (Note 36) — (19,636) — — (19,636)
RZE-=F At 31 December 2013
+=A=+-H (2,471) (18,202) (11,599) (3,845) (36,117)
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SR EMERMET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated

(Continued)

BELBERE: Deferred tax assets:
KRR R

BRBER unrealised Hith st
Tax losses profit Others Total
TET TER T TER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZE-ZF—-f—H At 1 January 2012 1,183 7,162 4,256 12,601
RABRER Recognised in the income statement 132 (5,474) 3,994 (1,348)
RZZB-Z5+ZF=+—-H At 31 December 2012 1,315 1,688 8,250 11,253
RABRER Recognised in the income statement (314) 373 (257) (198)
R-ZE-=f+=-A=+-H At 31 December 2013 1,001 2,061 7,993 11,055

HEUEEBRRERH SREH
HEARBEANZ AN EERESE
BREERBHREE - R=-FT—=
F+-A=t-B XEELERE
18982,202,000% T(=Z & — = F:
542,884,000 ) # R 7 &£ & K
HARERBRBUANELEFMESHE
7%202,286,000%8 T(=Z & — = &
123,616,000 7T) o 14 K # R B &%
/& 18 % %8502,322,00058 T (= & —
= £ :147,694,00058 ) 7 LA £ R
&8, m & B K B 886,952,000
B (= & — = £:84,573,000/8
JT) > 74,139,000 T(Z T — = F:
89,745,000 7t) - 63,603,000/
(= & — = £:59,967,0008 7T)
115,761,000 (= & — = #F:
111,494,00038 7t) 139,425,000 7t
(ZE-—ZF B2 R=-F—
F-ZE2-RE -ZE-RE-Z2-
tERZFE-NEHH -

HREEEEERARKEREET
MEAARERBANBRE @A
SEYTERBUELSHREMNBER
EEFTEHEE2,413,0008 T (=%
—Zf:1,6050008 ) R=F —
ZF+ZR=+t-B REREBANSE
H# £48,260,0008 T(Z 2 — = F:
32,105,000% 7t) °

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$202,286,000
(2012: HK$123,616,000) in respect of losses amounting to
HK$982,202,000 (2012: HK$542,884,000) that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. Total unrecognised
tax losses of HK$502,322,000 (2012: HK$147,694,000) can
be carried forward indefinitely; while cumulative tax losses
of HK$86,952,000 (2012: HK$84,573,000), HK$74,139,000
(2012: HK$89,745,000), HK$63,603,000 (2012:
HK$59,967,000), HK$115,761,000 (2012: HK$111,494,000),
HK$139,425,000 (2012: Nil) will expire in 2014, 2015, 2016,
2017 and 2018 respectively.

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$2,413,000 (2012:
HK$1,605,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain subsidiaries, as it is management’s intention to
reinvest such amounts in the foreseeable future. Unremitted
earnings totalled HK$48,260,000 at 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$32,105,000).
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20 RRAR 20 Share capital
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
=== —E-—F
2013 2012
FTERT TER
HK$’000 HK$'000
EE Authorised
3,000,000,0008% 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
EREBEOIBTHNEER HK$0.1 each 300,000 300,000
ZEREE
Number of
ordinary
shares
i TER
‘000 HK$'000
EERTRAR Issued and fully paid up
RZE-ZHR At 31 December 2012 and 2013
—E-=H+=-A=+—H 1,268,400 126,840

EkRE

ARARBHNWMEBRESENT:
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—E-ZFEER

BEXRAHERABRETE

HRETESER-—FEBAXR
EERY HEAQLARKER
HEXLAHERABRE - R
—EERFEKAQAARBEER
AHERABRETE Bl
44,400,0000 ERE - TR E
B114BTE2.28 B TR EWE
BRRABADARS o RIEFEITHN
KER HEBRER-ZEX
FE_EEN\E=FEREE I
RZE-AERATHEH - K
EEYRLESEENETUAR
SHENEELNSERE - RiE
BALNHERABRESSE &
DNEFABREENERE -

KeREEZERER

Share options

The Company operates two share option schemes as

described below:

(i)

DA

Pre-IPO share option scheme

Pre-IPO share options were granted by the Company to
certain directors and a consultant for their services to
the Group. In 2006, the Company granted 44,400,000
options under the Pre-IPO share option scheme to
subscribe for shares in the Company at prices ranging
from HK$1.14 to HK$2.28 per share. These options
vested according to a pre-determined schedule over
three years from 2006 to 2008 and will expire on 10
May 2016. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle these options in cash.
No additional options can be granted under the Pre-
IPO share option scheme.
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20 KA
B8 A% RE ()
(i) FERETE

ARTRM—EABHI0F 2=
E-A"ENBEENERES
2 IEERERTAEEENM
EE-EFEE EE- -EFFP -#
- RESBABAAD
AEE - THEEHESERE
HERAME R ()R E1E ; (if) IR 1
RENBH(EAEERIRES
BERZRERDR (B
BHENEBARERMINERIK
mE; R(i)RORBEZENAH
AEEEXAREHNBRERTE
WRDRETTELNEERE
RGN FEHRTE=ZEFIER
BE - AEEUTRELIEIHRT
MEFURSERNEEREE
fi% £ o

RITEBREZE RABEAME
FHTEENT:

R—A-BR
+=B=+-"

20 Share capital (continued)

Share options (Continued)

(ii)

At 1 January and
31 December

Share option scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme,
which will remain in force for 10 years up to August
2016. Share options may be granted to any director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner
or adviser of or contractor to the Group. The exercise
price is determined by the Board and shall not be less
than the higher of (i) the nominal value of a share; (ii)
the closing price of one share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date
of offer, which shall be a business day; and (iii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle these options in cash.

The number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

—E—=fF —E-—F
2013 2012
BRF¥Y B ¥
TEE TEE
Average Average
exercise exercise
price per BB AR £ price per B A% fE
share Options share Options
BT T4 BT )
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
1.466 21,000 1.466 21,000

HE-Z-—ER-_F-=F+
“A=+-RLLFE R{TFEBE
BREHBREENMEFTITE
BUEEE HE_ZT-—-FK
—E-=F+ZB=+—-HLHF
B FEBRETFIE -

There is no movement in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average exercise
prices during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2013. All the share options are exercisable for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2013.
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20

162

IR () 20 Share capital (continued)

B IR RE (@) Share options (Continued)

(i) HBREE ®) (i)  Share option scheme (Continued)
REARTHEERENIHES Share options outstanding at the end of the year have
ROTEEBUOT: the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

B B R

Share options

BRITEE —E-=F —EB-CF
Exercise price

EHAH Expiry date per share 2013 2012
BT T4 T4
HK$ ’000 000
—E-XERA+H 10 May 2016 1.140 9,000 9,000
—E-XERA+H 10 May 2016 1.596 10,000 10,000
—E-R"ERATH 10 May 2016 2.280 2,000 2,000
21,000 21,000

RBE-Z-=5+-RA=1-—
HIEFE  YWERSHFIERN
RIEMBRERASN(Z2—ZF:
ﬂ) o

A

“E-ZHEFR XEEEERAERAT

No share option cost was charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil).
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21 B 21 Reserves
(@ &6 (a) Consolidated
W 43
HREE EERE
Share- (Kt =E) MERE
R EE based Statutory Foreign EftiffE REBEA
Share payment reserves currency Other Retained @t
premium reserve (Note) translation reserves earnings Total
TEn TEn TER TEn TEn FER FER
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE--“f-A-H At 1 January 2012 666,939 9,282 10,110 110,478 184,867 968,412 1,950,088
EWBEER Currency translation differences
— X458 — Group — — — 4,619 — — 4,619
— BELF — Associates — — — 773 - — 773
BERKRE Dividend paid
— ZE--EXH — 2011 final - - - - — (38052  (38,052)
—CE-ZEhf — 2012 interim - - - - — (38052  (38,052)
ARAREREA Profit attributable to equity
i gl holders of the Company — — — — — 150,185 150,185
ERELERE Transfer to statutory reserves — — 284 — — (284) —
R=ZZ--f+-A=+-H At 31 December 2012 666,939 9,282 10,394 115,870 184,867 1,042,209 2,029,561
EWHREER Currency translation differences
— X&E — Group — — — 15,003 — — 15,003
— KELF — Associates — — — 695 - — 695
EEHEREZBN Changes in ownership interests
BERTHEAREEE in subsidiaries without change
&5 1% B ([ 535) of control (Note 35) — — — — 13,378 — 13,378
2RE Dividend paid
—ZZ-"FXH — 2012 final — — — — —  (50,736)  (50,736)
—CE-zEdy — 2013 interim - - - - — (38052  (38,052)
ARAREBEA Profit attributable to equity
i gl holders of the Company — — — — — 151,205 151,205
ERELERE Transfer to statutory reserves — - 1,115 — — (1,115) —
R=ZZE-=%+=-H=+-H At 31 December 2013 666,939 9,282 11,509 131,568 198,245 1,103,511 2,121,054
& Representing:
BE_Z-=FXRHMRE  Proposed 2013 final dividend 50,736
Hit Others 1,052,775
1,103,511
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21

164

ERCE)) 21 Reserves (Continued)
(@ A6t (a) Consolidated (Continued)
M Note:
BREPBEARENEG  KATRF As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
BAERIREENHBLATER subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China
HEEESSMEENLERECHEE are required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit
BEIEFEBENBRBER2EFNIS (after offsetting prior years’ losses) to the general reserve
BA-BREBEROERREES - — and the enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by
REBTREEEEEFEEEY their respective boards of directors. The general reserve can
BRITAKR MEEXERREELHTR be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the
EHREB NBE-ZE-=F+ issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund
“—B=+—HILEE 1,115,000 can be utilised for the development of business operations.
TT(ZE——5%:284,0008T)ESD During the year ended 31 December 2013, HK$1,115,000
BE-REERCEREES - (2012: HK$284,000) was appropriated to the general reserve
and the enterprise expansion fund.
(b) ARFH (b) Company
PN
BES:
B %E  Share-based HERS REEN
Share payment Contributed Retained Ehy
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
FEx TiEn ThR ThR TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
RZZ--%-A-H At 1 January 2012 666,939 9,282 528,331 112,972 1,317,524
AAAREEEARLET Profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company — — — 65,058 65,058
BfRE Dividend paid
—ZE2--EXH — 2011 final - - —  (38052)  (38,052)
— ZE-ZF4H — 2012 interim — — —  (38,052) (38,052
R=B-Z#+ZB=+-H At 31 December 2012 666,939 9,282 528,331 101,926 1,306,478
KARRERBA Profit attributable to equity holders of
A5 & A the Company — — — 301475 301475
EfFRE Dividend paid
— ZB-ZEXH — 2012 final - - —  (50,736)  (50,736)
— ZE-ZEhf — 2013 interim — — —  (38052)  (38,052)
W-B-=5+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2013 666,939 9,282 528,331 314,613 1,519,165
& Representing:
BE-T-ZERERE Proposed 2013 final dividend 50,736
Hit Others 263,877
314,613

—E-ZEFH
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22 Htlr A 22 Other income
—EB-=F —E-C—F
2013 2012
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEWA Rental income 1,315 1,098
HERKA Royalty income - 55
Hity Others 3,099 1,060
4,414 2,213
23 Httlizm — FHE 23 Other gains — net
—E-= —E-CF
2013 2012
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
& Lt AR R Gain on disposal of land use rights 12,368 —
HEME  HBREED Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
W&/ (BB — F8E plant and equipment, net 49 (7086)
EHWEFH Net exchange gains 3,082 3,887
15,499 3,181
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24 EMEEIHNAX

24 Expenses by nature

FAXBREEERS  HERDHAA
UR—BRITEREAX 20T

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
costs and general and administrative expenses are analysed

166

as follows:
—E-=F —E-—CF
2013 2012
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EFEANEMRREER Raw materials and consumables used 1,257,091 1,249,257
BB 8K m Purchases of finished goods 319,415 211,699
MIkKS>BEHR Processing and subcontracting charges 72,954 93,234
SERERX Manufacturing overheads 36,965 37,840
=315 Sample expenses 18,561 14,327
BEmREIHRFERER Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress (127,322) 104,409
M BERREINE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 94,264 82,099
M BERRERE Impairment of property, plant and
equipment 44,320 —
T AR Amortisation of land use rights 572 565
BEEEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 7,445 —
EER AR X (M EE25) Employment benefit expense (Note 25) 809,635 711,995
EE -RARRBEX Freight, delivery and insurance expenses 55,305 54,930
HEREEY Royalties expense - 148
HEMRS Sales commission 233 114
mHEEE  BEEREERX Marketing, advertising and promotion
expenses 3,714 2,203
EERLAERER TR Operating lease rental in respect of office
EFpgEfie equipment and land and buildings
— BEHES — minimum lease payments 73,389 45,005
— RS — contingent rent 5,796 799
BB 2 Auditors’ remuneration 4,892 3,974
FEWIRFRE — F5 Impairment of receivables, net
— ERESERRRERE — trade and bills receivable 484 18
— e BAAREREM — deposits, prepayments and other
EWRE receivables — 1,034
FEER), BE — F8 (Write-back)/impairment for inventories,
net (13,703) 31,718
Hipax Other expenses 162,583 149,443
HERK - HERDH Total cost of sales, selling and
B R — R RITH distribution costs and general and
B A% administrative expenses 2,826,593 2,794,811

—E-ZFEER

KEEBEERERAFT
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25 EERAHEX

25 Employment benefit expense

—EB-=F —E-C—F
2013 2012
FTET FTERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
IE - -H& A& Wages, salaries, commission,
B CRAREMEBEARER allowances, bonus and other
termination payments 759,042 657,342
BURER — REMAFE Retirement benefit — defined
contribution schemes 30,368 33,800
BRRHMF R Welfare and other benefits 20,225 20,853
809,635 711,995
(a) BARBRRE — REMHRK (a) Retirement benefit costs — defined

it &

rEBRHEEBREES NS
Tt rBeTa(RES
B kIHEBIZTAEEN
REENGE - RIBEBRESF
B AEEEIIREEEEAR
BREMLAESIENSESRM
BEWASHIEEEAMER - &
FREEZENERAMNLRE
1,250 MEMNHRAEER
FEMR o REBMBRA R INE BE
ERRBEANER -

BIEBREAENRIRE - &
SEARHETEAEETEE
01 B 2R & By R ARG BIE LK o
AEBEREABAREBRANRA
(BEIE % RFEREA)
Ko mstEHNR  MAKEE
78 B WA K95% £ 28%1F i
Mo MBRERN - AEEBEK
BRRARBNERTRNERE
BREHERAKTEEERNTTE
HREENZMRKREBNERE

contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join certain Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
(the “MPF Schemes”), defined contribution schemes
managed by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Schemes, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the schemes
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and the employee
are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. The Group has no further
obligations for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-sponsored
retirement schemes for certain of its employees in
Mainland China. The Group’s employees make monthly
contributions to the schemes at approximately 8%
of the relevant income (comprising wages, salaries,
allowances and bonus), while the Group contributes
5% to 28% of such income and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement schemes are responsible for the entire post-
retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees.
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25 EERAHEL@®

(a)

168

—E-ZFEER

BRABANEE — RERK
= &l (&)

AEBAERNBEZMBLATS
BEREESMERNRTE - A5H
(BE)RHEEEESAKEERE
BMABEIE #F2 2EK
TEAL) B916% [ st B R - A&
BRI BAERERKRRE
MWEE -

AEETRERRBRZHBEL
BAEEREESMERTE - &
SEEAREEBATEN0.8%
BB o ARBRENINE
AEARRRBRBNNEE -

BR AL IR REE L E
HiRKRBANNERESE -

KEEBEERERAFT

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(a)

Retirement benefit costs — defined
contribution plans (Continued)

The Group participates in a retirement scheme for
qualified employees of its subsidiary in Vietnam.
Each of the Group (the employer) and its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 16% of
the employees’ relevant income (comprising wages,
salaries, allowances and bonus). The Group has no
further obligations for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions.

The Group also participates in a retirement scheme for
qualified employees of its subsidiaries in Cambodia.
The Group makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 0.8% of the monthly wages of the employees. The
Group has no further obligations for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

The Group has no material obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond contributions to the above schemes.
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25 EERABEX@ 25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)
(b) EEMS (b) Directors’ emoluments
BEZZ-=F+"ZRA=+—H The remuneration of each director of the Company for
EFE RARARASEENHFH W the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:
T:

B8 BHEBEREN
23 B 17 5 A
Employer’s Share-based
ME#L EEBEE contribution compensation @t

He ¢ Discretionary  Housing to retirement in respect of Total
EEHS Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowances  schemes share options  Total
ThERL Th=x TERT TER TER TAR TEx

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000

HTEE Executive directors
ZER Li Kwok Tung, Roy - 4123 1,500 - 15 - 5638
RET (M () Lai Ching Ping (Note (a)) - 3,488 1,500 - 15 - 5003
®E Cheung Chi - 2,252 1,500 - 15 - 3,767
ZER (M) Lee Kwok Leung

(Note (a)) - 1812 1,500 - 15 - 3327
BIFHTEE Independent non-

executive directors
EEL Ma Ka Chun 100 - - - - - 100
BxE Chan Kwong Fai 150 - - - - - 150
BHAE Kwan Kai Cheong 100 - - - - - 100
BE K (M (b)) Wun Kwang (Note (b)) 46 - - - - - 46

396 11,675 6,000 - 60 - 18,131
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25 EERAHEL@®

(b)

170

—E-ZFEER

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

EEM e @ (b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
HEZE-Z-——H5+-A=+-—-H The remuneration of each director of the Company for
LEE  AREEESHHFMO the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:
T:
BHRGE ERBREN
2 B4R
Employer's  Share-based
BEZL  EEEE  contribution compensation
we #¢ Discretionary  Housing to retirement in respect of @it
EENE Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowances schemes  share options Total
TEx  TEx TEx TR TER TEx  T#Exn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HiTEE Executive directors
SR Li Kwok Tung, Roy — 3950 1,600 - 14 — 5564
 §-4 Lai Ching Ping — 3339 1,600 - 14 — 4953
®E Cheung Chi — 2,152 1,500 — 14 — 3,666
ZER Lee Kwok Leung - 1729 1,300 - 14 — 3043
BIFHTEE Independent non-
executive directors
EES Ma Ka Chun 100 — — — — — 100
Bt E Chan Kwong Fai 100 — — — — — 100
BRAE Kwan Kai Cheong 150 - — — — — 150
BER Wun Kwang 100 — — — — — 100
450 11170 6,000 — 56 — 17,676
RBE-Z-—=F+=-A=1+-— No directors waived any emoluments during the year

BILFE - 8 E S W E T
B(ZE—ZF 8|

et

REFPRERBE-Z—=
FR=F-=ZF+=A=t-
ALFEARFAREER 8
TEERTHAY YR
TORAH HEEZRFL
ARERERUTES BH=
T-ME-A-RREN - ZF
BRELEERBDABRIER
EEELAERTRAR -

(a)

BREXLLECHELRLAE
VHHTES A-Z-=
FRATEtEREXR -

(b)

KEEBEERERAFT

ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Mr.
executive Director and the chief executive officer of

Lai Ching Ping was the Deputy Chairman, an

the Company during the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2013 and had resigned as the chief executive
officer effective from 2 January 2014 but remained as
the Deputy Chairman and an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Lee Kwok Leung was redesignated as
the chief executive officer and resigned as the chief
operating officer on the same date.

Mr Wun Kwang was the independent non-executive
director of the Company and had resigned effective
from 17 June 2013.
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25 EERABEI@®

(c)

(d)

LIEBREHEAL

BE-Z-=H+-A=t—-AHL
FEAEBLIEREFALTEE
ZH(ZE-ZF WNRES
BRENHESCHR LA D - &
REMR ENFEBME (=T —
—E -RALTHHMENT:

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 include three (2012: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments paid/payable to the remaining
two individuals (2012: one individual) during the year
are as follows:

—E-—=F —E-ZF

2013 2012
TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EXEHe RFEEREUR Basic salaries, housing allowances
Hth 2 8h and other allowances 3,272 1,248
B 15 18 4L Discretionary bonuses 6,941 2,207
BAREA — REMKGE Retirement benefit — defined
contribution schemes 30 14
10,243 3,469

MENFUTEE:

B < % B (B )
3,000,001 T &
3,500,000 7t
3,500,001 T &
4,000,00078 7T
6,000,000/8 T £
6,500,000 7T

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

AE
Number of individuals
—E-=F —E-CF
2013 2012

Emolument bands (in HK dollar)
HK$3,000,001—HK$3,500,000

HK$3,500,001—HK$4,000,000

HK$6,000,000—HK$6,500,000

BE-F-=F1t=-A=1-H
LEE RARAERXAMEF
TAESHEEREHAL - £
RBEMADMAREEHEED
SEBRE(CE-—F 1 E)-

(d)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Company to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2012: Nil).
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26 @EWAREAX 26 Finance income and costs
—E-=F —E-C—F
2013 2012
TER FTERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B A Interest income from
— RITER — Bank deposits 14,064 12,742
— AR E S (i EE37(c) — Convertible bonds (Note 37(c)) 2,644 1,564
— BT -—RBELH — Loans to an associate (Note 37(c))
(M 5E37(c)) - 12,424
— BEFER — Customers for extended credit
FEEEH terms 16 36
A& WA Finance income 16,724 26,766
7 & AR Finance costs
— RITEE — Bank borrowings (2,949) (2,313)
BE WA FE Net finance income 13,775 24,453

172 -z-=%58% XE£EERARLT
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g BiE X

ERNEHEREAFEERTEREE
ML H £16.5% (ZF—Z%F . 16.5%)
STIREE o

AHBEAERIRELENHBRATR
BERNARFAFERE25% (ZF-—Z
F125%) B RN PEAEREAR
BHR-REEABE EPEAER
YRINEBERERTIEGELEN
MEARARKEAT ATER-F
ZNFE EMFARHARBNE
XSGR MEA=ZFRIE¥SR -

N (BB R B AFERRSN) ER KB IR
ERAFEGTERBBNEAEE
REMERZXNBATERBRAE -

REABRANBNAEHRAXEHE
ok

27 Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year.

Subsidiaries and associates established and operated in
Mainland China are subject to Mainland China Enterprise
Income Tax at rate of 25% for the year (2012: 25%). In
accordance with the applicable tax regulations, subsidiaries
and associates established in Mainland China as wholly
owned foreign enterprises or sino-foreign joint ventures are
entitled to full exemption from Enterprise Income Tax for the
first two years and a 50% reduction in Enterprise Income Tax
for the next three years, commencing no later than 2008.

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The amounts of income tax expense charged to the
consolidated income statement represent:

—E—=F —E-CZF

2013 2012
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000

BE T B Current income tax
ERFEH Hong Kong profits tax 24,073 41,876
REAECERER Mainland China enterprise income tax 3,721 1,946
BIRES Overseas income tax 1,873 —
RBAFERERR Under provision in prior years 3,198 497
32,865 44,319
IR IE PR 15 B (B 5£19) Deferred income tax (Note 19) 5,314 (7,718)
38,179 36,601
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174

Fresimzm@

AEBERATBBATER B IREE R
BRARGHERBNNOMEFIHR =

BHNERSBNERNDT:

27 Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated

entities as follows:

—E—=fF —E-——F
2013 2012
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEERGEZ ARDEF W Profit before income tax excluding share
BR P 18 % AR R of profits of associates 158,374 196,510
NERARE@E Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
B =R R 19 7K #th B R applicable to profits in the respective
STEMNBIE places/countries 19,092 28,940
BEgE: Tax effects of:
— BAERBHA — Income not subject to tax (4,387) (4,493)
— FAHIHMAX — Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 14,877 2,305
— HBRRZEE — Effect of tax concession (2,843) (2,452)
— UTEBEIAELERSHHN — Tax losses for which no deferred
&S income tax was recognised 18,651 9,418
— ABRERERE — Temporary differences not recognised 886 4,350
— BABEAERBRESE — Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (11,924) (3,359)
— HWBEARKREE QA — Withholding tax on undistributed
ROBRFFENSB earnings of subsidiaries and
associates 468 788
— RBEFERBIRE — Under provision in prior years 3,198 497
— Hit — Others 161 607
REHEX Tax charge 38,179 36,601

MEFHBERABEROR12% (ZF
Fi147%) SHETEMRFEAER

ARNFBEAALBDFAY - 23
L EES RS TR

“E-ZHEFR XEEEERAERAT

are subject to different tax rates.

The weighted average applicable tax rate was approximately
12% (2012: 14.7%). The change is mainly caused by a change
in mix of profits earned by different Group companies which
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28 FAFREZFAAEMERA

ARrAREFEABAERML A
301,475,000% (= & — = F:
65,058,000 7T ) 3t A A2 B B 5 &
A o

29 BRER
(a) E&X

EREXBADREARD
BESEAERGEEHEFLN
151,205,000/ (= & — =
%:150,185,000% 7t) & & &
ERTEERNMETLHEY
1,268,400,000/% (ZE—=F:
1,268,400,000% ) 5T & °

ol

28 Profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$301,475,000 (2012: HK$65,058,000).

29 Earnings per share

(a) Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on

the consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$151,205,000 (2012:
HK$150,185,000) and on the weighted average number
of approximately 1,268,400,000 (2012: 1,268,400,000)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

—EB—=F —E-C—F
2013 2012
AARMEZEAREEAR,  Profit/(loss) attributable to equity
(B#B)(FET) holders of the Company (HK$'000)
— BEREER — Continuing operations 136,429 165,965
— BRIERBEER — Discontinued operations 14,776 (15,780)
151,205 150,185
ERTEZERMMETIIY  Weighted average number of ordinary
(Fh) shares in issue (°000) 1,268,400 1,268,400
BREAXRRF, (EE/)(EM) Basic earnings/(loss) per share
(HK cents)
— BFESEEE — Continuing operations 10.8 13.1
— BRIEREER — Discontinued operations 1.1 (1.3)
11.9 11.8
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176

(b)

—E-ZFEER

BF

BRBERADBRRABRAE
EEBECHEYENEER &
KREEBRTEBERMETSD
BEtE - REBRE B (M
20)ETHRHAK-BER
BESENEBER - A2ER
BRTEBRERMIBEN
EREEFEAEUNEE TR
BAFE(DNARAROREE
HENFITE)WBNRDE
B LHAEtENROBERZR
RITEBREMBRTHRGHE
EHLE & o

HREE-_Z——FR-ZT—=
F+ZA=1T-HLEERAXAR
ARG R E AR REAT
BEEEBRARBEZE &
BHE-Z-——_ER-_F-=5+
“A=t+-HLEEENEREE
BEAESRERRFER -

KEEBEERERAFT

29 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. Shares issuable under the
share option schemes (Note 20) are the only dilutive
potential ordinary shares. A calculation is made in
order to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market price of the Company’s shares in
the relevant periods) based on the monetary value of
the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above
is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share
options.

The diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013 are the same as the basic
earnings per share as the potential ordinary shares
arising from the share options granted by the Company
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2013 are anti-dilutive.
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30 K& 30 Dividends

—EB—=F —E-C—F

2013 2012
THERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ENFHRESREERI.0E Interim dividend paid of HK3.0 cents
(ZZ2—ZF :3.0%1L) (2012: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share 38,052 38,052
BEABRESREERS.0E Proposed final dividend of HK4.0 cents
(ZZ—ZF 1 4.081L) (2012: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share 50,736 50,736
88,788 88,788
EESERMBERERESREAR The Board proposed a final dividend of HK4.0 cents (2012:
408 (ZF—=F:4.080L) BRE HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend
M2 A50,736,000/8 T - LB RERE of HK$50,736,000, and is to be proposed at the upcoming
BRREFASLRE - HEMBEHRE annual general meeting. These financial statements do not

HARMZESRE - reflect this dividend payable.

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 177



S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31
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ReERERWETE 31 Notes to cash flow statement
(@) EEMESREHIR (@) Reconciliation of cash generated from
operations
—E—=fF —EBE-—F
2013 2012
TET TET
HK$’000 HK$°000
BRATEBAER Profit before income tax 155,185 162,380
BTHEEARE: Adjustments for:
— B EE#H — Amortisation of intangible assets 8,149 1,408
— i AR — Amortisation of land use rights 572 565
— HEME  HEKEEN  — (Gain)/Loss on disposal of
(k=) B property, plant and equipment (49) 599
— HETHEAENKE — Gain on disposal of land use rights (12,368) —
— HEBFEENKS — Gain on disposal of intangible
asset (45,676) —
— ME -BERZETE — Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 98,109 92,091
— ¥ BERIBERE — Impairment of property, plant
and equipment 44,320 3,171
— FE®E),/ HE — FHE — (Write-back)/impairment of
inventories, net (13,703) 47,307
— FEWIRFRE,(#E) — Impairment/(write-back) of
— B8 receivables, net 5,352 (2,666)
— REEB — License fee 1,560 —
— RERA — FE — Finance income — net (13,858) (24,881)
— EEgE AREF — Share of profits of associates (4,198) (4,249)
— ER(EE)WHE — F%E — Exchange (losses)/gains, net (4,990) 1,115
BELESEEH: Changes in working capital:
— 7E — Inventories (25,816) 155,342
— ERESKRRREE — Trade and bills receivable (15,421) 119,336
— ®$ BANEFRREMEYR — Deposits, prepayments and
R X other receivables (49,757) 28,007
— ERESKRRREE — Trade and bills payable 37,803 (82,621)
— EstiRZ R EMEMNIKRI  — Accruals and other payables (36,136) (5,166)
EEMBSRSE Cash generated from operations 129,078 491,738
“E-ZFFHR KkEKEEEZERERAF



SR EMERMET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 BERERMT @ 31 Notes to cash flow statement (Continued)
(b) RESHREBRD  HEWE - (b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from
KERZEBERESNEEE disposal of property, plant and equipment
comprise
—EB—=F —E-C—F
2013 2012
FTERT FERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEWHE  BERSKE: Disposal of property, plant and
equipment:
R % 28 Net book amount 560 1,816
HEME  HERFRHFWE, Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
(F5#E) plant and equipment 49 (599)

HEME  WBERREHMEBIIE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 609 1,217
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BRIEEEXEREE BER
FIABEHEEE WA
FRBEE

(@) HETHERE

RZEB——F+ZA=t+H &
EEETR-BE=AHURE
AR #29,687,490T (HHERH
36,931,000 ) i & P B K B
METLIHERAEITLEER
BoRZE-—Z-F+ZA=+-—
B+ U % 436,931,000 Tt 4
BV AE IR R b
& X ° 24,749,00058 T K £ i
CARR-FE-——-5+=A=+
—RAIABELEBENER
BE HEIMFEAEERER
TR RMENE  AEEREBZE
—E-ZE+ZA=t+-HLF
£ # 3812,368,00078 T 9 H &
Wz o

“E-ZHEFR XEEEERAERAT

32 Assets/liabilities of discontinued operations
and other non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale

(a)

Disposal of land use rights

On 20 December 2011, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with a third party in Heyuan
in relation to the disposal of certain land use rights in
Mainland China for a consideration of RMB29,687,490
(equivalent to approximately HK$36,931,000). As
at 31 December 2012, a deposit of approximately
HK$36,931,000 had been received and was included
in accruals and other payables. The land use rights of
HK$24,749,000 were classified as non-current assets
held for sale as at 31 December 2012. During the year,
the disposal of the land use rights was completed.
In this connection, the Group recognised a gain on
disposal of HK$12,368,000 during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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32 BRIELEEKEE BEK
HABEHEEBNH At
(RBEE®@

(b)

ERIEEEER

KFEFRE LRI AZE R
K 4 &[Diadora | E1Z

R-ZE-Z=ZF+tA+H KX&£E
giDiadora Sport SRLK E 2
EMf BT Wincina S.R.L.:TX

@ [ = [ Diadora Sport SRL
# & (H 8 #F)Diadora | i
HEAE - EERBMANEE
kiEH  KES A %9,200,000
Z 7 (BER#71,760,000% T)
%1,000% 7t (HH 5 R #7,8008
Jt) o BbHh » Wincina S.R.L.[E
ERIBAOAKENEEWE
DERKEERERAREZE K
SEHEE60%EZNHE LR
X BB ERARLI0% MK E -
£ it [E#F  Diadora Sport SRL
ERZEAMEZN)LAEE
E B[Diadora| Em 2 Fi B #
H oRERGER /JLEER
fil[Diadora |t @ 7 E 1 &
RIERKERZBUR B R
BEEHBERER H(i)=F—
EF-A=+-HUUBREREEAR
E)FHBEHBR aArfE
& Wi[Diadoral & 2 1 + B K
BECEBREMNERE B
& %5200,000€ T (HHERH
1,560,000/ 7t)° 200,000
ERREENNRCELIAEE
REESH -

32 Assets/liabilities of discontinued operations
and other non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale (Continued)

(b)

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations of Winor Group and
disposal of ‘Diadora’ Trademarks

On 10 July 2013, the Group entered into a master deed
with Diadora Sport SRL and Wincina S.R.L., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Diadora Sport SRL. Pursuant
to the master deed, the Group agreed to assign,
among others, the ‘Diadora’ trademarks and domain
names in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau to
Diadora Sport SRL at a consideration of US$9,200,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$71,760,000) and
US$1,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,800),

respectively. In addition, Wincina S.R.L. agreed
to transfer its 40% equity shareholding in Winor
International Company Limited, a 60% owned

subsidiary of the Group, to Windia Holdings Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group at HK$1. At the
same time, Diadora Sport SRL granted the right to use
of the ‘Diadora’ trademarks to the Group in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau during a transitional
period from the date of the master deed to (i) the date
that all the Group’s leases, licences and the agreements
relating to ‘Diadora’ products and/or arrangements to
manufacture any ‘Diadora’ related stock having been
terminated or ceased or expired and all related shops
having been closed, or (ii) 31 January 2015, whichever
is earlier at a license fee of US$200,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,560,000). The payment of such
license fee of US$200,000 was set off against the above
disposal consideration.

2013 Annual Report Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 181



S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 BRILEXKEE BEK
HABEHEEBNHE At
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182

(b)

—E-ZFEER

ERIEEEEE @)

KEFEFH ORI LTS
K 4 & [Diadora | & 1Z (&)

RER  A&EE K Z6,300,000
=7t (1% M%49,140,0008 7T)
# X & - Diadora Sport SRL
ERBEAZEOTEREXM
£ T2,700,000% T(HE R Y
21,060,000 T) R E 55
THHEERBERTAER -
REERH BENEDSH
526,084,000 T > AEEE
REREREEBENEMKE
— F %8 ¥ £245,676,00078 7T 1Y
HEMEN KRG - RIBARE
[Diadora |ER7HEKEH=
E-=FZ2EAL Rt RE
BB BEERT  HEBZZ2I AL
RIEREER MEEEREE
Ao BACKIEREEREE /
=

B A F 48 & 5y B B A BE
Umbro E & # &

FRAEERFBEAREN
[Umbro] ERZEXKERZ
E-=F2EAL Rt RE
HEBEERT HEBZZ2H AL
RIEREER MEEEREE
Ao BACKIEREEREE /
=

KEEBEERERAFT

32 Assets/liabilities of discontinued operations
and other non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale (continued)

(b)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

Discontinued operations of Winor Group and
disposal of ‘Diadora’ Trademarks (Continued)

During the vyear, the Group has received the
consideration of US$6,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$49,140,000). The remaining
consideration of US$2,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$21,060,000) has been paid to an
escrow agent by Diadora Sport SRL in accordance
with the master deed and will be released to the
Group under certain conditions. At the date of the
disposal, the carrying amount of trademarks amounted
to HK$26,084,000. The Group has recognised a gain
on disposal of trademarks of HK$45,676,000 in other
gains — net of discontinued operations. Pursuant to the
master deed, the distribution business of the ‘Diadora’
products was wholly ceased in 2013. Therefore its
results are presented as a discontinued operation
and its assets and liabilities are classified as assets/
liabilities of discontinued operations in the consolidated
financial statements.

Discontinued operations of Umbro retail business
in Mainland China

During the year, the Group’s retail business of the
‘Umbro’ products in Mainland China was wholly ceased
in 2013. Therefore its results are presented as a
discontinued operation and its assets and liabilities are
classified as assets/liabilities of discontinued operations
in the consolidated financial statements.
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32 BRIELEEKEE BEK
HABEHEEBNH At
(RBEE®@

(b)

ERIEEEEE @)

AEFETEE(XEFT
EF)HEARIZEEK

R-—ZZE-——-50MA=+—-8"
REBEEUmbro International
Limited (TUIL]) 12 2 4 1L A H
AZEZTLE_ANBWIHEE
MR LR 2o HEEH
ERTREXETEEBRD
B IR-ZETLF=AZE=F
“EET-AHEEREARE
EF& B RAED  Umbro
REER XEBZIHEENNR
{8 527,500,000% Tt (HERH
214,500,000 T)» M&Z R %
ERZE——FRBZHEM °

o R=ZEBE-——FMA=+—
B AERHUILKEBEESE
FTVBRERBHE Bk X
BFTEERER-ZE——FRX
R-HE-Z-——-§XHA=+H
HEPUILR LR EERREH®R
% BB SR S NEREX
TEBRLEDHEEEDHELB
BEREERERTE - LM RK
9 fR % & 55,000,000 7t (48
£ }A#939,000,0008 7T) ° & Ut
ME  ULEAEXTEERE
R-ZE——FXAZHEZ-Z-
ZEAB=THHE 2 $Umbro
MEERNTEBRIHEE U
BREFTEETRMLES
BERE BRBERBEER=
E-—FRA=THKLE  ®R
HE-Z-=F+-A=+-—H
HLFEHMERIABEREER
A(ZB-=—F+=ZA=+—H:
18,074,000 7t) °

32 Assets/liabilities of discontinued operations
and other non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale (Continued)

(b)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

Discontinued operations of Team & Sports Group
(“T&S Group”)

On 21 April 2011, into an

agreement with Umbro International Limited (“UIL’)

the Group entered

for the early termination of the distributor agreement
dated 8 February 2007 which granted T&S Group
exclusive distribution rights of the Umbro branded
products in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan from March 2007 to December 2020. The
consideration for the surrender of such distribution
rights was US$27,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$214,500,000) and this transaction was completed
on 2 June 2011.

In addition, the Group entered into a Transition Services
Agreement with UIL and its related entities on 21
April 2011, under which T&S Group agreed to provide
services to UIL and its related entities for the period
from 2 June 2011 to 30 June 2012 to assist them
in avoiding disruption in the transition and operation
of the distribution business after the termination of
distribution rights by T&S Group. The fees for the
above services were US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$39,000,000).
UIL granted T&S Group new non-exclusive distribution

In this connection,

rights for the distribution of Umbro branded products
from 2 June 2011 to 30 June 2012 to enable T&S
Group to provide the above transition services. As
the transitional services ceased on 30 June 2012, no
transitional service fee income was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012:
HK$18,074,000).
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32 BRIEKEEKEE EEK 32 Assets/liabilities of discontinued operations

IIABELEEENHA and other non-current asset classified as

kRBEE@ held-for-sale (Continued)

(b) BRIEEER @ (b) Discontinued operations (Continued)
KEFTEE([XEFET Discontinued operations of Team & Sports Group
FE)PER U EEEK (“T&S Group”) (Continued)

(&)

RIBEUILETZ B3 © Umbro Pursuant to the agreements with UIL, the distribution
EMDHEERCRIZE-—ZFAX business of the Umbro products was wholly ceased on
A=+HZ2EKL - At BE 30 June 2012. Therefore its results are presented as a
HEEHERD HEE2HALC discontinued operation and its assets and liabilities are
KRIEREER MHBEERERE classified as assets/liabilities of discontinued operations
AP HACDRIEREERKRNE in the consolidated financial statements.

BE/BE-
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32 CRIEKEXBEE BEKR 32 Assets/liabilities of discontinued operations

IABSELEEENHM and other non-current asset classified as
(RBEE®@ held-for-sale (Continued)
(b) BRIEEER @ (b) Discontinued operations (Continued)

EREBEXBNEEREEN

FESBWOT: discontinued operations are as follows:

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the

R-2-=% R-Z-Z-F

+=-A=+—-8 +=B=+-H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
FTERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HORILKEELEEEZEMREN Assets directly associated with
BE: the discontinued operations:
— EWREZER — trade receivables 1,498 698
— Re BEANER — deposits, prepayments and
H 1l & i iR X other receivables 5,894 —
CRIEREERNEELRSE Total assets of the discontinued
operations 7,392 698
HORILEEXEEEEZEREN Liabilities directly associated
afE: with the discontinued
operations:
— ERESKRA — trade payables 1,873 123
— EHRAREMEMIRK  — accruals and other payables 5,482 4,322
— BHmEHEasE — current income tax liabilities = 1,625
CRIEREERNEBELE Total liabilities of the discontinued
operations 7,355 6,070
BREREEBNFEE Net assets/(liabilities) of the
(BfH) discontinued operations 37 (5,372)
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32 DRIEREXKEE BER

HABEHEEBNHE At
kRBEE@

(b) TRIEEE® @

TXHIFABRERILEEE
BHHMBEER - NBREERL
REXBRFEALEERIRZ
e LBBFEEHMES -

S EMERM T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 Assets/liabilities of discontinued operations
and other non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale (continued)

(b) Discontinued operations (Continued)

Financial information relating to the discontinued
operations for the year is set out below. The income
statement distinguishes discontinued operations from
continuing operations. Comparative figures have been
re-presented.

HZ+-A=+—-RLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

—E-=F —E--F

2013 2012

TERT TERT

HK$’000 HK$’000

g Revenue 81,137 126,440

SHE R AN Costs of sales (70,582) (95,030)

EF Gross profit 10,555 31,410

HERDHAAK Selling and distribution costs (44,505) (65,193)

—-BRETHEEX General and administrative expenses (39,546) (44,723)

H At A (B 5 (a) Other income (Note (a)) 18,464 44,594
Hibez /(B51B) — FH  Other gains/(losses)—net (Note (b))

(BF 3% (b)) 47,562 (4,895)
REBE Operating loss (7,470) (38,807)
mE R A Finance income 83 445
ME MK Finance costs - (17)
BAKA —F® Finance income —net g 4%
BRI EHAEE Loss before income tax (7,387) (38,379)
FERimEx Income tax expense (1,501) (5,752)
EREREXEBEE Loss from discontinued operations (8,888) (44,131)
LTALTEEERIEZEEETE  Profit/(loss) from discontinued

wmF (B 8) operations attributable to:

— RRFAREFEA — Equity holders of the Company 14,776 (15,780)

— FERER — Non-controlling interests (23,664) (28,351)

(8,888) (44,131)

“E-ZHEFR XEEEERAERAT
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32 CRIEKEXBEE BEKR 32 Assets/liabilities of discontinued operations

IIABELEEENHA and other non-current asset classified as
(RBEE®@ held-for-sale (Continued)
(b) BRIEEER @ (b) Discontinued operations (Continued)
Mt Notes:
(@) BEZE-=F+ZB=+- (@  The retail support income amounting to HK$18,205,000
ALtEENEMBKABES (2012: HK$26,450,000) was included in other income
£ X E W A18,205,0005 T for the year ended 31 December 2013.
(ZE—Z%:26,450,000/%
) °
by EE-ZE-=ZF+ZA= (o) The gain on disposal of ‘Diadora’ trademarks
T-BLFEMEMYK amounting to HK$45,676,000 was included in other
#®/(F8)— FHEEES gains/(losses) — net for the year ended 31 December
&[Diadora] & & ) W & 2013.

45,676,000/ 7T °

BE+-A=t+-BLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

—E—=fF —E-—F

2013 2012

TER TET

HK$’000 HK$'000

REBERE Operating cash flows 35,005 (10,664)
RERERE Investing cash flows 48,973 (3,586)
MERTRE Financing cash flows (127,818) (7,165)
ReRERE Total cash flows (43,840) (21,415)
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32 BRIEKEEKEE EEK 32 Assets/liabilities of discontinued operations

IIABELEEENHA and other non-current asset classified as

kRBEE@ held-for-sale (Continued)

(b) BRIEEER @ (b) Discontinued operations (Continued)
SFARRLEEEBNRI AN Expenses included in the discontinued operations are
wmT: analysed as follows:

—E—=F —E-——F

2013 2012
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEHKm Purchase of finished goods 25,094 74,766
ERmFENE S Changes in inventories of finished
goods 44,713 4,555
ME - - BERRBINE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 3,845 9,992
M BERRERE Impairment of property, plant and
equipment - 3,171
RESE License fee 1,560 —
BEEE#E Amortisation of intangible assets 704 1,408
RERHE Auditor’s remuneration 249 834
BRESERREERME,  Impairment/(write-back) of trade and
(BE) — B8 bills receivable, net 4,868 (3,718)
FERE — FE Provision for inventories, net = 15,589
EERERX Deferred tax expense - 4154
33 FAEE 33 Contingent liabilities
R-EBE-=F4+"A=+—-H KEH As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material
THREAFABB(ZZ——F :8|)o contingent liabilities (2012: Nil).
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34 EE — X5EEH

(a)

BERARE

REER  SAINERBENE
ARXWT:

ME - HBERR
BEAINERER

34

Commitments — Group

(a)

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet
date but not yet provided for is as follows:

—E—=F —E-——F
2013 2012
TER TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Property, plant and equipment
Contracted but not provided for 4,767 1,981

R-ZZE-=5+=ZA=+—-8"
FEEAFEDE TRAPERER
MER L WKEAREAEME
o E & # % £9117,511,00008
(= F — = 42,722,000
)o

s

R-Z2—-—NA+A~B &
£ @& Shine Gold Limited &
HERBEATLI-HHE"
Bt AEEREABLSE
%8 £70,000,0005% T 9 7] #
RESH R-—FE-——_F+=HA
ESt-HB AEECEBATER
& & %31,200,00058 7t i B
ERFEBAGBTURBRES
38,800,000 T - AE B R =
E-ZFE-A-t-HEA%EZ
#t A< ¢ %5 538,800,000 T #Y
THRRES - R-ZB-—=ZF+-—
B—H - £%70,000,000/& T
FE-MURBFE_MRUTBRRESFC
## A Shine Gold Limitedfy
70% MR #E o

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had commitments
to inject additional capital into certain subsidiaries
established in Mainland China and Vietnam, totalling
approximately HK$117,511,000 (2012: HK$42,722,000).

On 16 August 2011,
agreement with Shine Gold Limited and its beneficial

the Group entered into an

owners, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
subscribe for convertible bond in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$70,000,000. As at 31
2012, the Group had acquired convertible bond of
HK$31,200,000 and had commitment to acquire the
remaining convertible bond of HK$38,800,000. The
Group acquired the second tranche of convertible
bonds with principal amount of HK$ 38,800,000 on 21
February 2013. On 1 November 2013, both the first
and second tranches of the convertible bonds totalling
HK$70,000,000 were converted into 70% equity interest
in Shine Gold Limited.

December
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34 EE — XEEm@®

(b) KREHEEHAE
ARERBETITRELCEHEE
HEEESHEERE BLE -
RERBMAZRME -HESAR
Bk~ BETRARERRE -
AEERBETIHELCERE
ZARBREHESBBEMNT

34 Commitments — Group (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group
warehouses and office equipment under non-

leases various retail shops, offices,
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

—E-=F —E-=F

2013 2012

THET TET

HK$’000 HK$'000

—&FR Within one year 156,322 66,906
—F2REF Later than one year and not later

than five years 186,176 131,893

EF# Later than five years 41,536 13,081

384,034 211,880

THEEREESEEREE A
B AT BEANMESES (R
REE)(WBE)RE  ZZEN
HE-REARRBEZER
PHBEHECEFAHEEEE
FRATITHESLEEZEEIN
HEzE8 -

100 -—z-=¢&% AEEEEBRERAT

The above lease commitments only include
commitments for basic rentals, and do not include
commitments for additional rental payable (contingent
rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales
less the basic rentals of the respective leases, as it
is not possible to determine in advance the amount of

such additional rentals.



35 EEGIEESFNBERTHE

AREERERENET
KEKRBARNENER

R-ZZE-Z=5tA+H AEEH
Wincina S.R.L.ZTM & @ ML E1E
JTEWincina SRLIWEBXKEBKRE
PR (TKE])ZE 5 40% B B #E o Ut
BER-Z-—=FtA+HRERK It
% BE-_ZE-=5+-A=+-H
EFE AEERXEREKELDA
i % 1 60% 1 £100% o U 85 %8 4
ERITESHFHKEREWBLRE
FIREMNEE  c RUEBRE KEMNHE
2 % FE 2= M9 0K [ £ %8 A13,378,0007%8
ToBE-_E-=H5+-A=+—H
HFEE AEEBRAFEREZHD
13,378,000 B T RAAR FEE A B
& 7 12 1113,378,0005% 7t (Kt 5£21) ©
BHE-Z-=F+Z-A=+—-HL#EF
E RXEEBREEZNEDHAAR
ABEBAELERENSEHANT:

SR EMERMET Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

On 10 July 2013, the Group entered into an agreement with
Wincina S.R.L. to acquire an additional 40% equity interest
in Winor International Company Limited (“Winor HK”) at a
consideration of HK$1 from Wincina S.R.L.. The acquisition
was completed on 10 July 2013. Thereafter, the Group’s
equity interest in Winor HK and its subsidiaries was increased
from 60% to 100% during the year ended 31 December
2013. The acquisition of the additional interest did not result
in change of control of Winor HK and its subsidiaries. The
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in Winor
HK on the date of acquisition was HK$13,378,000. The
Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of HK$13,378,000 and an increase in equity attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$13,378,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2013 (Note 21). The effect of
changes in the ownership interest of Winor HK on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2013 is summarised as follows:

TERT
HK$’000

HEFEREZNIRE S5 Carrying amount of non-controlling interests
disposed of 13,378
IRFHREREZNAE Consideration paid to non-controlling interests —
ERREINKR Gain recognised within equity 13,378
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36

192

EBAH

RZE-Z=ZF+-A—H TEEZTHK
W B Shine Gold 70%MR#E - REE
PEHRAREEEEA70,000,0005 T H
A i R & % )5 & (Mt 3E11(a)) ° Shine
GodEERERABERFREHFS
€ o W B E £ 7 2£90,635,000& T
FEEEEHREAEEKShine Gold
MEBREHE ZEBRRITELERZ
BAEN  2HEBRRAELSERR
MIEH - EHAMEREEYRAEN
HEABHRAR -

TREBER=Z—=F+—-F—8 &

Shine GoldE2 X E - EWEBEE
EREEEURFEREZNLOTE -

—E-ZFEER

KEEBEERERAFT

36 Business combinations

On 1 November 2013, the Group completed the acquisition
of a 70% equity interest in Shine Gold, which was satisfied
by the conversion of convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$70,000,000 (Note 11(a)). Shine Gold
mainly engages in the retailing of high-end fashion wears
and accessories. The goodwill of HK$90,635,000 arising from
the acquisition is attributable to management expectation for
future profitability of the business, risk diversification and
economies of scale expected from combining the operations
of the Group and Shine Gold. None of the goodwill recognised
is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Shine Gold, the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities
assumed and the non-controlling interest as at 1 November
2013.
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36 X%(BA6tw@m

36 Business combinations (Continued)

RE: Consideration:
TET
R-—ZE-=%+—-A—H At 1 November 2013 HK$'000
A Shine Gold# W # Ik & % R E A F & Fair value of convertible bond investments
(K &E11(a)) in Shine Gold (Note 11(a)) 70,000
HmRE Total consideration 70,000
THRAICHBEERCREEEN Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
ERACHE acquired and liabilities assumed
BeRBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26,728
M MR RRE (M7 Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) 32,449
BMEGIABEEE)(KES) Trademarks (included in intangible assets) (Note 8) 13,966
SEREGIABREE)(KES) Licence rights (included in intangible assets) (Note 8) 87,722
FE Inventories 91,805
BREZSRRAREE Trade and bill receivables 20,812
ZE - B RIE R H A FE WUR X Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 47127
ERESERRRE Trade and bill payables (26,318)
JE 5t R X I HL fth BE 3 1R X Accruals and other payables (56,089)
BE Borrowings (237,986)
MEmEREE Current income tax liabilities (10,059)
BB 8 8 (i EE19) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 19) (19,636)
AHANFEE (AR AE Total identifiable net assets/(liabilities) (29,479)
FERER Non-controlling interest 8,844
2 (M =£8) Gooduwill (Note 8) 90,635
70,000

BRI AK118,0008 TEREE
—E-=E+-A=t+-HIEENSE
BERIERAMITHBI 0B o

70,000,000 TR R ESFREBRA
HNLFEDEBRAGERMMAS
DNFEGFT9O%NBARREAE
BOYRE=FRRITVEFE -

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$118,000 have
been charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The fair value of the convertible bond of HK$70,000,000 at
conversion date was estimated by using valuation techniques.
The fair value estimates are based on a pre-tax discount rate
of 19%. This is a level 3 fair value measurement.
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36 X%(BE6twm

37

194

BE-EZ-=F+—-A—BU%X &4
#8 & A &4 Shine Gold & &f 9 ix
7 #999,362,0007% Jt ° Shine Gold
[ 8 7 & &k 5 18 49474,00078 7T o fid
Shine GoldBE-Z—=%—F—H#
BEHAR EHFBEREHEEES
I % #93,294,700,00078 Tt & /& Fl 4
86,353,00058 T °

RUBEHEINFERESRRE S
BEFEREERERGETHFE
E/BEATVELAFE-

EUEZERAREENLATFEERE
20,812,000 T E W B 5 1k X °
ERESEKEANEBENRER
20,812,000/ 7t * G AU E -

HELRS

FEERERBELHESEMALZ
AT Quinta Asia Limited (E#EZRA
AEH ZARR-E-=F+=HA
ET—BEBARARN58.64% K 1% °
ARAFEZER B Quinta Asia Limited
BRAERAR -

BRREZESHHBERPHMEBD MR

WEEN AEBERBEESBETU
TEERXRS:

—E-ZFEER

KEEBEERERAFT

36 Business combinations (Continued)

37

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement
since 1 November 2013 contributed by Shine Gold was
approximately HK$99,362,000. Shine Gold also contributed
loss of approximately HK$474,000 over the same period.
Had Shine Gold been consolidated from 1 January 2013,
the consolidated income statement would show pro-form
revenue of approximately HK$3,294,700,000 and profit of
approximately HK$86,353,000.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interest recognised
at the acquisition date is measured by the proportionate
share of the fair value of net identifiable assets/liabilities by
shareholding of non-controlling interest.

Included in the fair value of trade and bill receivables was
trade receivables of HK$20,812,000. The gross contractual
amount for trade receivables due was HK$20,812,000, and
none is expected to be uncollectible.

Related party transactions

The Group is controlled by Quinta Asia Limited (the immediate
holding company), a company incorporated in the British
Virgins lIslands, which owns approximately 58.64% of the
Company’s shares as at 31 December 2013. The Company’s
directors regard Quinta Asia Limited as being the ultimate
holding company.

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant transactions
were carried out with related parties:
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37 BEFRZ®

37 Related party transactions (continued)

(a) HEERKRRHK (a) Sales of goods and services
—E-=f Z—ZEB-ZF
2013 2012
TER TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEEM: Sales of goods:
MEBLARNIERREZHN Entities controlled by non-controlling
B8 shareholder of a subsidiary:
— XBLEBRLT — Amerseas Enterprises Ltd 4,291 21,800
— EBRERARCTR) — Amerseas Sporting Goods
BERAT (Heyuan) Co Ltd 14 11
— BMNXREBERAR — Guangzhou Tien Sung Sporting
BRDA Goods Co Ltd 4 26
— URREBERAR — Heyuan Tien Sung Sporting
BRQA Goods Co. Ltd 47 33
— REBEARERAR — Tien Gee Sporting Goods Co. Ltd 1,510 491
— TSG (Bangkok) Ltd — TSG (Bangkok) Ltd - 32
— REHEXER) — TSG International Ltd
BRDA 734 826
REBWHE QAR Associate of the Group:
— D-mop Limited — D-mop Limited
(EE=2%—-= (up to 1 November 2013)
t+—A—H) 2,389 2,756
— EEEERREAXE — Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing Factory
CR)BRAH (Heyuan) Co Ltd 88 41
HERS Sales of services:
MEBLARMNIEZERRR Entity controlled by non-controlling
BEHNER: shareholder of a subsidiary:
— EBOEBRAA — Amerseas Enterprises Ltd
— MIWA — processing income 8 697
— REEXEK)BRAT  — TSG International Ltd
— MIWBA — processing income 181 —
— AERERARBRAR — Tien Gee Sporting Goods Co. Ltd
— MIWA — processing income 403 —
9,669 26,713
EnkBRBERETHBENER Goods and services are sold at prices mutually agreed
HE o by both parties.
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37 BEARZum) 37 Related party transactions (cContinued)
b) BEERRERHK (b) Purchases of goods and services

—E-=Zf —E--F
2013 2012
T TET
HK$°000 HK$’000

AEEMNBEEQAT: Associate of the Group:
— Fu Jin Bowker — Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited
Company Limited 223,562 201,546
REBNHE AR Major shareholder of an associate
FERR: of the Group:
— ER#ETERGERAT — Fu Hsun Fiber Industrial Co Ltd 80,659 32,584
304,221 234,130
EmEBRBREIHBENER Goods and services are purchased at prices mutually
BE - agreed by both parties.
(c) BELAZFEKA (c) Interest income from an associate
—BE-=F =ZEB-=f
2013 2012
THET FTART
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEBMBEE AR Associate of the Group:
— Shine Gold Limited — Shine Gold Limited
(EZ=Z-=5+-F—H) (up to 1 November 2013)
AR R E % (M E26) Convertible bond (Note 26) 2,644 1,564
R (M 3E26) Loans (Note 26) - 12,424

2,644 13,988
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37 BEFRZ®

(d) =& BESIRRE

37 Related party transactions (continued)

(d) Year-end balances arising from sales/

FEEZFRER purchases of goods and services
=2-= —E--F
2013 2012
FTERT FTET
HK$’000 HK$°000
EUWBEESFRBE(BERERES Receivables from related parties
{RHA) : (included in trade receivables):
REBHNEE AR Associate of the Group:
— D-mop Limited —D-mop Limited
(BEEZZE—=% (up to 1 November 2013)
t—RA—8H) - 822
— BIEEEREEECTR) —Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing Factory
BERAF (Heyuan) Co Ltd - 2
MEARMIEER R REH Entities controlled by non-controlling
B shareholder of a subsidiary:
— XBLEBRALT —Amerseas Enterprises Ltd 1,190 682
— E8REARCIR)ER —Amerseas Sporting Goods
N (Heyuan) Co Ltd 1 8
— IRREBEARERAT —Heyuan Tien Sung Sporting
Goods Co Ltd 12 6
— REBEARERAR —Tien Gee Sporting Goods Co
Ltd 289 291
— RERKREBR)BRAF —TSG International Ltd 211 12
1,703 1,923
B BRERRE Payables to related parties
(BEREREZERA) (included in trade payables):

AEENBHEDLT

— Fu Jin Bowker Company

Associate of the Group:
—Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited

Limited 61,414 60,321
AEENBEARANETERR: Major shareholder of an associate of
the Group:
— EEHETERMERLA —Fu Hsun Fiber Industrial Co Ltd 29,130 3,708
90,544 64,029
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37 BEARZum) 37 Related party transactions (cContinued)
(d SHE BEEFRERE (d) Year-end balances arising from sales/
FEEZERE%E purchases of goods and services (Continued)
—E-= —E-CZF
2013 2012
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$°000

ENBEFRBE(EERESTIRZR Payables to related parties

HMEMFIRZRA) : (included in accruals and
other payables):
REBEWHE AR Associate of the Group:
— Shine Gold Limited — Shine Gold Limited
(EE=Z2—-= (up to 1 November 2013)
t+—A—H) - 8,981
RER Yuen Chi Leung
— Hth — Others 1,242 1,242
FERBABERRER R All amounts are unsecured and payable within normal
ESEEHMRIZM - trade credit terms.

108 -—z-=¢e2% AKzEEZEBRERAT
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37 BEARZ @ 37 Related party transactions (cContinued)
(e) REBEINER (e) Loans from related parties

—EBE—=F —E-C-F

2013 2012
TERT THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
MBLAREERRE Non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries
— =& — Yuen Chi Leung 7,500 7,500
— Kwang Sia Fashion Limited — Kwang Sia Fashion Limited 275 —
7,775 7,500
REEEENERAEEEF & The loan from Yuen Chi Leung is unsecured, interest
BRERFZEREAEF -HE free and is only repayable on the unanimous demand of
RIFEEZE NEEREMERE Yuen Chi Leung and the Group, which is to be repaid
BERERBERRERNLSF to both shareholders in their respective proportions
LUEIE - of outstanding shareholders’ loans at the time of
repayment.
3 B Kwang Sia Fashion The loan from Kwang Sia Fashion Limited is unsecured,
LimitedMERARIEKF - &£ 8 interest free and repayable on demand.

REBRREE-
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37 BEIXRZ®@®

() HRBELTNER

Shine Gold (EZ=%—=
+—-A—8)

— ABRES  BEFES

— &5 BEFE

37 Related party transactions (Continued)

(f) Balances with an associated company

—E—=F —E—--F

2013 2012
TER TER
HK$°000 HK$'000
Shine Gold (up to 1 November 2013)
— Convertible bond, including
interest - 33,354
— Loans, including interest — 173,493

() ERHEBIARRE

ENHMBARREIREER

RERARBREE -

(hy TEEBAEMWS

(9) Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

(h) Key management compensation

—E-=F —E-=F

2013 2012

FTHER FTERT

HK$’000 HK$'000

e AR ER Salaries, bonus and allowances 28,529 25,555
BARERN — RERRGE Retirement benefits — defined

contribution schemes 105 162

28,634 25,717
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37

38

BEFRZ @

() R=-T—=F+-A=+-8-
ERARAEEMETRITEEEE
ER FAXEENBRATIR
HENTAERERTBE DA
387,169,000 T (ZE——%F:
301,019,017 T) R E#8 (=
Z — =% :16,000,0008 7t) #
ER

R=F-=ft+=A=+—-R"
AEREETRTEEUNBAF
FERBRETRITFRERR
(=2-—=% %)

RERREHE

R-E-NFE-AAB ESEHERD
HTESRATRBLRAKEETE
BR 15 #15,000,00010 B MR #E - %
ERRETEEBRI0BTZITHEE
T TAREREHERETI0FR
T8 -

37 Related party transactions (continued)

(i) As at 31 December 2013, the Company has granted
corporate guarantees to certain banks of its subsidiaries
and an associate in respect of their banking facilities
granted of HK$387,169,000 (2012: HK$301,019,017) and
HK$ Nil (2012: HK$16,000,000) respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s bank
borrowings were secured by certain bank deposits of a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary (2012: Nil).

38 Event after the balance sheet date

On 9 January 2014, the Board of Directors approved the
grant of total 15,000,000 share options to Dr. Chow Chi Wai,
an executive director and certain employees of the Group.
The share options can be exercised at an exercise price of
HK$1.01 per share; and are exercisable for 10 years from the
grant date.
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In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the

following expression have the following meanings:

“Board”

“Charmtech”

“Charmtech Group”

“Company”

“Connected Person”

“Diadora Products”

“Director(s)”

“Greater China”

“Group” or “we” or “our”

or “us”

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Main Board”

the board of Directors of the Company

Charmtech Industrial Limited, a 75%-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Charmtech and its subsidiaries

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited, an
exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 13

December 2005

has the meaning ascribed to it under the
Listing Rule

products bearing the Diadora trademark
and distributed in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macau

the director(s) of the Company

Mainland China, Macau, Hong Kong and
Taiwan region

the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in Mainland China

the date of commencement of dealings in
our Shares on the Main Board, which is on
6 September 2006

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

the stock market operated by the Stock
Exchange prior to the establishment of
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (excluding the options market)
and which stock market continues to be
operated by the Stock Exchange in parallel
with the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (for avoidance of doubt,
the Main Board excludes the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange)
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“Mainland China”

“OEM”

“Pre-IPO Share
Option(s)”

“RMB”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholders”

“Shine Gold”

“Shine Gold Group”

“Stock Exchange”

“T&S HK”

“TSG BVI”

“Umbro Distributor
Agreement”

2013 Annual Report

1% Glossary

the People’s Republic of China, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

acronym for original equipment
manufacturer, a business that manufactures
or purchases from other manufacturers and
possibly modifies goods or equipment for

branding and resale by others

the options granted by the Company to
certain employees, among others, prior to
the listing of the Company

Renminbi, the lawful currency of Mainland
China

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company

shareholders of the Company

Shine Gold Limited, a 70%-owned

subsidiary of our Company
Shine Gold Limited and its subsidiaries

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited

Team & Sports Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company commencing
from 2 June 2012

TSG (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated
in the BVI, a substantial shareholder of Win
Sports

the distributor agreement dated 8 February
2007 and entered between Umbro
International Limited, one of the members of
the Umbro Group, and T&S HK in respect of
the sale and distribution of Umbro Products
in the Greater China and purchases of
Umbro Products from the Umbro Group
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“Umbro Products”

“US”

“Win Sports”

“Win Sports Group

“Winor”

“Winor Group”

a selected range of sportswear and other
products bearing the Umbro brand and
distributed by the Group pursuant to the
Umbro Distributor Agreement

the United States of America

Win Sports Limited, a 75%-owned

subsidiary of the Company

Win Sports and its subsidiaries

Winor International Company Limited, being
an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of our
Company

Winor and its subsidiaries
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http://www.winhanverky.com
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